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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GEM (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should
be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due

and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no

assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this annual report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever

arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this annual report.

This annual report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
(the “Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to
the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this annual report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive,

and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this annual report misleading.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

T 4 B 55 4 R

A summary of the consolidated results and the consolidated assets R R E BB TR R A A R A 7 % 1
and liabilities of the Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech I8 B BUAF B B0 B 1 SE B A G R B R
Company Limited for the last five financial years is as follows: e -

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—FWE —F-NFE ZF-tF “F-RE _FT-HF
RME'000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
AREE T8 ARW T ARWTT AR®TIT ARWTT

RESULTS e
Revenue e A 1,266,678 1,905,727 1,613,075 1,412,542 1,072,045
Profit before tax I L iy v ) 1,575,955 405,067 417,570 351,493 237,706
Income tax expense BT 4584 B 52 (73,782) (78,556) (76,080) (68,411) (43,002)
Profit for the year A A B Vi ) 1,502,173 326,511 341,490 283,082 194,704
Profit attributable to: JRE A 5 R

Owners of the Company  A/A A #EH A 1,402,389 147,029 170,668 129,560 75,998

Non-controlling interests {4 [t 4 25 99,784 179,482 170,822 153,522 118,706

1,502,173 326,511 341,490 283,082 194,704

ASSETS AND ¥ kA

LIABILITIES
Total assets R 3,470,502 3,468,716 3,180,551 2,676,583 2,277,791
Total liabilities AR (395,131)  (818,301)  (692,303)  (653,772)  (587,576)
Total assets less total BEEWBAE

liabilities 3,075,371 2,650,415 2,448,248 2,022,811 1,690,215
Non-controlling interests  JF 4 i fif 5 (197.150)  (900,180)  (719,907)  (548,174)  (397,686)

Equity attributable to N/NEIE F <N
owners of the Company [ {5 35 2,878,221 1,750,235 1,768,341 1,474,637 1,292,529
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech
Company Limited (the “Company”), I am pleased to present
the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2019 of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”).

In 2019, the Company successfully completed the spin-off of the
fire business of Jade Bird Fire Co., Ltd. (previously Beida Jade
Bird Universal Fire Alarm Device Company Limited) (“Jade Bird
Fire”), a former subsidiary of the Company, for separate listing
on the Small and Medium Enterprises Board of the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. By virtue of that, both the profile and reputation
of Jade Bird Fire were enhanced and more opportunities were
created, and Jade Bird Fire now has a more defined business
focus and achieved more efficient resource allocation. Upon the
separate listing of Jade Bird Fire, Jade Bird Fire now has direct
access to the domestic capital market and enhanced financing
capability, the fair value of its fire business became better
identified and established, thus creating value for the Company
and its shareholders.

During the year, the number of visitors to Hengshan Mountain
scenic area remained stable at approximately 2.33 million. The
results of tourism development business of the Group remained
stable.

Looking ahead, as a result of the outbreak of novel coronavirus,
Hengshan Mountain scenic area was temporarily closed during
the first quarter of 2020 for one month, and given that the
epidemic will sustain for a period of time, it is expected that
the total number of visitors and the performance of the tourism
development business of the Group in the coming year will
be affected. Regarding the investment holding business, while
proactively consolidating its existing business and investment, the
Group will continue to seek for other investment opportunities
with promising development potential.

On behalf of the Board, I would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all employees of the Group for their excellent
contributions and hard work during the year and to the long-term
unfaltering support of the shareholders and business partners of
the Company.

Ni Jinlei
Chairman and Executive Director

Beijing, the PRC
30 March 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

o PHLE i e B 43

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in tourism development

business and investment holding of diversified portfolios.

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated
1 February 2013 and the circular of the Company dated 27
February 2013 on the proposed spin-off of Jade Bird Fire Co., Ltd.
(previously Beida Jade Bird Universal Fire Alarm Device Company
Limited) (“Jade Bird Fire”), a subsidiary of the Company, and
a separate listing of the manufacture and sale of electronic fire
equipment business owned and operated by Jade Bird Fire on
The Small and Medium Enterprises Board (the “SME Board”) of
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (the “Proposed A Share Listing”).
On 19 July 2019, Jade Bird Fire received a written approval issued
by the China Securities Regulatory Commission in respect of the
initial public offering of Jade Bird Fire (the “Approval”). Pursuant
to the Approval, Jade Bird Fire was approved to publicly issue
no more than 60 million new shares within 12 months from the
date of the Approval. On 8 August 2019, Jade Bird Fire issued the
Announcement on the Listing of the Shares Offered under Initial
Public Offering, pursuant to which, 60,000,000 shares at a price
of RMB17.34 was issued by Jade Bird Fire. The shares of Jade Bird
Fire was listed on the SME Board of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
on 9 August 2019, with stock name “% FiFi” (Jade Bird Fire) and
stock code 002960. Details were disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 19 July 2019, 29 July 2019 and 8 August
2019. Following the completion of the Proposed A Share Listing
on 9 August 2019, the equity interest of the Company in Jade Bird
Fire was diluted from 51.02% to 38.27%. Jade Bird Fire ceased to
be a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and the Group
discontinued its business of manufacture and sale of electronic
fire equipment. Jade Bird Fire became associate of the Group with
effect from the same date and has since been accounted for using

the equity method of accounting.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

The Company, through its subsidiaries and associates, is engaged
in provision of environmental shuttle bus service and property
management services, and operation of tourist service center
and tourist souvenir shops in Hengshan Mountain scenic area,
the PRC; and also participated in several tourism development
projects in Hunan Province, including the construction and
development of landscape architectures and primary land
development of land around the Sonya Lake region at Changsha
County, and the development of tourist sight project located at

Tianzi Mountain.

Fare revenue of environmental shuttle bus service was the main
source of income of the Group’s tourism development business,
which continued to contribute constant profit and cash flow to the
Group. The service utilisation rate of the Group’s environmental

bus service remained stable at 91%.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s investment holding business
mainly included investments in a subsidiary, the associates
and joint ventures which are private equity funds with equity
investments in private enterprises and property projects in the
PRC, the investments in financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income including listed companies in Hong
Kong and a private enterprise in the PRC, and the investment in
co-production of films and television dramas in the PRC. During
the year, the Group did not effect any material additional new

investments.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

o PHLE i e B 43

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Look ahead, Hengshan Mountain scenic area was temporarily
closed during the first quarter of 2020 (the “Closure”) due to the
policies and measures implemented by the government of the PRC
to deter the spread of novel coronavirus pneumonia (COVID-19)
epidemic in the PRC (the “Epidemic”). It is currently expected
that due to the Closure and the Epidemic, fare revenue generated
from the environmental shuttle bus service of Chuanqi Tourism
Investment Co., Ltd. (“Chuanqi Tourism”) and therefore the total
revenue from continuing operations of the Group for the three
months ending 31 March 2020 would decrease. Regarding the
investment holding business, in view of the recent uncertainties
of global economic environment and in light of the evolving
situation regarding the Epidemic, the Group would closely
monitor the performance of the existing investment portfolio
held by the Group and would only explore investment projects
with promising development potential in a prudent manner and

carefully assess investment opportunities in the market.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s tourism
development business recorded revenue of approximately
RMB138.2 million (2018: RMB138.8 million), representing a
decrease by 0.4% when compared with the corresponding year of
2018. Such slight decrease was mainly due to the implementation
of travel scheme for elderly and students in 2019 and no rime

scenery at Hengshan Mountain in December 2019.

This segment total assets increased from approximately RMB880.0
million as at 31 December 2018 to approximately RMB2,770.0
million as at 31 December 2019, representing an increase of
214.8%, mainly as a result of reclassification of equity interest
in Jade Bird Fire held by the Company as an associate under
investment holding business after the completion of the Proposed
A Share Listing of Jade Bird Fire. For the year ended 31 December
2019, a gain on disposal of approximately RMB7.5 million was
transferred to retained profits as a result of disposal of certain

financial assets held by the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

The Group’s tourism development segments continued to be the
core source of revenue from continuing operations. The Group’s
revenue and gross profit from continuing operations for the
year ended 31 December 2019 remained steady at approximately
RMB155.2 million (2018: RMB157.4 million) and approximately
RMB98.4 million (2018: RMB101.5 million) respectively. The
Group’s total operation expenses, including distribution costs,
administrative expenses and other expenses, remained steady at
approximately RMB55.7 million (2018: RMB63.2 million). Profit
attributable to the owners of the Company increased by 854.0%
to approximately RMB1,402.4 million (2018: RMB147.0 million),
because of the recognition of the gain on deemed disposal of
Jade Bird Fire of approximately RMBI1,348.4 million upon the
completion of the Proposed A Share Listing of Jade Bird Fire in
2019.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s financial position remained
solid and the Group’s current ratio (being ratio of current assets
and current liabilities) and the gearing ratio (being measured
by total interest-bearing debts to total equity), which are key
performance indicators of the Group’s short-term solvency
position and financial leverage, were 2.20 (2018: 2.49) and 9.8%
(2018: 8.5%) respectively. Increase in the gearing ratio was mainly
due to the raise of additional bank and other loans for business
operations and the recognition of lease liabilities of approximately
RMB70.0 million as a result of initial application of new financial

reporting standard regarding leases.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s main core businesses are subject to the several key
risks and uncertainties including, and among others, operating

risks and financial risks.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

o PHLE i e B 43

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (CONTINUED)

The Group faces several potential operational risks including
relaxation of the local authority’s policy to other service providers
to operate the shuttle bus service and the industrial policy risks.
If there is unfavorable adjustment of the local authority’s policy
and the industrial policies in relation to the tourism industry in
the PRC, there may have an adverse effect on the Group’s net
profit. The Board always monitors market situation in order to
react promptly over any potential risks. The Board meets and
discusses with directors of subsidiaries frequently to keep track of
their situations so that it can adjust segmental strategies timely.
The Group has already set out strategies including quality control
enhancement, stringent cost control and business diversification

to deal with different kinds of operational risks.

The Group also exposes to a variety of financial risks including
foreign currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and

interest rate risk.

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), US dollars (“USD”),
Canadian dollars (“CAD”), Euro (“EUR”) and Renminbi (“RMB”).
The Group does not formulate a foreign currency hedging policy
at present as turnover, most of the costs and operating expenses
are denominated in RMB and they are automatically hedged,
leaving limited currency risk. The Group closely monitors its
exposure and will take measures to lower foreign currency risk

when necessary.

The Group exposes to equity security price risk as listed equity
securities included in its financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income are measured at fair value. The
change in fair value of the listed securities will lead to the
fluctuation of fair value changes of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income included in the Group’s
total comprehensive income. The Group has not mitigated its

price risk arising from the listed equity securities.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (CONTINUED)

The Group exposes to certain credit risk coming from certain
financial assets held by the Group, which include time deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, and receivables. There was no
significant trade receivables as at 31 December 2019 after the
completion of the Proposed A Share Listing of Jade Bird Fire
in 2019. The Group’s tourism development segment mainly
generated fare revenue from environmental shuttle bus service
and the credit risk was low. Senior management of each subsidiary
reviews overdue balances regularly. The Group maintains
long-term cooperation with the customers and customer credit
is in good condition. The Group does not develop particular
policy to tackle credit risks from time deposits, and cash and
cash equivalents at present as the major counterparties are either

well-established or having high credit-rating.

The Group’s measure over liquidity is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient cash reserves to meet its liquidity requirements in short

and long term.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk arises from its bank
deposits and bank borrowings. The risk varies with the prevailing

market condition but is limited.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND COMPLIANCE
WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to maintaining the highest
environmental standards and strictly follows the applicable
environmental requirements imposed by the PRC government
in its production and operation. For the year under review, the
Group complied with influential laws relevant to waste gas or
greenhouse gas emissions, water or land discharging, hazardous
or non-hazardous wastes, and use of resources. The Group strives
to reduce destruction to the environment by saving energy and
encouraging recycle of office supplies. Besides, the environmental
buses operated by the Group are equipped with anti-smoking

devices and do not use heavy-duty diesel to reduce pollution.

The Group’s main core businesses are carried out by principal
subsidiaries in the PRC and the United States of America and the
Company was listed on the Stock Exchange in 2000. The Group
strictly complies with the relevant laws and regulations to ensure

sustainable development of its businesses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B PR W i B g3

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group’s customers mainly comprised of tourists and
pilgrims and the Group is committed to provide good-quality

environmental shuttle bus services to the customers.

The Group has a close and good relationship with key suppliers
in relation to the operation of the environmental shuttle bus
services. The Group strictly regulated procurement procedures in
relation to supplier evaluation and selection, and acceptance of
purchased products. In addition, there are a relatively a number
of suppliers in the market and relatively stable purchase prices

could be maintained.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

Upon the completion of the listing of shares of Jade Bird Fire
on the SME Board of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange on 9 August
2019, the equity interest of the Company in Jade Bird Fire was
diluted from 51.02% to 38.27% and the Group discontinued
its manufacture and sale of electronic fire equipment business.
Jade Bird Fire ceased to be a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company and became an associate of the Group during the year.
Details were disclosed in the announcements of the Company
dated 1 February 2013, 19 July 2019, 29 July 2019 and 8 August
2019, and the circular of the Company dated 27 February 2013.

Saved as disclosed herein this section, during the year ended 31
December 2019, the Group did not effect any material acquisitions
and disposals which would be required to be disclosed under the
GEM Listing Rules.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s major
operations were financed mainly by the internal financial
resources, by corporate borrowings and by net proceeds from
placing of new H shares of the Company in 2017. As at 31
December 2019, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB156.5 million, which were denominated mainly
in RMB, HK$ and USD.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had net assets of
approximately RMB3,075.4 million (2018: RMB2,650.4 million).
The Group had total outstanding borrowings of approximately
RMB231.7 million (2018: RMB225.7 million) which consisted of
secured bank loans of approximately RMB186.9 million (2018:
RMB225.7 million) and unsecured other loans of RMB 44.8
million (2018: Nil). The bank and other loans were denominated
in RMB and USD and bore interest rates ranging from nil to 7.2%

per annum.

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s outstanding number
of issued non-listed shares and H shares of RMB0.10 each were
700,000,000 shares and 678,720,000 shares respectively.

In respect of the placing completed on 6 February 2017 and
following the change of use of proceeds on 29 March 2018,
approximately 88% of net proceeds from the placing would be
applied to potential acquisitions and/or development of new
businesses; and approximately 12% of the net proceeds from
the placing would be applied as working capital of the Group.
Details of the above were disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 11 January 2017, 6 February 2017, 1 December
2017 and 29 March 2018. As at 31 December 2019, approximately
RMB103.9 million was applied to capital contribution to associates
and investment of the Company and payments for investments
of the Group; and approximately RMB13.9 million was applied
as working capital of the Group. All the net proceeds from the
placing have been fully utilised.

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2019, which is
measured by total interest-bearing debts to total equity, was 9.8%
(2018: 8.5%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B PR W i B g3

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

As at 31 December 2019, the Group held financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income of approximately
RMB108.9 million, representing 3.1% of the total assets of the
Group.

Saved as disclosed herein this section, for the year ended 31

December 2019, the Group had no significant investment held.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Saved as disclosed herein this section, the Group did not have any

significant investment plans as at 31 December 2019.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had contingent liabilities in the sum of approximately
RMB490 million in respect of guarantee for banking facilities

granted to associates of the Company.

Saved as disclosed above, the Group did not have any other

significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2019.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group is exposed to certain foreign currency risk as most
of its business activities, assets and liabilities are denominated in
USD, CAD, RMB, EUR and HK$. The Group has not formulated
a foreign currency hedging policy as turnover and most of the
production costs and operating expenses are denominated in
RMB and they are automatically matched, leaving limited currency
risk. The Group continues to monitor its foreign exchange
exposure and will take measures to lower the foreign currency risk

when necessary.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s certain fixed assets with
carrying amount of approximately RMB10.4 million (2018:
RMB107.5 million) and bank deposit of approximately RMBI1.2
million (2018: 5.0 million) were pledged as securities for the

Group’s bank loans.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group considers people as the valuable assets. The Directors
are of the view that the Group maintains good working relations
with its employees. The Group had workforce of 447 people
situated mainly in the PRC, Hong Kong and the United States
at the end of reporting year, down 83% since the end of 2018.
The overall decrease in workforce was mainly attributable to
the completion of the Proposed A Share Listing of Jade Bird
Fire, which ceased to be a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company during the year. The Group strictly complied with
applicable labour law and regulations. Competitive remuneration
package with medical and travel insurance are offered to the staff.
Adequate retirement funds and provident funds are contributed
on a timely basis. The Group emphasizes on working safety and
sets out proper safety guidelines and provides adequate training
to workers. Staffs are free to set up trade union according to
applicable laws while the supervisory committee of the Company
(the “Supervisory Committee”) had representative from the

workforce.

Director’s emoluments consist of fees, salaries and allowances, and
discretionary bonus determined according to the performance of

individual Director.

The Group’s staff costs, including directors’ emoluments,
employees’ salaries and retirement benefits scheme contribution
amounted to approximately RMB217.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 (2018: RMB269.1 million).
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Profile of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

FE - BRE AR MEZ B

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ni Jinlei, aged 52, was appointed as a non-executive Director
and the chairman of the Company on 30 June 2015 and
re-designated as an executive Director on 31 May 2018. Mr. Ni was
graduated from the Peking University with a Bachelor’s degree
in computer software in 1987. Mr. Ni was the computer software
engineer of Shenzhen Taiji Software Engineering Company,
manager of computer department of the securities exchange
center in Hainan, general manager of Guangzhou Nanfang Jade
Bird Information System Co., Ltd., senior manager of Integrated
Software and Device Corporation (USA), software architect of
ABB Energy Information System (USA), chief executive officer of
Beijing Beida-Online Network Co., Ltd., China regional director
(Young Learners’ English) of Global English Corporation,
founder and chief executive officer of Beijing Jinwenlang
Information Technology Co., Ltd.. Mr. Ni is currently a director
of Beida Jade Bird Universal Investments (HK) Limited, which is
the subsidiary of the Company and the chairman of Beijing Xizhi
Education Technology Co., Ltd..

Mr. Zhang Wanzhong, aged 58, is an executive Director and the
president of the Company. Mr. Zhang is primarily responsible
for overall development strategies and the fund and investment
management business of the Group. He was graduated from
Peking University with a Master’s degree in science. He worked in
several administrative departments of Peking University including
the vice president of the Remote Sensing and Geographic
Information System Department of Peking University which was
responsible for the State’s focal science and technological project.
Mr. Zhang is a director of Beida Jade Bird Universal Investments
(USA) Limited, Chuanqi Tourism Investment Co., Ltd. and
Beida Jade Bird Universal Investments (HK) Limited which are
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zhang is also a director of Jade

Bird Fire (an A share listed company in the PRC).

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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Profile of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

FH - BFARmREEZ N

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Ms. Zheng Zhong, aged 44, is an executive Director and the
compliance officer of the Company. Ms. Zheng was graduated
from the Molecular Biology Department of the School of Life
Sciences at Peking University in July 1997 and subsequently
obtained an MBA degree from the China Centre for Economic
Research at Peking University in July 2007. Ms. Zheng worked
for the Biological Engineering Centre under the Institute of
Chemical Metallurgy (now Institute of Process Engineering) at
Chinese Academy of Sciences, Department of Biology at Shenzhen
University and Shenzhen Kexing Bioproducts Co., Ltd.. She was
also an assistant to the president of SINOGEN (China) Investment
Company, assistant to the head of Genetics Research Institute
of the School of Life Sciences at Tsinghua University, president
of Beijing Beida-Online Network Co., Ltd., vice president of
Beida Culture Group, and assistant to president of Beijing Beida
Jade Bird Limited (“Beida Jade Bird”) and the general manager
overseeing major projects. She is currently an executive director
and general manager of Beijing Jade Bird Yuda Information
Technology Co., Ltd. which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. She is also a director and deputy general manager of
SBI-BDJB Investment Consultant Ltd..

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Xue Li, aged 61, was appointed as a non-executive Director
on 30 June 2015. Ms. Xue attended post-graduation level and is a
certified public accountant and a certified auditor in the PRC. Ms.
Xue is a member of the Chinese Communist Party. She was the
finance manager of finance department of Lenovo Group Limited,
the deputy general manager (finance) of Digital China (China)
Limited, the chief accountant and deputy general manager of
Xinda Real Estate Co., Ltd. (an A share listed company in the
PRC), and the supervisor of Xishui Strong Year Co., Ltd., Inner
Mongolia (an A share listed company in the PRC). She was the
executive Director during the period from 20 May 2009 to 21 June
2012. Ms. Xue is currently the acting chief executive officer, the
executive vice president and the financial controller of Beijing
Aptech Beida Jade Bird Information Technology Co., Ltd..
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Profile of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

FE - BRE AR MEZ B

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Xiang Lei, aged 68, was appointed as a non-executive Director
on 31 July 2017. Mr. Xiang was graduated from the Stony Brook
College of the State University of New York with a Master’s degree
in systems management. Mr. Xiang is a council member of the
China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation and a council member
of the Gonghe Foundation. Mr. Xiang was the manager of China
National Machinery Import and Export Corporation, senior
manager of East West Bank, chief representative of Giti Group’s
Beijing representative office, investment consultant of Donaldson,
Lufkin & Jenrette Securities Corporation, vice president of Beida
Jade Bird Group, director of Beijing Beihu Golf Club, and director
of Giti Group. Mr. Xiang is currently the director of Beijing
Jiuzhou Yahua Cultural Agency Company Limited and president of
Beida Jade Bird Group.

Mr. Ip Wing Wai, aged 41, was appointed as an executive Director
on 30 June 2015 and re-designated as a non-executive Director
on 31 May 2018. Mr. Ip holds a Bachelor degree in Business
Administration in Accounting from the The Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology. He is a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since 2004. Mr. Ip
possesses 18 years of experience in accounting, auditing and
corporate field. Mr. Ip worked in an international accounting
firm for auditing and Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited (a
listed company in Hong Kong) as an accounting manager. During
September 2006 to August 2008, Mr. Ip served as a finance
manager and company secretary in a Chinese coal investment
company. He was in charge of financial reporting, corporate
finance, merger and acquisition and company secretarial matters
and he also coordinated the audit work and due diligence work
of a transaction in selling the company’s interest in three coal
mines in Shanxi to Shougang Fushan Resources Group Limited
(“Shougang Fushan”) (a listed company in Hong Kong). He
then worked with Shougang Fushan as a senior finance manager
from September 2008 to March 2010. During the tenure, he was
mainly responsible for the group’s financial reporting, project
evaluation, regulatory compliance and investors relationship. Mr.
Ip is currently the company secretary of Huili Resources (Group)
Limited (a listed company in Hong Kong) and the vice president
of King Stone Energy Group Limited (a listed company in Hong

Kong) mainly responsible for merger and acquisition.
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Profile of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

FH - BFARmREEZ N

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Shao Jiulin, aged 57, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Shao is a graduate of Zhongnan University of
Finance and Economics and a member of the Chinese Communist
Party. Mr. Shao is a senior accountant, certified accountant and
certified tax agent in the PRC. He was the head of the finance
division and chief accountant of Wuhan Light Industry Fire
Retardant Materials Manufacturing Company, general manager of
Hubei Daxin CPA Co., Ltd. and independent director of Weifang
Beida Jade Bird Huaguang Technology Co., Ltd. (an A share
listed company in the PRC) and SINOPEC Wuhan Petroleum
Group Co., Ltd.. He is currently the vice president of China Qinlu
Industrial Development Co., Ltd..

Mr. Li Juncai, aged 58, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Li was graduated from the Geology Department of
Peking University in July 1983. Mr. Li is a member of the China
Democratic League. He is a senior engineer of geological and
mineral resources, certified appraiser of mining concession and
certified valuer of real estate. He was an assistant to the head of
the Fourth Geological Survey Department under the Jilin Bureau
of Geology, deputy general manager of Tonghua Dongbao Import
& Export Co., Ltd., general manager of Tonghua Asia Shopping
Centre under the Fourth Geological Survey Department under
the Jilin Bureau of Geology, manager of the mining concession
appraisal division of Jilin Dadi CPA Co., Ltd., and the deputy
general manager and principal mining concession appraiser of
Wuhan Tiandiyuan Consultant and Appraisal Ltd.. He is currently
the chairman of Heilongjiang Province Huan Cheng Mineral

Resources Appraisal and Consultant Ltd..

Mr. Li Chonghua, aged 64, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 30 June 2015. Mr. Li is a member of
the Chinese Communist Party. He is a post-graduate, qualified
as economist, and holds a practicing certificate of securities
practitioner. He was the deputy chief economist, the director
of the integrated plan unit and the director of reformation of
Beijing Chemical Second Plant. He was the board secretary and
the director of securities department of Beijing Chemical Second
Plant Co., Ltd.. He was seconded to listed company regulatory

department of China Securities Regulatory Commission.
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FE - BRE AR MEZ B

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Mr. Shen Wei, aged 57, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 31 May 2018, Mr. Shen was graduated
from the department of precision instruments of the Tsinghua
University with a Bachelor’s degree in engineering in 1985. Mr.
Shen co-founded “CIWEEK” and served as the first chief editor
in 1998, who has made contribution to the enlightenment
and development of internet in the PRC. He then co-founded
the website, namely “eNet” and Yinhe Liandong Information
Technology Company, and has extensive experience in internet
strategy, products and operations. Mr. Shen has dozens of
patented inventions in the field of two-dimensional code
technology. In 2015, Mr. Shen established Beijing Dama
Technology Co., Ltd. to focus on the application of innovative QR
code technology, especially the basic technology and application
in the field of secure QR code and multi-screen interaction.
Mr. Shen has worked for Beijing Institute of Optoelectronics
Technology, Beijing office of East Asiatic Company, Beijing
Changwei Technology Development Co., Ltd., CIWEEKLY, Yinhe
Liandong Information Technology Company, Beijing Huayu
Xinma Technology Co., Ltd., etc.. He is currently the founder and
chief executive officer of Beijing Dama Technology Co., Ltd..

CHIEF SCIENTIST

Professor Wang Yangyuan, aged 86, was appointed as the
Chief Scientist of the Company in May 2000. Professor Wang is
responsible for overall technological research and development
and monitoring the investment in Semiconductor Manufacturing

International Corporation.

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Fan Yimin, aged 62, is the chairman of the Supervisory
Committee. Mr. Fan was graduated from Zhejiang University with
a bachelor’s degree in Chinese language in 1981. Mr. Fan worked
in the liaison office of the people’s government of Zhejiang
Province, Zhejiang Foreign Trade Company and Zhejiang Qujiang
Industrial Company. He is currently a member of the management
committee of Lingyin Temple in Hangzhou, president of
Hangzhou Branch of the School of Chinese Culture and an

executive president of Beida Jade Bird.
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SUPERVISORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Ouyang Zishi, aged 64, was appointed as an independent
Supervisor on 30 June 2015. Mr. Ouyang worked for Beijing
Pastry Factory, the Association of Culture and Arts in Beijing, the
Audiovisual Press of the Bureau of Culture in Beijing and the
Beijing Television. Mr. Ouyang was the director and producer of “
K& K E”, a TV series, and the column director and producer of “
TR K, a TV program. Mr. Ouyang is currently the executive
director and the legal representative of Beijing Evercare Shichiku

Medical Beauty Clinic Company Limited.

Mr. Pan Yudong, aged 50, was appointed as a Supervisor on 31
May 2018, Mr. Pan is a senior engineer (professor level), and was
graduated from department of computer science and technology
of Tsinghua University with a Bachelor’s degree in engineering in
July 1990. He has worked for Taiji Computer Company, Shenzhen
Taiji Software Company, Taiji-DEC Software Center, Beijing
Tiankeyi Technology Co., Ltd., Taiji United Laboratories of
Ministry of Information Industry, Beijing Hengdefang Company,
Anshi Internet Security (China) Co., Ltd., Beijing Qiming
Xingchen Information Security Technology Co., Ltd., Beijing
Yongxin Zhicheng Technology Co., Ltd., etc.. Mr. Pan is currently
the senior vice president of Harbin Antiy Technology Group Co.,

Ltd. and the executive Director of China Computer Federation.

Ms. Dong Xiaoqing, aged 50, was appointed as a Supervisor on
31 May 2018, Ms. Dong is a senior human resource professional
and joined Beida Jade Bird in March 1999 who was responsible
for human resources management. Ms. Dong was transferred to
the Company as the head of human resources in June 2000. She
has 19 years of experience in human resources management for
information technology companies, and is familiar with national
labor laws and regulations and human resource management

theory with practical experience.

Ms. Zhou Min, aged 44, is a Supervisor. Ms. Zhou was graduated
from the Department of Administration Management of Renmin
University of China with a Bachelor’s degree in Laws. She
obtained a Master’s degree in economics from the University
of International Business and Economics in 2005. Ms. Zhou
joined Beida Jade Bird in July 1999 and subsequently joined
the Company in March 2000. She is primarily responsible for
administration and human resources of the Company. She is the

employee representative of the Supervisory Committee.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Chi Hung, aged 44, is the financial controller and
company secretary of the Company. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor
degree in Business Administration in Accounting from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology. Mr. Chan has over 22
years of experience in finance, accounting, company secretarial
and compliance areas and worked for international accounting
firms and listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified

Accountants. Mr. Chan joined the Group in September 2012.

Mr. Wang Xingye, aged 43, attended master post-graduation level.
Mr. Wang has worked in Beida Jade Bird. He is currently the
managing director of Beijing Jade Bird Hengsheng Investment
Management Co., Ltd., an executive director and the general
manager of Beijing Jade Bird Dingsheng Investment Management
Co., Ltd., a director of Enraytek Optoelectronics, a director of
Ningbo Jade Bird Zhengyuan Equity Investment Management Co.,
Ltd., a director of Ningbo Jade Bird Venture Capital Investment
Co., Ltd., an executive director and general manager of Ningbo
Jade Bird Liyuantai Venture Capital Management Co., Ltd, the
chairman of the supervisory committee of Shengyang Public
Utility Holdings Company Limited (a listed company in Hong
Kong) and a director of Jade Bird Fire (a A share listed company
in the PRC). Mr. Wang joined the Company in March 2000 and is
the secretary to the Board and the chairman of the labor union of

the Company.

Mr. Hu Lushan, aged 53, attended post-graduation level. Mr.
Hu is a senior accountant, and holds the certificate of senior
accountant, the certificate of senior tax agent and the certificate
of Certified Management Accountant (CMA). He has worked in
Beijing Building Materials Millstone Factory of Beijing Building
Materials Group as the accountant, the chief accountant and
the finance director; Beijing Yiheng Decoration Design Co., Ltd.
as the finance manager; and Beijing Northern Electric Power
Engineering Co., Ltd of the China Electricity Council as the
finance manager. Mr. Hu joined the Company in June 2001 and is

the person in charge of finance department of the Company.
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The Directors hereby present their annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and

the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is engaged in the marketing and sale of embedded
system products and related products during the year. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements. Further discussion and analysis
of business review of these activities, including a description of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an
indication of likely future development in the Group’s business,
can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis set out
on pages 6 to 15 of this annual report. Such discussion forms part

of this report of the Directors.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set

out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 87 to 88.
The state of affairs of the Group and the Company at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 89
to 90 and note 37(a) to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
(2018: Nil) for the year.

No interim dividend was declared in 2019 (2018: Nil).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years is set out on page 4. This summary does not form part of the

audited consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 19 to the consolidated

financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set

out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.
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BANK LOANS

Details of the bank loans of the Group are set out in note 33 to

the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles
of association of the Company (the “Articles”) or the Company
Law of the PRC which oblige the Company to offer new shares on

a pro rata basis to its existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out
in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements and in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, an amount of approximately RMB562.5
million (2018: RMB562.5 million) standing to the credit of
the Company’s capital reserve account and an amount of
approximately RMB76.8 million (2018: RMB76.8 million)
standing to the credit of the Company’s statutory reserve funds, as
determined under the PRC accounting standards and regulations,
were available for distribution by way of future capitalisation
issue in accordance with the PRC Company Law. The Company
had, as described in note 37(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, retained profits of approximately RMB21.4 million
(2018: RMB36.9 million) as at 31 December 2019. Details of the
distributable reserves are set out in note 38 to the consolidated

financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, revenue from sales
of goods or rendering of services attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers and purchases from the Group’s five largest
suppliers were less than 30% of the total sales total purchases

from continuing operations for the year respectively.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
(CONTINUED)

The Group has sold certain products to related companies
controlled by Peking University. Details of transactions are set
out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements. Save as
aforesaid, none of the Directors or any of their associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and

suppliers.

DONATIONS

The Group had made donations of RMB120,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: RMB540,000).

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Directors and Supervisors during the year and at the year end

are:

Mr. Ni Jinlei
Mr. Zhang Wanzhong
Ms. Zheng Zhong

Ms. Xue Li
Mr. Xiang Lei
Mr. Ip Wing Wai

Mr. Shao Jiulin
Mr. Li Juncai

Mr. Li Chonghua
Mr. Shen Wei

Mr. Fan Yimin

Mr. Ouyang Zishi
Mr. Pan Yudong
Ms. Dong Xiaoqing
Ms. Zhou Min

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles, all Directors and

Supervisors are eligible for re-election.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Profile of Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the

Group are set out on pages 16 to 22.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors and Supervisors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years commencing
on 31 May 2018.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or Supervisors has
any existing or proposed service contracts with the Company as at
31 December 2019, excluding contracts expiring or determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without

payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors the written annual confirmation of its
independence pursuant to rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company, based on such confirmation, considers all of the

independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS
IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement and contract of significance to which
the Company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or Supervisor of
the Company had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the

year or at any time during the year.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Saved as disclosed under the section “Connected transactions”
below, there is no material contract between the Group and the

controlling shareholder or its subsidiaries during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company

were entered into or existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests (including interests in
shares and short positions) of Directors, Supervisors, and chief
executives of the Company in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO”)), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to rule 5.46 of the
GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (CONTINUED)

Note:

The above Director and Supervisor are taken to be interested in the
issued share capital of the Company through their respective interests as
beneficiaries, among other beneficiaries, of Heng Huat trust (“Heng Huat
Trust”). By a declaration of Heng Huat Trust made as a deed on 19 July
2000, Mr. Xu Zhendong, Mr. Zhang Wanzhong and Ms. Liu Yue (who has
been replaced by Mr. Xu Zhixiang since 9 May 2003 as a trustee) declared
that they held the shares of Heng Huat Investments Limited (“Heng
Huat”) as trustees for the benefits of over 300 employees of Beijing Beida
Jade Bird Software System Co., Ltd. (“Jade Bird Software”), Beida Jade
Bird and Beijing Beida Yu Huan Microelectronics System Engineering Co.,
Ltd. and their respective subsidiaries and associated companies and the
Company. Heng Huat is beneficially interested in the entire issued share
capital of Dynamic Win Assets Limited (“Dynamic Win”), and is taken to
be interested in 205,414,000 shares of the Company which Dynamic Win is
interested. Mr. Xu Zhendong, Mr. Zhang Wanzhong and Mr. Xu Zhixiang
(who replaced Ms. Liu Yue as a trustee on 9 May 2003 upon Ms. Liu Yue’s
resignation as a trustee on the same date) are trustees holding 60, 20
and 20 shares out of 100 shares in the issued share capital of Heng Huat.
Each of Mr. Xu Zhendong and Mr. Xu Zhixiang was former Director who
resigned on 5 May 2015.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, Supervisors and
chief executives of the Company had registered an interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
or any of its associated corporations that was required to be
recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to rule
5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules as at 31 December 2019.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in the Company granted to
any Director and Supervisor or their respective spouse or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors and Supervisors to acquire such rights in any other body

corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2019, the following interests and short positions
of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded in the
register of interests required to be maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the

Report of the Directors
R

2 B R B At N\ 0 M B A B M
Yr 2 HE i B 8

RoE—SEF A= —H > REEEK
B AR 55 336 14K 8 AR A R ZE A 1 2 M 2
SO > RO Bk T SR R BT AR 22 M A
BARFT

A2 ) 3 e B R B B A 2 5 R

Company
Approximate
percentage  Approximate Approximate
of the issued percentage of  percentage
Number of ~ Number of ~ Number of non-isted the issued  of the issued
non-listed H Shares Shares Shares H Shares Shares
Shares held held held gt gt ot
Name of shareholder Note  Capacity fifi kLl FHHR HERG LWk Hi i fi
T % Mak Sk Bt A %A BH  MAEAL BMAEAK  BOEAK
Peking University (a)  Interest of controlled corporation 200,000,000 - 200,000,000 28.57% - 14.50%
TEkE TrERER
Beida Asset Management (a)  Interest of controlled corporation 200,000,000 - 200,000,000 28.57% - 14.50%
Co., Ltd. ZEEM
TkEEgERRAR
Beijing Beida Jade Bird (a)  Interest of controlled corporation 200,000,000 - 200,000,000 98.57% - 14.50%
Software System Co., Ltd. ZHEAER
EFARFERRAREARAA
Beijing Beida Jade Bird (a)  Beneficial owner 115,000,000 - 115,000,000 16.43% - 8.34%
Limited L2 Z:IN
EREKERARERAR
Beida Microelectronics (a)  Interest of controlled corporation 85,000,000 - 85,000,000 12.14% - 6.16%
Investment Limited Sk A
EAMEFREHRAF
Sanya Jade Bird Youfu Jidi (a)  Interest of controlled corporation 85,000,000 - 85,000,000 12.14% - 6.16%
Construction Service Co., THEEER
Ltd
B0 (850
BARBEARAT
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS

IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

(CONTINUED)

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the

Company (Continued)

2 BB R B At N R JB By B R B M
Y 2 HE i Je 8 A (#)

A% 2 i) U 5 B B AH B B 2 4 A (4D

Approximate
percentage  Approximate

of the issued percentage of

Approximate

percentage

Number of ~ Number of ~ Number of non-listed the issued  of the issued
non-listed H Shares Shares Shares H Shares Shares
Shares held held held C#fr C#f g
Name of shareholder Note  Capacity R N fHHHR  SERG REWRG Hit fefr
i3 A Wak Sk Bt #H #H BH  MAEAL  BARAK  BARLN
Haikou Jade Bird Yuanwang (a)  Beneficial owner 85,000,000 - 85,000,000 12.14% - 6.16%
Sci-Tech Development Co., -2 Z:DN
Ltd
BOEREERHERARAR
Grand East (HK.) Limited Beneficial owner 110,000,000 - 110,000,000 15.71% - 7.98%
a8 (B k) HRAT HafAA
Heng Huat Investments (b)  Interest of controlled corporation 205,414,000 - 205,414,000 29.34% - 14.90%
Limited SHEEER
Dynamic Win Assets Limited (b)  Beneficial owner 205,414,000 - 205,414,000 29.34% - 14.90%
YBEEHRAA EREAA
Mongolia Energy () Interest of controlled corporation 84,586,000 - 84,586,000 12.08% - 6.15%
Corporation Limited ZHEEEG
FHRRARAA
New View Venture Limited (C) Beneficial owner 84,586,000 - 84,586,000 12.08% - 6.13%
EREHA
Asian Technology Investment Beneficial owner 50,000,000 50,000,000 7.14% - 3.63%
Company Limited 575 DN
S B A TR
Sun Hung Kai Structured Person having a security interest in - 38,117,000 38,117,000 - 5.61% 2.76%
Finance Limited shares
R EREHRAR BERGEAES 2 AL

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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R

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER 3 BB R e At N\ A B B hH B Bt
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS tr Z BE # B iR A (%)

IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

(CONTINUED)

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the A 2y ) ¥ 3 e B A B e A 2 4 R (4

Company (Continued)

Approximate
percentage  Approximate Approximate
of the issued percentage of  percentage

Number of ~ Number of ~ Number of non-listed the issued  of the issued

non-listed H Shares Shares Shares H Shares Shares
Shares held held held CH#fT C#f CRAT
Name of shareholder Note Capacity WAL HHHK WARE kLR Hlt B b
e e Wik Sh Bt ¥ H %A HH  BAEAR BAAAL HAEAR
Shipshape Investments Limited ~ (d)  Interest in controlled corporation - 817,000 38,117,000 - 5.61% 2.76%
ZHEAES
Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited ~ (d)  Interest in controlled corporation - 38117,000 38,117,000 - 5.61% 2.76%
AR LA gty Lk
Allied Properties (H.K.) (d)  Interest in controlled corporation - 38,117,000 38,117,000 - 5.61% 9.76%
Limited ZEL AR
B (k) ARAF
Allied Group Limited (d)  Interest in controlled corporation - 38117,000 38,117,000 - 5.61% 2.76%
BAREARAT SRR
Lee Seng Hui (d)  Interest in controlled corporation - 38117,000 38,117,000 - 5.61% 2.76%
TN FHEmEL
Lee Su Hwei (d)  Interest in controlled corporation - 38117,000 38,117,000 - 5.61% 2.76%
Lee Seng Huang (d)  Interest in controlled corporation - 38117,000 38,117,000 - 5.61% 2.76%
B SRS
Notes: B 5 -
(a) Peking University is taken to be interested in 14.50% of the (a)  dbEKEYHEABIE T INF > HEHAARN A
total issued share capital of the Company through the following E B T A A #14.50% 1 35 ¢
companies:
(i) 115 million non-listed Shares (representing approximately (i) LI5ME B IE BTGy (I AN 7 ot
8.34% of the Company’s total issued share capital) held by AT A 40 8 498.34% ) M b K& B 15
Beida Jade Bird, which is 46% beneficially owned by Jade Bird oMt kEEHE BRI TS
Software. Jade Bird Software is 48% beneficially owned by 46% > T S W i AL R B 2 R
Beida Asset Management Co., Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary NEdL K EE G AR AT
of Peking University; 48%

AU IR BB TR R A PR A
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(ii) 85 million non-listed Shares (representing approximately
6.16% of the Company’s total issued share capital) in which
Haikou Jade Bird Yuanwang Sci-Tech Development Co., Ltd.
(“Haikou Jade Bird”) is interested. Jade Bird Software owns
100% equity interest in Beida Microelectronics Investment
Limited which in turn owns 46% equity interest in Sanya Jade
Bird Youfu Jidi Construction Service Co., Ltd which in turn

owns 100% equity interest in Haikou Jade Bird; and

(iii) Mr. Zhang Wanzhong is a supervisor of Beida Jade Bird.

(b) The non-listed Shares are held by Dynamic Win, which is
beneficially wholly-owned by Heng Huat. Please refer to the note to
the section “Directors, Supervisors’ and chief executives’ interests
and short positions in shares and underlying shares” above for

further details of Heng Huat.

(c) The non-listed Shares are held by New View Venture Limited,
which is wholly-owned by Mongolia Energy Corporation Limited.

(d) Sun Hung Kai Structured Finance Limited was a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Shipshape Investments Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited, which in turn was a non
whollyowned subsidiary of Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited. Allied
Properties (H.K.) Limited was a non wholly owned subsidiary
of Allied Group Limited in which Lee Seng Hui, Lee Su Hwei
and Lee Seng Huang were the trustees of Lee and Lee Trust,
being a discretionary trust. The Lee and Lee Trust controlled
approximately 74.95% of the total number of issued shares of
Allied Group Limited (inclusive of Lee Seng Hui’s personal
interests) as at 31 December 2019. Accordingly, all these parties
were deemed to have the same long position as Sun Hung Kai

Structured Finance Limited.

Save as disclosed above, no person, other than the Directors and
Supervisors, whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’,
Supervisors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions in
shares and underlying shares” above, had registered interests or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO as at 31 December 2019.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 6 September 2019, Chuanqi Tourism, a direct non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the sale and
purchase agreement (the “Agreement”) with Chuanqi (Hunan)
Enterprise Development Co., Ltd. (“Chuanqi Enterprise”), an
associate of the Group and a connected person of the Company,
to acquire a building under construction situated at Tianzhishan
Nanyue Legend Town, Nanyue District, Hengyang, Hunan, the
PRC at the consideration of RMB39,655,700 for administrative
and office use. Details were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 6 September 2019. As the project completion and
acceptance procedures for the building has not been completed
in accordance with the Agreement, the Agreement has terminated
automatically.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the related party
transactions as disclosed in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements do not constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules, which are required to comply with any of the
reporting, announcement or independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors and Supervisors
and their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules) had interests in a business which competes or may compete
with the businesses of the Group, or may have any conflicts of
interest with the Group pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group strictly complies with applicable labour law and
regulations both in the PRC and Hong Kong. Competitive
remuneration package with medical and travel insurance offered
to the staff. Adequate retirement fund and provident fund are
contributed timely.

The emolument policy of the Directors is structured by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to their functions and
contributions to the Group.

Details of retirement benefit schemes of the Group are set out in
note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the GEM Listing Rules.
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DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 17.24 OF THE GEM
LISTING RULES

As at

31 December 2019, the aggregate amount of financial

assistance provided by the Group to its affiliated companies,

inclu
comp

to ba

ding (i) shareholder’s loan provided to an affiliated
any; and (ii) guarantees provided by the Group in relation
nk facilities of its affiliated companies is RMB523,400,000

in total, which exceeds 8% in the asset ratio as defined under
rule 19.07(1) of the GEM Listing Rules. Details on the financial

assistance and guarantee as at 31 December 2019 are set out

below:

M IRGEM_L 1 81 I 58 17.24 05 ) 1% 22

¥k}

R OE-RET A= H o AEE RS
T W >\ 0 BA S B > ARG () 4Rt T
J& 0N F 2 AR s (i) A S G A
A ZRATRVE TR 2 IR G LS A A
K #523,400,0007C > #BGEM I 7 # HIl 265
19.07() T A E M EFE LR 28% - i —&F
—NEFT A=+ BB R RIER
FETEANE -

Aggregate
Amount of
Financial

Assistance and

Guarantee
it ¥ & B
Name of Affiliated Company Note P g PR 8
6t J&§ 2 ] 4 Pt R Z B
Changsha Songya Lake Construction Investment Co., Ltd. (“Songya Lake Construction”)
1= VDA HE 18 e B A A RS ) (AR HE B8 e e ) 1 233,400
Chuangqi Enterprise
PR 2 190,000
Jade Bird Fire
GRaAGLY] 3 100,000
523,400
Notes: Wi 3
1. The amount includes (i) a guarantee of RMB200,000,000 to two 1. SREATE ()AL ) 1 A AR AT AR AR N R
banks by the Company; and (ii) an interest-free and unsecured MeAR LB 5 KRG AN A Z R EHEA
shareholder’s loan of RMB33,400,000 from Chuangi Tourism, A i A e A 3 A R A LR 3,340
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company to Songya Lake TS RS O BOR R - TR SR AT )
Construction. The total amount of the facilities from the two banks A T 0 R A 1 B AR 2 N R .86
to Songya Lake Construction is RMB786,000,000. JG ©
2. The amount includes a guarantee of RMB190,000,000 to a bank by 2. A5 R B A AR T AR 1) — [T RAT R AR N R
Chuangi Tourism. The total amount of the facilities from the bank LOMETTHEDR o 6% 84T ) (35 B 2E R o Bl
to Chuanqi Enterprise is RMB190,000,000. M ANRFLAME T -
3. The amount includes a guarantee of RMB100,000,000 to a bank 3. AL AR A ) — [ R ATER I L R
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by the Company. The total amount of the facilities from the
bank to Jade Bird Fire is RMB100,000,000. Jade Bird Fire, a
former subsidiary of the Company, became an associate upon the
completion of the listing of its shares on the SME Board of the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange in August 2019.
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DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 17.24 OF THE GEM
LISTING RULES (CONTINUED)

The audited combined statement of financial position of
the above affiliated companies and the Group’s attributable
interests in the above affiliated companies based on its audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019 prepared in accordance with the generally accepted
accounting principles in the PRC, adjusted for any differences in

accounting policies, are presented below:

Report of the Directors
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Combined Group’s

statement of attributable

financial position interests

5 OF B4 %51k DL % A £ [ A BE 23

RMB’000 RMB’000

N BT IN:Y ST

Assets % 7,627,100 2,511,967

Liabilities i=Fi= (4.493.878) (1.347.399)

Net assets EE 3,133,222 1,164,568
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD e 5 W 1% B 0H

Details of significant events after reporting period of the Group

are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDEND POLICY
Under the policy on payment of dividends adopted by the

Company, the Company may declare and distribute dividends to
the Shareholders to allow Shareholders to share the Company’s
profits and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for
future growth. The payment of any dividend shall be determined
or recommended, as appropriate, by the Board at its absolute
discretion after taking into account the Group’s financial results,
prospects, the level of the debts and equity ratio, liquidity and
capital requirement and other factors that the Board considers
relevant, and subject to the Articles, the requirements of the
GEM Listing Rules and all relevant applicable laws, rules and
regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate governance report of the Company is set out on pages

39 to 52 of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

Environmental, social and governance report of the Company is

set out on pages 53 to 79 of this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2019 and
up to the date of this report, there was or is, any permitted
indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of any of the
Directors or an associate company. The Company has arranged
appropriate insurance cover for Directors’, Supervisors’ and
senior management’s liabilities in respect of legal actions against
its Directors, Supervisors and senior management arising out of

corporate activities.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

On 22 November 2019, RSM Hong Kong (“RSM”) has resigned
as the auditor of the Company, as the Company and RSM have
not been able to reach an agreement in relation to the auditor’s
remuneration for the financial year ended 31 December 2019.
BDO Limited (“BDO”) was appointed as the auditor of the
Company on 22 November 2019 to fill the casual vacancy
following the resignation of RSM and to hold the office as auditor
until the conclusion of the 2019 annual general meeting of the
Company to be held in 2020.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by BDO
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment

at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Ni Jinlei

Chairman

Beijing, the PRC
30 March 2020
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Report of the Supervisory Committee

To the Shareholders:

We have monitored the operation and management of the
Group as well as the act of the Directors and senior management
faithfully throughout the year ended 31 December 2019. We have
discharged our supervisory duties under the general principle
of honesty and integrity and have strictly complied with the
requirements of the “Company Law of the PRC”, the GEM Listing
Rules and the Articles. We are accountable to the Shareholders
and have safeguarded the interests of the Shareholders, the Group
and its staff.

The Supervisors during the year and up to the date of this report

are as follows:

Mr. Fan Yimin

Mr. Ouyang Zishi
Mr. Pan Yudong
Ms. Dong Xiaoqing
Ms. Zhou Min

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles, all Supervisors

are eligible for re-election.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, we have held and four
meetings of the seventh session. The following table set out the

attendance of each member in these meetings:

B3

B LR

BWE_F—-NETHA=ZT—HIEFEE > &
BRI BEREALEEZEERE D
T # S B AR G 2 KB o AR B
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i TR
HEEE Lt
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Attendance

i

Name 4 A Seventh Session
Bt

Mr. Fan Yimin Ww—RgEA 4/4
Mr. Ouyang Zishi Bk 5 1 A1 5B E 4/4
Mr. Pan Yudong i R 4/4
Ms. Dong Xiaoqing B & 4/4
Ms. Zhou Min Jch + 4/4
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Report of the Supervisory Committee

EHGgRY

We convened the four meetings to review the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018, the three months ended 31 March 2019, the six months
ended 30 June 2019 and the nine months ended 30 September
2019, respectively.

Subsequent to the year end, we convened the eighth meeting of
the seventh session to review the annual results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

As a result of the work done above, we are in a position to express

our independent opinion in respect of the following matters:

1.  The first, second and third quarterly results and annual
results of the Group for 2019 have reflected the financial
and operating positions of the Group on a true and fair

basis.

2. The senior management of the Group has not abused their
authority to prejudice the interests of the Shareholders, the
Group and its staff, nor contravened the laws and regulations

and the Articles in discharging its duties.

3. The Group was not threatened with any major litigation
nor was there any matter that we had intervened with or

threatened against the Board.

4.  The connected transactions of the Group were fair and
reasonable. No act prejudicing the interests of the Group has

been identified.

We would like to express our appreciation for the strenuous
supports given by the Shareholders, the Directors and all staff to

our work during the year.

BY ORDER OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Fan Yimin

Chairman

Beijing, the PRC
30 March 2020
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Corporate Governance Report

FRAMEWORK

The Company developed a set of documents with reference to
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules to govern its corporate
practice.

The documents are as follows:

1. Code on the Corporate Governance;

2. Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by Directors of

the Company (the “Securities Code”);

3. Duties of the Board of Directors;

4.  Segregation of Duties between the Chairman and the

President;

5. Board Diversity Policy;

6.  Disciplinary Rules of the Company;

7. Term of Reference on the Audit Committee;
8. Term of Reference on the Remuneration Committee;
9. Term of Reference on the Nomination Committee; and

10.  Written Guidelines for Relevant Employees in respect of

their Dealings in the Securities of the Company.

The Board is of the view that the Company has complied with all
the code provisions of the CG Code during the year ended 31
December 2019.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Securities Code on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. All Directors as well as
employees who are likely to be in possession of inside information
are governed by the Securities Code. Having made specific
enquiries, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the Securities Code all over the year ended 31 December 2019.
The Company is not aware of any employee who does not comply

with the Securities Code.
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Corporate Governance Report
ERBRE L

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders. Detail
responsibilities of the Board are laid down on the Articles. Major

duties include:

1.  convening Shareholders’ meeting and reporting work of the
Board to Shareholders;

2. execution of resolution passed in Shareholders’ meeting;
3. deciding business plan and investment proposal;
4. formulation plans for change in registered capital and

issuance of bond;

5. formulation of major merger and acquisition plan and

disposal plan;

6.  formulation of job segregation and dissolution plan for the

Company if necessary;

7. employment and dismissal of general manager; and

8. formulation proposal for amendment to the Articles.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions such as developing and reviewing the
Company’s policies, practices on corporate governance; reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management and the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and

regulatory requirements; etc.

All Directors are free to access to corporate information for the
purpose of discharging their duties and responsibilities. They
may seek independent professional advice if necessary at the
Company’s cost. All Directors have unrestricted access to the

company secretary and senior management of the Company.

The Board delegated the management team with the
responsibilities for the day-to-day management, administration

and operation of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report
e L a0

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED) R (H)

As at 31 December 2019, the composition of the seventh session of WNEE—JET+ A =T—H  FLE#HES
the Board is as follows: FLHEBHAFWT

Date of first Date of latest

Name Position Gender Age  appointment re-election
LR/ 23 i

k4 5 i 5 B BREH M B A M

Ni Jinlei Executive Director, Chairman M5 52 30/6/2015 31/5/2018

fi e & WS- LK

Zhang Wanzhong Executive Director, President MH 58 16/3/2000 31/5/2018

ok B WirEs - AR

Zheng Zhong Executive Director Fi 44 21/6/2012 31/5/2018

& wiES

Xue Li Non-executive Director i 61 20/5/2009 31/5/2018

[ FfTES

Xiang Lei Non-executive Director M# 68 31/7/2017 31/5/2018

HE FofTER

Ip Wing Wai Non-executive Director M% 41 30/6/2015 31/5/2018

£ 3,31 FMATES

Shao Jiulin Independent non-executive Director M# 57 21/6/2012 31/5/2018

AR LR WL AT EH

Li Juncai Independent non-executive Director M# 58 21/6/2012 31/5/2018

BRA B R ESR

Li Chonghua Independent non-executive Director M 64 30/6/2015 31/5/2018

LR B s R

Shen Wei Independent non-executive Director M# 57 31/5/2018 N/ANH

W4 WL AT E

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other e R B 0O 22 (B AT o] A S~ SETE
material/relevant relationship with each other. LB S3CH At = R AH B AR

Profiles of the Directors are detailed on pages 16 to 20 of this PR R R AR 16 H 2520 H o

annual report.
All Directors were appointed for a term of three years starting EERE AN AH —F—JLFEAH

from 31 May 2019. All Directors are eligible for re-election. S —HBFZF AEERY A YR ER
HAT -

CE U AORAER T BRSO A TR A R
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Corporate Governance Report
o SR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

In compliance with rules 5.05(1) and (2), and 5.05A of the GEM
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed four independent
non-executive Directors, at least one of whom has appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
expertise. Each independent non-executive Director has
confirmed to the Company in respect of his independence
pursuant to rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules by way of an
annual confirmation for the year ended 31 December 2019. The
Company continues to consider all independent non-executive

Directors to be independent.

Pursuant to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The division
of responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive
should be clearly established and set out in writing. To ensure a
balance of power and authority, the roles of the chairman and the
president of the Company are segregated and performed by Mr.
Ni Jinlei and Mr. Zhang Wanzhong respectively.

The Board convened 7 meetings during the year. Apart from
approval of 2019 quarterly and 2018 annual results, the Company
convened meetings and passed resolutions mainly to consider and
approve the proposed amendments of the Articles, the change of
auditor and ordinary businesses of the Company. The Company
notifies the Directors with sufficient time in advance and provides
them with detailed agenda and sufficient information before each
Board meeting and sub-committee meeting. The Company gives at
least 15 days advance notice before each regular Board meeting.
Individual attendance records of each Director at the respective
Board and sub-committee meetings are set out in the table on

page 46 of this annual report.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance for all
Directors, Supervisors and certain management. No claims were
raised during the year against potential legal action arising from

their jobs.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. For the year ended 31 December 2019, all Directors have
participated in appropriate continuous professional development
activities by attending training courses on the topic related to role
of independent non-executive directors in corporate governance,

and environmental, social and governance reporting.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board established 3 committees to carry out certain duties.
They are the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of the

Company.

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the requirements as
set out in the GEM Listing Rules. The Audit Committee is
accountable to the Board. Its primary duties include monitoring
the financial reporting system and risk management and internal
control systems of the Group, reviewing financial information,
and advising the Board on engagement and independence of

independent auditors.

The Audit Committee currently comprises four independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Shao Jiulin, Mr. Li Juncai, Mr. Li
Chonghua and Mr. Shen Wei. Mr. Shao Jiulin is the chairman of
the Audit Committee.

During the year, the Audit Committee had convened 7 meetings
to review the three 2019 quarterly results and 2018 annual results
of the Group and issues in respect of annual audits for 2019,
and the change of auditor and the connected transactions of the

Company.
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ERBRE L

BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements as
set out in the GEM Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee
is accountable to the Board. It is mainly responsible for advising
the Board on remuneration policy of the Board itself and senior
management, advising the Board on remuneration of non-
executive Directors, structuring the remuneration package of
all executive Directors and senior management, and review and

approval of performance bonus.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Shao Jiulin
and Mr. Li Juncai and one executive Director, namely Mr.
Zhang Wanzhong. Mr. Zhang Wanzhong is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. A meeting of the Remuneration
Committee was held during the year to review the remuneration
package of the Board, the Supervisors and the senior management

of the Company.

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements as
set out in the GEM Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee is
accountable to the Board. Its primary duties include reviewing the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) and making recommendations to the Board after
such review; identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and making recommendations to the Board on
the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships; assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors; and
making recommendations to the Board on appointment or re-
appointment of the Directors and succession planning for the

Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

The Board has adopted a policy concerning the diversification of
members of the Board. In setting the composition of the Board,
the Company will consider the diversification of members of the
Board from various aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, race, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All appointments to the Board
will be based on meritocracy and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. The selection of candidates for the Board
will be based on a range of diversified categories, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
race, professional experience, skills and knowledge. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board. The Nomination Committee
has reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board in
various aspects including professional competence, knowledge
and experience. The Nomination Committee considered the
current structure, size and composition of the Board could meet

the business development needs of the Group.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a nomination policy
which sets out the selection criteria and nomination procedures
of a Director. In selecting and recommending candidates for
directorships, the Nomination Committee would consider the
candidate’s character and integrity, qualifications, professional
competence, knowledge, experience, independence, other
relevant criteria necessary to complement the business
development needs of the Group, and the elements of the policy
concerning the diversification of member of the Board. The
nomination procedures of a Director include nomination of
suitable candidates by any member of the Nomination Committee
or the Board; evaluation of the candidate by the Board based on
all selection criteria as set out in the nomination policy; assessing
the candidate’s independence under the GEM Listing Rules in
case of nomination of an independent non-executive Director;
making recommendation for the Board’s consideration and
approval; and convening a general meeting by the Board to obtain

approval from the Shareholders.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises two executive
Director, namely Mr. Ni Jinlei and Mr. Zhang Wanzhong and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Shao Jiulin,
Mr. Li Juncai and Mr. Shen Wei. Mr. Ni Jinlei is the chairman of
the Nomination Committee. One meeting of the Nomination
Committee was held during the year to review the structure and

composition of the senior management of the Group.
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e SRR a0
DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORD AT N AL
MEETINGS
Details of attendance of the Directors at the Board and sub- NRE _F—NFET_A=ZT—HILFE
committee meetings, as well as general meetings during the year HENFESTLNMEZE G B g
ended 31 December 2019 are as follows: 2N AR
Attendance
Audit Remuneration = Nomination General
Name %4 Board Committee Committee Committee Meetings
#HE HHZEE HMERE REZEE [} PN
Seventh Seventh Sixth Third
Session Session Session Session
L R CYA =)
Executive Directors HAlTEH
Mr. Ni Jinlei il & & ek /7 N/AREER O N/AREA 1/1 1/1
Mr. Zhang Wanzhong iR A 6/6 N/AAR 1/1 1/1 1/1
Ms. Zheng Zhong e+ 6/6 N/AAR N/AARE H N/AATE H 0/1
Non-executive Directors FHITEF
Ms. Xue Li MLt /7 N/ARER N/ARER N/ARER 0/1
Mr. Xiang Lei ICE S 7/7  N/ARER O N/ARER N/AREM 0/1
Mr. Ip Wing Wai BRI /7 N/ARER O N/ARER N/ARE 0/1
Independent B FHITEF
non-execultive Directors
Mr. Li Juncai FRA KL 7/7 7/1 1/1 Nil i 0/1
Mr. Shao Jiulin R JLAR e 7/7 7/7 1/1 Nilfk 0/1
Mr. Li Chonghua AL dE A 7/7 7/7 N/AAR# 1/1 0/1
Mr. Shen Wei WA E 7/7 7/7  N/AREA Nil 0/1

There is no special general meetings held during the year ended BE L —IUETZH =+ — B 1k 5
31 December 2019. SRAT IR Ry BOROR o
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Supervisory Committee was set up according to the Articles
and is accountable to the Shareholders. It is mainly responsible
for monitoring the operation and management of the Company as
well as the act of Directors and senior management to prevent any
abuse of power and infringement of interests on Shareholders, the

Company and employees.

The Supervisory Committee currently comprises five members.
The chairman is Mr. Fan Yimin. The other four members are Mr.
Ouyang Zishi, Mr. Pan Yudong, Ms. Dong Xiaoqing and Ms. Zhou

Min. Ms. Zhou Min is the employee representative.
All Supervisors were appointed for a term of three years starting

from 31 May 2018. All Supervisors are eligible for re-election.

Profiles of the Supervisors are detailed on pages 20 to 21 of this

annual report.

The Supervisory Committee convened 4 meetings during the year.

The following table sets out the attendance of each members in

these meetings:
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SR AR T B Y

TR E R E R

Attendance

Name ¢ A iy
Seventh Session

R

Mr. Fan Yimin H—RAeEAE 4/4
Mr. Ouyang Zishi BRRS T e 4/4
Mr. Pan Yudong TR E 4/4
Ms. Dong Xiaoqing I 4/4
Ms. Zhou Min Jafc 4/4

The meetings were convened to review the financial statements of

the Group.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
accounts of the Company. As at 31 December 2019, the Directors
were not aware of any material uncertainties or events which may
have a significant impact on the Company’s ability to operate as a

going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group are

set out in the independent auditor’s report.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2019, senior management of
the Company comprises 3 individuals. The senior management’s
remuneration payment of the Company during the year ended 31

December 2019 falls within the following bands:

HIERE
EHMREFHATRRARAMRE - R
T NFE+A=Z+—H  SEFHA > H
AT o] FE KA B B D R s AT R AR
R A8 a2 B4 U R B -

AN ) S SR AL 15 46 3 A S T B R
Fiv B4 SAT ) A I SO 8 S A B A

= A% B i
WEE-F-ET A= —HIEEE
AN F R E RS = AN R E T
T-NFEF A=t —HILEE . ARAR
A PR IE 2 0 AT SO A AT i

Number of

Individuals

N8

Below RMB500,000 Dk N #500,00070 1
RMB500,000 to RMB1,000,000 AN E#500,0007C 2= A K H1,000,0007C 2

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
The remuneration paid/payable to BDO, the Company’s

independent auditor, and its member firm in respect of annual
audit services amounted to approximately RMB1,100,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2019. The remuneration paid/payable to
member firm of RSM, the Company’s then independent auditor
in respect of tax consultancy service amounted to approximately
RMB106,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS ¢ 3R HE 7
The Articles lay down the rights of the Shareholders. They B A0 ) 5 B R 2 HEA L A

include:

o right to entitle dividend or other forms of profit distribution; o B0y IR % B B A TE 2K 2 % R 40 TR 22 HE
A s
o right to attend shareholders’ meeting by person or by proxy; . BB B YR AR T I Ak 2 HEA

o right to supervise and manage the business activities of the . SR By E) S S A A R R R
Company and to put forward proposals and raise inquiries; e 2 HEA

o right to transfer shareholding in the Company; ° TR AR N W] IO 2 REA)

o upon payment of a reasonable cost, right to inspect and o TEATHE SRS A > AR REE T3

copy: k2 HEF -

- register of shareholders; - il A

- certain personal information of Directors, Supervisors, - HEH B AKEK A
general manager and/or deputy general managers and KM R EMEANRZET
senior management members; fifl NE R S

- certain information on repurchase of Shares; and — IR R TER S K

- minutes of shareholders’ meeting - BORES g RL

Apart from the above, the Shareholders are also entitled to the Bk b SCHT ot Ah > R IR S DL T SR

following special rights:

The Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and e SR T I T i) S 42 A R B A
concerns to the Board in writing to the Company’s principal place 0 DL Ty B R AR N A R R B
of business in Hong Kong at 17th Floor, V Heun Building, 138 SIS o bk S AU B R ORE 138 9E
Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong Kong. EREL1THE -
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

The Shareholders are given rights to convene special general
meeting or class meeting other than the Directors. According to
the Articles, any two or more Shareholders having voting rights of
10% or more in the general meeting to be proposed can give the
Board written requests for convening a special general meeting or
class meeting. The requests should state clearly the resolution(s)
to be considered. If the Board does not convene the meeting
within 30 days after receipt of such requests, those Shareholders
who give the requests are entitled to convene the proposed
general meeting themselves 4 months after the Board received

their requests at the Company’s expense.

According to the Articles, the Shareholders are entitled rights
to take legal action against the Company, the Directors, the
Supervisors, general manager, deputy general managers and
senior management members. A Shareholder can also take legal
action against another Shareholder. Action can be conducted

through court or arbitration authority.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to maintain an effective
risk management and internal control system for the Group,
which covers four main areas namely financial management,
operation, compliance and reporting, and risk management. The
risk management and internal control systems of the Company are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failures to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and

not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board manages the Group capital on the basis of net debt-to-
equity ratio in order to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern and to maximize shareholders’ return. Each subsidiary
is responsible for overseeing its own daily net cash position while
the Board monitors the Company’s own. Should there be a capital
need, each subsidiary is responsible for its own arrangement

subject to the supervision of the Board.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONTINUED)

Each subsidiary has set up its own control procedures to monitor
its operation including but not limited to working safety, product
quality, asset safeguard, cost management and environmental
protection. Finance department of the Company sets out general
guidelines on fund control for all subsidiaries to follow. There
were no material accidents, quality defects nor environmental

destruction incidents occurred during the year.

The Board assigns the compliance officer of the Company to
monitor the overall compliance and reporting issue of the
Group. With the assistance of company secretary and financial
controller of the Company, listing supervision division and finance
departments, the compliance officer of the Company carries out
its duty to ensure that the Group complies with applicable laws,

rules and regulations as well as reports correctly and timely.

Finance department of each subsidiary maintains proper
accounting records and prepares subsidiary-level financial
statements in accordance with suitable accounting standards. The
financial controller of the Company reviews the correctness and

reasonableness of the financial statements periodically.

During the year, the Company published announcements and
notices within the time frame allowed in the GEM Listing Rules.
The Board also sets out guidelines on dissemination of inside
information to ensure timely disclosure. Each material transaction
especially connected transaction proposed by either the subsidiary
or the Company itself must first be assessed by the compliance
officer of the Company to ensure compliance with applicable
laws and GEM Listing Rules before further action. The Company
seeks advice from lawyers, financial advisors as well as the Stock
Exchange if necessary. The Board also sets out code of conduct to

govern securities dealings by Directors and relevant employees.

The Directors often update themselves about changes in
applicable laws, rules and regulations. The company secretary of
the Company also update any such change to the Board and the

listing supervision division of the Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONTINUED)

The risk management function focuses on market unpredictability
and aims at minimising potential adverse effect.

The Company does not have an internal audit department and is
currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up an
internal audit department within the Group in light of the size,
nature and complexity of the Group’s business. It was decided that
the Board would be directly responsible for internal control of the
Group and for reviewing its effectiveness.

The Board has engaged an external risk management and internal
control review adviser (the “Adviser”) to conduct the annual
review of the risk management and internal control systems for
the year ended 31 December 2019. Such review is conducted
annually and cycles reviewed are under rotation basis. The scope
of review was previously determined and approved by the Board.
The Adviser has reported findings and areas for improvement
to the Audit Committee and management. The Board is of the
view that there are no material internal control defeats noted.
All recommendations from the Adviser are properly followed
up by the Group to ensure that they are implemented within a
reasonable period of time. The Board therefore considered that
the risk management and internal control systems are effective
and adequate.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board is committed to maintaining an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings
and other general meetings.

There was no changes in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Pursuant to the Company Law of the PRC, the Reply of the
State Council on the Adjustment of the Notice Period of the
General Meeting and Other Matters Applicable to Overseas
Listed Companies (Guo Han [2019] No.97) and based on the
actual situation of the Company, the Board proposed to amend
certain articles in the Articles. The resolutions in relation to the
proposed amendments to the Articles were duly passed as special
resolutions by the Shareholders at the special general meeting,
the class meeting of the holders of H Shares, the class meeting
of the holders of non-listed Shares of the Company held on 6
February 2020. The proposed amendments to the Articles became
effective upon filing with the relevant commerce departments and
industrial and commercial registration departments in the PRC
on 12 March 2020. Details were disclosed in the announcements
of the Company dated 5 December 2019 and 6 February 2020 and
the circular of the Company dated 18 December 2019.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT
Beijing Beida Jade Bird Sci-Tech Universal Company Limited (the

“Company”) is engaged in the marketing and sale of embedded
system products and related products. The principal activities of
its subsidiaries are the development of travel and leisure business,
investment holding and production and sales of wine and related

products.

In strict compliance with the requirement under Appendix 20
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”),
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, “the Group” or
“we”) are pleased to present its fourth Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) Report (the “Report”) for the year ended
31 December 2019 (“FY2019”), which demonstrates the Group’s
approach and performance in terms of ESG management and

corporate sustainable development for FY2019.

The information in this Report was gathered through numerous
channels, including internal policies of different subsidiaries of
the Group, the factual evidence of the implementation of ESG
practices in the Group, the feedback from staff via online surveys
in the format of quantitative and qualitative questions based on
the reporting framework, and the verified statistics of the Group’s
annual performance in business operations and sustainable

development.

Setting a clear reporting boundary from the outset of the
entire reporting process can help report prepares and users
of information to define and limit the scope and extent of
disclosure by giving readers a clear picture of the effectiveness of
the implementation of relevant ESG policies, while allowing the
Group to lower the risks of inadvertently neglecting the material
activities or business operations in which the Group was engaged
during the year under review. As the turnover of the Group comes
from the travel and leisure business, investment holding and
production and sales of wine and related products, the Report
covers the performance and management policies of the business

listed above.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT (CONTINUED)

Materiality is the threshold at which ESG issues become
sufficiently important to investors and other stakeholders that
they should be reported. As a common strategic business tool
for screening the insignificant issues and highlighting the
environmental and social impacts, the Group has implemented
materiality assessment by gathering the feedback of various
stakeholder groups about their concerns and expectations in
terms of company’s sustainable development. With the outcome
from such an evidence-based assessment of the potential impacts
of different ESG topics on the Group’s overall strategies, the
board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is presented with
a picture reflecting the material ESG issues which may impact the
Group’s ability to develop in a sustainable way, and can therefore
access sufficient information to make strategic decisions on
allocating more resources and putting more focus on the efficient

daily management of operations under certain topics.

To implement the reporting principle of Quantitative, measurable
key performance indicators (“KPIs”) are listed under the
section of Emissions, Use of Resources and Employment in this
Report. Targets of the Group are relatively simple due to the
operation nature of the Group. To ensure that reader can have
a deep understanding of the Group’s ESG performance under
environmental and social subjects, a summary of the Group’s
performance in greenhouse gas emissions, consumption of various
energy resources and statistics of employees was shown in the

measurable format.

An unbiased picture of the Group’s ESG performance is essential
to ensuring the accuracy and objective evaluation of information
delivered to the audiences. The Group has engaged external
company for preparing the Report to ensure an unbiased report.
Furthermore, the selective disclosure in the Report was utterly
based on the reporting principle of Materiality, in which both the

excellent performance and rooms for improvement were involved.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT (CONTINUED)

Readers normally reply on a transparent disclosure of information
against different indicators based on a consistent reporting
technique and methodology for calculations. As such, the Group
based the presentation of its ESG management, especially the
calculation of greenhouse gas emissions on standard calculation
methods and provided adequate descriptive explanation about
significant changes to the reporting techniques. Meanwhile, to
ensure that the vast array of information under a variety of topics
can be presented to its stakeholders clears, the Group adopted a
reporting process what is consistent with the order for disclosure
in the ESG Guide, which it believes is conducive to adding more
coherence to the entire reporting process and building a roadmap

visualising its growth in sustainability to all.

BOARD INCLUSIVENESS

The Group believes that a systematic sustainability governance
framework and a clear internal sustainability strategy are of
paramount importance to create values to all its stakeholders,
while lowering the Group’s impact on the environment and
natural resources. The Group has assigned financial controller
and the secretary of the Board to manage the sustainable
development and ESG related issues as well as developed its
internal strategies and policies with aims to create sustainable
values to its stakeholders, thereby to large extent minimising
the Group’s undue impact on the environment. The Board has
ultimate responsibilities for the effectiveness and efficiency of the

Group’s ESG polices.

Climate change has been a challenge for decades and brings
plenty of risks to corporations. The Board believes that increased
cost of raw materials is of high potential to influence the Group’s
operation. Hence, the Group focus on the environmental impact
of the Group’s development and the impact on the Group’s
future development brought by the natural resources change due
to climate change. The Group hopes to consistently review and
adjust its sustainability policy to meet stakeholders’ expectation.
In order to minimise those impact and better manage ESG
issues, we considered ESG related risk in establishing corporate

development strategy and research and development investment.
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BOARD INCLUSIVENESS (CONTINUED)

With the forward-looking guidance and well-designed plans of
action to address underlying ESG matters, the management and
responsible teams keep reviewing and adjusting the Group’s
sustainability policies to satisfy the ever-changing needs of
its stakeholders on a regular basis. Details of the Group’s
management approaches in both the environmental and social

aspects are elaborated in different sections of this Report.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

An effective communication with both internal and external
stakeholders is regarded essential to the Group in many areas.
With the goal to strengthen corporate sustainability approach and
performance while enhancing stakeholders’ awareness of ESG and
sustainability issues, the Group has put tremendous efforts into its
internal and external stakeholder inclusiveness. The Group highly
values the feedback from its stakeholders and takes initiative to
build a trustful and supporting relationship with them through

their preferred communication channels.

In FY2019, the Group engaged its stakeholders to conduct a
materiality assessment survey initiated by a third-party agency in
order to guarantee the accuracy and objectivity of evaluation.
Through a science-based materiality assessment to prioritise
the topics from the entire inventory of ESG issuers, the Group
eventually formulated a materiality assessment matrix below,
which could genuinely reflect the real concern of its stakeholders
on ESG matters and facilitate the Group to develop actions plans

for effective ESG management.
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BREE b | KA G
STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (CONTINUED) i % 2 B ()
Materiality Assessment (Continued) oS R A (A
1. Air and greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions 1. JBESR M i 2 S B (L= 5 B ) Bk ik
2. Sewage treatment 2. V5K
3. Land use, pollution and restoration 3. LHUEYEEA - V5 R ARG
4. Solid waste treatment 4. [ R Y IR B
5. Energy use 5. BEVRAEH
6. Water use 6. 7K E IR
7. Use of raw/packaging materials 7. JERRL AR R
8. Mitigation measures to protect natural resources 8. PR T AR B VR Y S e
Employment and Labour Practices 11 9 B 55 5
9. Composition of employees 9. & B
10. Employee remuneration and benefits 10. 1 5 H7 I ok 40 48 1) R
11. Occupational health and safety 11 3 f e B 2 2
12. Employee development and training 12. {8 B % K sl
13. Prevention of child and forced labour 13. By 114 4 52 0 5 11 25 1
Operating Practices BHEEM
14. Suppliers’ geographical regions in which materials are sourced | 14. {1 ¥ 4% 57l A4 R0 i 1 1 43 35015 Dl
15. Selection of suppliers and assessment of their products/services | 15. {I 5 58 15 K L2 & HRES A0 514k
16. Environmental protection assessment of the suppliers 16. B B9 BR R EPAl
17. Social risks assessment of the suppliers 17. PR Y AL A B A
18. Procurement practices 18. PR AL
19. Health and safety relating to products/services 19. FE fi, /WS (ke 42 2
20. Customer satisfaction 20. %8 7
21. Marketing and promotion 21. A7 8 4
22. Observance and protection of intellectual property rights 29, 15 <Y O 7 R ik o
23. Quality control and management of products 23, it ity B4 T K R
24. Protection of consumer information and privacy 24, % G AR FLEE TR &
25. Labelling relating to products/services 25, BLZE i/ IR 65 A IR 1 A 48 )
26. Prevention of bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering | 26. [ 1L #lE ~ #1538 ~ GFERTE R E8
27. Anti-corruption policies and whistle-blowing procedures 27. B BUR B SRR F
Community Investment I 42 B
28. Understanding local communities’ needs 28. T fifE AL [ T oK
29. Public welfare and charity 29. At FZE &
-
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

According to the outcome of the materiality analysis matrix, the
Group identified seven ESG issues that are of great significance to
both the Group and its stakeholders. This review and assessment
helped the Group to objectively prioritise its sustainability issues,
precisely identify the material and relevant aspects, and make
for the purposeful documentation and disclosure of its ESG

performance so as to align them with stakeholders’ expectations.

To further strengthen the internal corporate sustainability
management and elevate the objectives set out by the Group to
the level of global sustainable development, the Group has carried
out an evaluation on its stakeholders’ opinions on corporate
sustainability stewardship, especially the ESG-related topics that
are material to stakeholders and the United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals (“SDGs”) to which its stakeholders have
paid particular attention. This analysis of linking the Group’s
sustainability targets to global sustainability trends allows the

Group to:

o Understand the globally-agreed sustainable development goals that
acts as an articulation of the world’s latest and most pressing
environmental, social and economic issues of which companies

should be encouraged to take into account;

. Identify and seek potential business opportunities by addressing
sustainability-related risks and crisis through business innovation

and optimisation of the work process; and

. Solidifying a common-known language for reporting the company’s
business impact on climate change and social welfare and involving

the employees in creating the sustainability culture in the company.

According to the results, it was found that “Target 3: Good Health
and Well-Being for People” and “Target 4: Quality Education” are
considered to the most related to the business operation of the
Group. In order to achieve those targets, the Group took various
measures, such as setting annual training plans for employees and

investing in sports events.

As the Group strives for excellence, we welcome stakeholders’
feedback, especially on topics listed as the highest importance
in the materiality assessment and its ESG approach and

performance.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BB~ b RBEWGHGE

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

The Group values the long-term sustainability of the environment
and community in which it operates, stringently controls its
emissions and consumption of resources, and complies with
all relevant environmental laws and regulations in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) in the daily operation, including

but not limited to:

° Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China;

. Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Atmospheric Pollution;

o Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of
Water Pollution;

o Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes;

. Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Conlrol of
Pollution from Environmental Noise;

° Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311 of the Laws of Hong
Kong);

J Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 358 of the Laws of Hong
Kong);

. Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

This section primarily discloses the Group’s policies, practices,
and quantitative data on emissions, use of resources, the

environment and natural resources in FY2019.

Emissions from the Group were mainly air emissions from
vehicle use, domestic wastewater and solid waste produced
during office hours. In FY2019, the Group found no
disregard to influential laws relevant to GHG emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste. The Group commits to constantly
keep mitigate its environmental impacts through effective
measures, such as the smart control of the Group’s resource
consumption and the upgrade of outdated equipment that

performs poorly in energy efficiency.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

In FY2019, the air emissions of sulphur oxides (“SO.”),
nitrogen oxides (“NO,”), and particular matter (“PM”)
amounted to 17.7 kg, 5,977.9 kg, and 2,260.9 kg respectively.
The total greenhouse gas (“GHGs”) emissions for Scope 1
(Direct Emissions) and Scope 2 (Energy Indirect Emission)
were 2,895.6 tonnes carbon dioxide equivalent (“CO,e”)
and 264.3 tonnes CO,e respectively. The Group’s total
GHG emissions amounted to 3,159.9 tonnes, and the GHG
intensity for the Group was 7.7 tonnes CO,e/employee.

In FY2019, the Group had no record of the amount of
non-hazardous wastewater during the year under review.
The Group’s total emissions are summarised in Table 1. In
FY2019, the total GHG emissions, solid waste and sewage of
the Group all declined as compared to the figures in FY2018.
The Group targets to maintain the emission whilst the
slightly increase in economic performance.

Table 1 — The Group’s Total Emissions by Category in FY2019
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R E—JUEMBUERE > ALY (6
At ~ BRAELYw TRELLYw ) X
SRIFRLF ([P RLF ) BB PR 4y
Bl A 177807 ~ 5,977.98 77 %2,260.9%
oo G — (EEE ) R E — (REUR
M PR ) W R (MR S ) Rk
B I 52,895,673 WA A LTk H B M
264. 35 WA — AL TR E B o AN 4E A9 IR
R PR AR 5 3,159.90 M AL Tk
HE S MAEENRE RS LT
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[e] AP JBE Bk AT AT SR 5 BE UK o ARAR I
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JBE SEW) B 5 K A B R B o AR H
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S 03 00 P s e

Intensity**
(Unit per
employee)
Emissions Unit Amount i
et A e (Wi EE)
Air emissions SO, Kg 17.7 -
JEE SRR i AL AT
NO, Kg 5,977.9 14.5
AEILY N
PM Kg 2,260.9 5.5
PR T NG
GHG emissions Scope 1 (Direct Emissions) tonnes CO,e 2,895.6 7.0
12 S Pk W — (EHEHR0 ONME AR R
Scope 2 (Energy Indirect Emissions) tonnes CO,e 264.3 0.6
HE— (BeR RO MR AL R =
Total (Scope 1 & 2) tonnes COe 3,159.9 7.7
R (FEE— KT AL e [ 75
Non-hazardous waste  Solid Wastes tonnes 25 -
I E g HE W) [6] i % 524 N
Wastewater m?® 500 1.2
JBEK ST
* The methodology adopted for reporting on GHG emissions set out * FEFR | 20 i 5 5 A P Y 77 3 A% 7 B

above was based on “How to Prepare an ESG Report? — Appendix
2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock
Exchange;

% Intensity was calculated by dividing the amount of emissions the
Group has generated in FY2019 by the average number of employees
in FY2019.
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED) BR B w] 5 A P (A

The Group is the environmental shuttle bus operator in
Hengshan Mountain scenic area in Hunan Province, the
PRC. Air emission form the Group mainly comes from the
warehouse and vehicle use. The GHG emissions of the Group
consist of direct emission (Scope 1) from the use of vehicles
and indirect emission (Scope 2) from the consumption of
electricity. The direct emission and indirect emission are
the main source of GHGs emissions while other indirect

emission is insignificant.

The Group focus on the direct emissions from
transportation. To reduce the air emission from vehicle use,

the Group has established four measures:

o Maximize the transportation efficiency, and reduce
empty transportation;

° Update for modern fleet;

o Use supplementary sustainable energy; and

o Support emission reduction standard and fuel

efficiency standard reformation.

For indirect emissions, the Group has aligned its operating
practice with internationally acceptable and recognised
standards and recommendations in terms of GHGs
reduction. Detailed measures taken by the Group to reduce
its GHG emissions through reducing electricity consumption
will be described further in A.2. Use of Resources of this

report.

During the year under review, the wastewater and solid waste
generated by the Group were mainly municipal wastewater
and municipal solid waste from daily operations. The
Group has implemented a classification method for the
collection for better management. The non-recyclable solid
wastes that have been classified will then be transported to
a local recycling centre or waste disposal plant for further
treatment. To reduce solid waste, the Group encourages the
reduction in use of disposable paper cups, tissue, chopsticks
and plastic bags. As for the dinner, the Group posted slogans

to remind employees to reduce food waste.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

Emissions for the Group’s investment business include GHG
emissions from the use of electricity, and municipal solid
waste and wastewater generated by the employees in the
office. No hazardous waste was generated by the investment
business in FY2019.

GHG emissions for the investment business came from
the use of electricity. Specific measures taken to reduce
electricity consumption in the office, and thus GHG
emissions from this business segment, are further described

in A.2. Use of Resources.

The Group is committed to environmental protection in
its daily operations in the office. To reduce the amount
of municipal solid waste generated every day, the Group

implemented the following practices:

o Source separate and recycle as many solid wastes as
possible;
. Encourages all employees to reduce the use of

disposable items such as plastic tableware; and

o Advocates reusing of office stationeries.

Other non-recyclable municipal solid wastes are collected

and disposed by the property management.

Since the amount of wastewater generated highly depends
on the amount of water used, the Group adopts specific
measures, further described in the A.2. Use of Resources, to
reduce water consumption. Municipal wastewater is directly

discharged into the property wastewater handling system.

The Group’s winery business involves the production and
sales of wine and related products in Virginia, United States.
Emissions for this business segment include GHG emissions
form use of energy (gasoline, diesel, and (electricity) in
machineries, water or land discharging, and non-hazardous

solid waste processing.
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

All waste generated in wine production are converted into
fertilizers, achieving “zero waste” production line. The
municipal wastewater produced by this business segment
was directly discharged into the sewer. Meanwhile municipal
solid wastes are collected, separated by source, and
recycled. The residual solid wastes are treated by the local

government.

GHGs emissions from winery business mainly comes from
the use of purchased electricity, trailer, and forklift. All air
emissions complied with the local laws and no hazardous

emissions generated during the year under review.

The use of natural resources has always been the key issue
for the Group’s environmental concern. To effectively
manage its resources consumption, the Group keeps
improving its tracking of ESG related KPIs and launches
internal monitoring programme on the procurement and
use of resources. In FY2019, the major resources consumed

by the Group were electricity, water, paper and diesel.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

Table 2 — The Group’s Total Use of Resources by Category in
FY2019 and FY2018*

BRBE k& LB G
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#— “E - NEMBHFEELE -F N
A B B B A 2 I T O3 1 TR
EOEES

Intensity
Amount in (Unit per
FY2019 employee) Amount in
—F A —F A FY2018
Resource Category Item Unit WPBAERE DA B4R BE 3 g TE )\ 4
W AR HH HEfr wE (MM EH) St B4 B
Energy Electricity*** kWh 576,325.0 1,402.3 5,220,267.4
HEiR Sy TR
Diesel litres 349,231.4 849.7 271,976.7
e ASl)
Gasoline litres 822,494.4 2,001.2 914,961.7
LRl ASl)
Water Waters#s##* m? 46,264.0 122.6 177,634.7
7k TR s SEK
Packaging materials**##%* Plastic tonnes 3.0 - 260.4
B B e BB L
Paper tonnes 1.0 - 1,603.6
AR5k L
Wood tonnes 2.0 - 730.3
A L

ook

ok

EEE TS

FY2018 refers to the year ended 31 December 2018

Intensity in FY2019 was calculated by dividing the amount of
resources the Group consumed in FY2019 by the average number of
employees in Y2019

In FY2019, the electricity consumption in tourism development
business of the Group was 288,325 kWh, which was slightly higher
than the figure in FY2018 (239,103 kWh). The increase was
primarily due to the procurement of 30 eco-friendly vehicles, frequent
maintenance of old vehicles that have been commissioned for over 10
years, and operations of new offices including party affairs committee
and 2 vehicle repair centres

In FY2019, despite a sharp decline in total water consumption on
the Group level, it is worth noting that the water usage in tourism
development business of the Group was 46,264 m’, which was slightly
higher than the figure in FY2018 (25,240 m’). The major reasons
were the water cutting off situation between April and October
in 2018 and the demand of more water in the operation of newly
purchased vehicles in FY2019

wHEEE The stark contrast of the amount of packaging materials between

Y2019 and FY2018 was mainly due to the different boundary
setting that excluded the manufacturing and sale of electronic fire
equipment business in Y2019
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

The Group’s consumption of electricity comes from the
daily operation. To make sure that all subsidiaries and
departments of the Group adhere to the electricity-saving
principle, a detailed internal policy and guidelines to
instruct all employees to change towards sustainability
have been formulated. All subsidiaries of the Group must
stringently comply with the Group’s energy saving policy in
FY2019.

During the year under review, many eco-friendly measures
were conducted by the Group to manage its electricity

consumption, including but not limited to:

. Fully use the natural lights, such as turning off electric
lights when there is sufficient natural lighting and

turning lights off during lunch break;

i Turn off the lights in public areas when not necessary;
and
o Turn off vacant equipment, lighting and air

conditioner after work.

Also, as the refrigeration facilities contribute to most of the
power consumption, the storage department has adjusted
the operation time of such facilities, which significantly

reduce power consumption.

Water consumption by the Group is for domestic use by its
staffs during the working hours. In FY2019, the Group did
not face any problems in sourcing water. To improve the
utilization efficiency of water resources, the Group and all
its employees have laid emphasis on water conservation and
are dedicated to saving every drop of precious water resource
by various efficacious ways. Specifically, to improve the
utilisation efficiency of water resources, the Group requires
employees to adhere to the water saving principles and posts

banners in operating regions.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

The main impact exerted by the Group on the environment
for the tourism development business was the use of gasoline
and diesel in shuttle bus in FY2019. The Group operates
environmental shuttle buses that exert less impact on the
environment. Besides, this business segment operation in a
scenic spot, hence the Group strictly requires the drivers of
shuttle buses to carefully deal with solid wastes to relieve the

pressure of the environmental burden of the mountain.

The main impact on the environment from the investment
business is the indirect GHG emissions through use of
electricity. The Group took effective measures to reduce
electricity consumption in the office and thus the overall

GHG emissions during the reporting year.

The main impact exerted by the Group on the environment
for the winery business is the use of electricity, gasoline, and
diesel. The Group regularly upkeeps all equipment to ensure
they are operating under high efficiency. The Group’s
vineyard is also surrounded by green plants, so part of the
GHG generated by the Group will be offset by the plants.
Apart from the above, the Group also promotes the smart
use of drains and riparian zones to reduce the environmental

impact of vineyard.

Climate change leads to the increasing number of extreme
weathers across the world, and the Group acknowledges
the impact of climate change on the operation and devoted
resources to alleviate the influence. Drivers from tourism
business are properly trained to deal with extreme weathers
and measures are taken in grape yard to cope with climate

changes to ensure the quality and productivity of grapes.

BB~ b RBEWGHGE

BRI v 5 M 1 (4)

7B AL i A S JR SE 5 S BR BT A AL
FEREBREN T — JUSE I BB o
P A I IR B St o A e T 7
BRE B BBRIRFRE L o 1t
Gb > W% AR A B R o (R
A AR T fc W AL 2 AR D ) /DN B
I B > L A% A9 S A 1L BRI RS IR B
1 o

BE B 1 £ BRI B ) R B
B 2 SR P o AR 4R B 4R TR B
PRIUCA 2800 1 1 D W A = 1 A A
R A P -

7S LI S S B B BRI Y B
BRI E S IR B S o AR E
SAE BT A AR DA TR AR L R O A © A
VR ) 04 S S T A Aok AR > BT LAAS S 1
TP ) 20 Ui A SRR e A AR o B b
2 AN 5 A S IR R T K R

T % 1 LA G 90 S S BR T 0 R 2B

SR B A AL B S A% i A ik i R SR
B o AR BUR G SR SR AL B B 1
BN I SR PR AT B R BB R o ARG
iR 0 S5 1) R ROEAT R A BRI > L
JRE S it s R SR > M 7 D [ R RS it
JE S SR s AL > LR R 4 A 1B R
A 75 T AR T -

CE U AORAER T BRSO A TR A R



SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY

The Group views talents as its most valuable assets and the
key driving factor in ensuring the success and sustainable

development of the Group.

The Group’s human resources policies fully align with the
applicable employment laws and regulations in Hong Kong
and the PRC, such as the Employment Ordinance (Chapter
57 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Labour Law of the PRC,
and Labour Contract Law of the PRC. To make sure that
the relevant internal policies are fully in line with the latest
laws and regulations, it is the Group’s human resources
department that reviews and updates corporate documents

in talent management on a regular basis.

During the recruitment process, the Group strictly adheres
to the principle of democracy, openness, impartiality and
excellence, and values candidates’ personal capability and
innovative thinking. All applicants shall undergo a series of
rigorous selection process, including written examination of
professional skills, comprehensive ability tests and supervisor

interview before they are officially hired.

Besides, the Group sets periodicity plans and budgets to run
performance evaluation. When there is a vacancy, we will
take proactive initiatives to promote our junior employees
and cultivate them into management talents. We outline
career development path for the junior staff, offering
promotion and pay raise for outstanding employees who

have served the Group for over three years.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

The salary composition, in consistent with previous years,
is divided into monthly fixed income, post salary, expense
subsidy, monthly bonus and floating salary. To motivate,
reward, and recognize our existing employees who have
made giant contributions to the Group, compensation
reviews and salary adjustment are regularly conducted with
reference to the overall market conditions, inflation rate,

profitability of the Group and employee’s past performance.

Meanwhile, any termination of employment contract would
be strictly based on reasonable and lawful grounds. The
Group prohibits any kinds of unlawful or unreasonable

dismissals.

The Group arranges reasonable working hours and
rest periods for its employees. In addition to basic paid
annual leave and statutory holidays stipulated by the
local governments, employees are entitled to additional
leave benefits such as marriage leave, paternity leave and

compassionate leave.

As an equal opportunity employer, the Group is committed
to creating a fair, respectful and diverse working
environment by promoting anti-discrimination and equal
opportunity in all human resources and employment
decisions. Training and promotion opportunities, dismissals
and retirement policies are determined irrespective of
employees’ gender, race, age, disability, family status, marital
status, sexual orientation, religion beliefs, nationality or any

other non-job-related factors in all business units.

The Group’s equal opportunities policy enforces zero
tolerance to any workplace discrimination, harassment or
victimization in accordance with the relevant government
legislation, ordinances and regulations. The human
resources department is responsible for monitoring the
implementation of the above regulations. Employees can
report any discrimination and harassment during work. Also,
the Group provides employees with fairness-related training,
so that female employees are fully aware of their rights and

interests and improve their self-protection awareness.
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SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

To cultivate employees’ sense of belonging, the Group
provides additional employee benefits such as medical
insurance and annual physical check-up. To cater to the
needs of employees of the Group, additional benefits
including a variety of meaningful activities and parties were

provided to employees during the year under review.

In FY2019, the Group organised a series of activities to
facilitate the harmony among employees. In order to
strengthen the communication of employees, the Group
organised employees gathering from time to time. In the
weekend or leisure time, sports games or other activities
(such as “Summer Carnival”) were held to release work
pressure and facilitate the harmony among employees.
Besides, we also organised employees to study in Enshi,

Hubei for learning purpose.

During the year under review, the Group was in full
compliance with relevant laws and regulations in relation to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, welfare and other benefits that have a

significant impact on the Group.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

The Group believes that health and safety at work involves
both the prevention of harm and the promotion of
employees’ well-being. To provide and maintain a safe and
clean working condition for employees, the Group has
established strict internal safety and health policies, which
are in line with relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong

and the PRC, including but not limited to:

o Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China;
° Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and
Control of Occupational Diseases; and

o Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurance.

We have established internal health and safety management
regulation to ensure the occupational safety of employees.
Daily operation of management and general employees
should strictly in compliance with internal safety production
management policies and regulations. We have initiated
different internal manual in accordance with safety
management requirement, relevant fire safety regulations,
labour protection management regulations and production
site safety regulations. The production director and safety
production management committee of the production base
are responsible for supervising and managing the production
base to ensure the implementation of health and safety

measures.

The Group strives to achieve an accident free working
environment. No smoking and drinking are allowed in office
area as well as health and safety training is organized to
avoid any accident. We held regular safety work meetings and
publish safety warning signs to remind manager and general

employees to fully comply safety policies.

During FY2019, the Group was not in violation of any of the
relevant laws and regulations in relation to providing a safe
working environment and protecting the employees from
occupational hazards that have a significant impact on the

Group.
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SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

The Group values employees and considers them as the most
important treasure of the Group. Hence, the Group has
developed annual training plan to provide internal training
for its employees to strengthen the skills and knowledge
related to work. The Group considers a suitable and
customised package of training programmes to both its newly
hired employees and experienced workers to be beneficial
to the company in its development. For new employees, we
offered comprehensive induction training so that they can
understand the corporate culture, business process, work
safety requirements, management policies and development
direction of the Group. For experienced employees, The
Group has carried out training, including training with
domestic technology research institutes and equipment
manufacturers, to improve technical and product knowledge,
as well as to understand industry quality standards and

workplace safety standards.

For example, during the year under review, the travel and
leisure business has organised trainings including quality
service management, magic communication, tourism
knowledge and buddhism and taoism culture in the
operating area, and field trip training. For wine business,
product understanding training are hold every first week of

the month to enrich employees’ knowledge of wine.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

In FY2019, the Group abided by the Employment Ordinance
(Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Labour Law of the
People’s Republic of China and other related labour laws
and regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC to prohibit any
child and forced labour employment. To combat against
illegal employment of child labour, underage workers and
forced labour, the Group’s human resource department
requires all job applicants to provide valid identity
documents to ensure that they are lawfully employable
prior to confirmation of any employment. It is also the
responsibility of the Group’s human resource department
to monitor and guarantee the compliance of corporate
policies and practices with the relevant laws and regulations
that prohibit child labour and forced labour. Once the
Group has identified any case which fails to comply with the
relevant labour laws, regulations or standards, the relevant
employment contract will be immediately terminated and
relevant employees responsible for the management of

human resources will be disciplined accordingly.

In FY2019, the Group was in compliance with applicable laws
and regulations in relation to the prevention of child and

forced labour that have a significant impact on the Group.

As a socially responsible enterprise, it is critical and vital
for the Group to maintain and manage a sustainable and
reliable supply chain that makes minimal negative impacts
on the environment and society. The Group has not only
implemented relevant policies regulating its practices in
daily operations in order to fulfil its environmental and
social responsibilities, but also given serious attention to
the mitigation of the environmental and social risks that
may affect its value chain. Each of the operating subsidiaries
within the Group monitors the quality of its suppliers and
ensures the supply chain practice on a strict and continuous

basis.
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SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED) #L vl e A (

When choosing suppliers, the Group has established the
Supplier Conduct Code, requiring suppliers to abide to
operate in an ethical manner, which includes fairly treatment
of employees, protection on environment, integrity. Social
and environmental risks are also taken into consideration,
such as operating license, product quality and environmental
impact. The procurement department tracks potential
supplier’s product quality, experience, service quality,

financial statement and operating stability to assess suppliers.

We are dedicated to reducing the impact of supply chain
on the environment and advocates green procurement,
and tried to use environmentally-friendly product. Besides,
the Group has a qualified supplier list and review the list
annually through different aspects. To reduce the social risk,
the Group keeps close contact with suppliers to monitor the

compliance of laws and regulations.

In the winery business, grapes are the main raw material
in the operation. We work with high quality wine grape
growers who are knowledgeable and are responsible for their
growing practices with high standard. We have listed out the
requirements of product quality and related environmental
protection standards in the commercial agreement. The
Group also conducts annual review on supplier to achieve
quality assurance and satisfactory service practices. If the
products or services do not meet Group’s requirements,
suppliers have responsibility to take any remedial measure
and corrective actions on a timely basis. If the problem
cannot be rectified, the Group will re-evaluate the capability
of their ability to perform as required and may re-select

suppliers according to the supply chain policy.

The Group maintains close contact with the suppliers to
ensure that the business of the supplier complies with its
local laws and regulations in the country and region and
maintains its corporate ethics, such as the prohibition of the

employment of child labour and forced labour.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

We have established internal control policy to ensure the
standard operation and prevent operation risks effectively
and operate adhering to the internal control procedure.
The inspection department is responsible for assessing the
rationality, completeness and effectiveness of the internal
control measures and monitoring the implication of control

procedures.

The Group believes the credibility is the key point in
investment management and information disclosure is
one of the main measures to add credibility of the Group.
We value the importance of customer privacy and has
established internal policy to ensure the security of customer
information. No relevant information should be disclosed to
a third party except for the requirements of laws and audit
and regulatory authority. Only approved employees can get
access to customer’s information. The Group also perform
confidential education on employees to demonstrate
the consequences of information leakage and signed
confidential agreement with employees. Also, the intranet is
encrypted to prevent unauthorised information usage and

exportation.

All the advertisements and marketing materials should
comply with the requirement of internal verify standard.
The Group employs experienced legal counsel to review and
monitor the advertisements and marketing materials during
the year under review to ensure there is no fake or wrongful
description in the materials. Advertisements and marketing
materials should be verified as legal, fair and honest before

publishing.

The Group actively develops tourist sight projects, located
at the famous scenic area, and provides the environmental
shuttle bus for visitors at Hengshan Mountain scenic area. To
ensure the safety of customers, every shuttle bus is equipped

with seat belt and safety hammer with annual safety check.
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SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED) L vl e A (B

The Group has a safety production committee (the “Safety
Committee”) to lead the overall safety work in tourism
development. The Group performs daily quality inspection,
reward and punishment standards, administration of
operation service, safety production management system
and daily quality inspection log. The quality inspection staff
monitors the quality of service and prepare monthly service
quality analysis to identify problems and implementation of
rectification. Furthermore, the Safety Committee preforms
annual assessment for traffic safety indicators: frequency
of general liability accident, frequency of accidental death,
frequency of accidental injury, direct economic loss on

accident and frequency of minor accident.

Besides, the Group also has safety maintenance committee
to implement the Group’s safety management system. The
safety maintenance committee monitors and reports the
vehicle maintenance plan on a monthly basis, and performs
vehicle maintenance tasks, such as annual inspection and
safety technical assessment, to ensure the transportation
vehicles are in good condition. Under the normal
circumstances, the Group’s transportation vehicles comply
with the GB7258-87 “Safety Technical Conditions for Motor
Vehicles”, GB4785-84 “Numbers, Positions and Colours
of the External Lighting and Light Signalling Devices for
Motor Vehicles and Their Trailers” and JT3111-85 “Highway

passenger transport general technical conditions”.

As a shuttle bus operator, customers’ feedback in essential
in the long-term development of the Group. We have
customer service department and service hotline to collect
customers’ complaints and respond to customers’ inquiry in
time. “Operational Service Management Measures” are also

implicated into operation to manage the service quality.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

Upholding the core value of “A Taste of History”, the Group
actively provides high-quality wines to our customers. To
ensure the product quality, all of products before selling to
the customers must be inspected under Alcohol and Tobacco
Tax and Trade Bureau (“TTB”) Labelling Compliance,
Occupational Safety and Health Administration (“OSHA”)
Complications, Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”)

and Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) Compliance.

The products labels have to be approved by TTB and go
through lab analysis to ensure that our alcohol products are
created, labelled, and marketed in accordance with Federal
laws and regulations and distinguish from other competitors.
Before selling the wines to the market, the Group goes

through the Federal Label Certification and approval proves.

In additions, we monitor the alcohol and acidity level to
ensure that our wine is a healthy and safety product. Our
wine is tested monthly for quality control and is analysed
for alcohol, heat and cold stability, pH and protein stability
prior to bottling. We maintain variety ways to grasp the needs
of the customers with the sales department through weekly
meeting, new product introduction meeting, customer visits
and customer hotlines to cope with the ever-changing needs

of customers.

All the information provided by the marketing department
to customers should be accurate and precise. Any
misrepresentation or exaggeration of offerings is strictly
prohibited. We have legal counsel to prevent violations of

our advertising and labelling practices.

We value customers’ privacy, information collected would
only be used for the purpose for which it has been collected
and customers would be told about how the data collected
would be used in business. All collected personal data
is treated confidentially and is kept securely, accessible
by designated personnel only. The Group prohibits the
provision of consumer information to a third party without
authorisation from the customers. We emphasise on
confidentiality obligations and the legal consequences for

the breaches of obligations.
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SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED) L vl e A (B

The Group actively applies for the proper intellectual
property rights of any new trademarks, labels, product
designs or technical knowledge developed by itself in order
to protect its own proprietary rights. Legal counsels are
also employed to provide legal advice on the protection of
intellectual property rights and arranges for internal legal
personnel to view and prevent infringement of intellectual
property rights. Employees are responsible for confidential
trade secrets and other proprietary intellectual property

rights.

To maintain a fair, ethical and efficient business and
working environment, the Group strictly adheres to the
local laws and regulations relating to anti-corruption and
bribery, irrespective of the area or country where the Group
conducts its business, such as Law of the PRC on Anti-money

Laundering.

The Group fully acknowledges the importance of
maintaining an integrity working environment and requires
employees to sign a letter of integrity. Plans and training
for management, ethics and policy compliance that is
in consistence with the Group strategy are established
and organized for cultivating employees’ awareness of
anti-corruption. All employees are expected to discharge
their duties with integrity, to act fairly and professionally,
and to abstain from engaging in bribery activities or any
activities which might exploit their positions against the

Group’s interests.

Furthermore, the Group set up an internal whistleblowing
policy to enable employees to report any suspicious activities.
The management would conduct investigations under
confidential, objective and instant principle to protect the
Group’s interests. The Group advocates a confidentiality
mechanism to protect the whistle-blowers from fear of
threatens and any disadvantage to the whistle-blower’s
employment relationship. Where criminality is suspected,
it will be reported to the relevant regulators or law

enforcement authorities.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

During the year under review, the Group was not in violation
of any of the relevant laws and regulations in relation to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering that have a

significant impact on the Group.

The Group understand the development is closely related to
employees and local community and values the well-being
of employees and community development. In FY2019, we
focus on the community construction and the well-being of

people.

During the year under review, in order to encourage people
for having more exercise, the Group has invested in the local
sports activities, such as basketball games and badminton
competition, as well as cultural activities to enrich
community life. Apart from these, the Group also cares
about employees and raised money for a legend employee’s

son, who suffers sever uraemia.

We will stick to our community investment policies in the
future and wish to develop along with the local community

and foster the harmony between local residents.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

BEIJING BEIDA JADE BIRD UNIVERSAL SCI-TECH COMPANY
LIMITED

(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Beijing
Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
87 to 244, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:

Refer to notes 23, 24 and 26 to the consolidated financial
statements and accounting policies as set out in notes 4(c), 4(d)

and 4(n) to the consolidated financial statements

The Group has investments in associates, joint ventures
and certain unlisted equity securities of RMB2,731,853,000,
RMB72,273,000 and RMB85,351,000, respectively, as at 31
December 2019.

Certain of the associates, joint ventures and unlisted equity
securities held by the Group are engaged in the investments of
unlisted equity securities in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). The determination of the fair values of the unlisted equity
securities requires significant management judgement in selecting
appropriate multiples from market comparables and in respect of

unobservable inputs such as discount for lack of marketability.

The Group appointed independent professional valuers to assist
in assessing the fair values of those unlisted equity securities

investments.

Independent Auditor’s Report

383 7 A% B e

PS8 TP

ﬂ%ﬁ*ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ?"ﬁh‘ﬁ%ﬁ% (Fr it o
FHPHERD (TR HER ) sEfT A at - B4
% S5 Y LU R B0 TAT AE A i [ S A
AR B R AR I B AT J 30 P AL - AR

PR W AT 00 O & a1 A 28 ST JID
(T~pA)) - BSEm R BEM e BT
ST o A AR B E PR AT - B B

S P ST 1A R IR R AR T R M S
1 7 w2 R R i 2 it

i e

o G A TR AR S S R A B - A
WIS MR M Bt e Sy HE A FIH o
BACE IR TEE F A A A B R X
R RFPEAT RN - BE AT HEt s
TE PR AL BB 10 2 W o S ko R B B
IS

25 P SR A A RS TR B 5E2S ~ 24 K26 K EE A
SR R B 514 (c) ~ 4(d) e (n) Tl 2 & 51
R

BEEN - F—NFET A=+ —HIiRE
AT GERERETIE LT IRATE W
&l B N R%2,731,853,0007C « AR #
72,273,0007C K A R #85,351,0007C -

HTHEATF  GEAER BEESFAN
b T BB 2 0 A N RS RNE (T )
RERBEIE B eA S IR o O JE b A
i S5 PRI > R B TE b 988 9 T 35 T L
A B AN T B A i A\ BR (B Bk = T 8
U R AT ) T 2 A ORI B

T I 2 e 7 TSl I B B A 5% 4 T
T A RS SR BT

CE U AORAER T BRSO A TR A R

81



82

Independent Auditor’s Report
B 7 A% B

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Our procedures included:

- Evaluating the competence, independence and integrity of

the external valuers;

- Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodology

used by the external valuers;

- Considering the appropriateness of the multiples selected
from the market comparables and the discount for lack of
marketability with the assistance of our internal valuation

specialists;

- Checking the accuracy and the relevant of the input data

used; and

- Assessing the adequacy of the fair value disclosures in

relation to the unlisted equity securities.

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the
Company’s annual report, but does not include the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing

to report in this regard.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the

directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report
is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of
our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for

the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

Independent Auditor’s Report

383 7 A% B e

[3H &t 7 wt 35 0H (4)

O H A FARE U G S A g A
B 5 S ot Y ) 2 A ot O R 1) B 45
TEEAR EURL I 28 SR AR S B AR o S 3R
oy Ty o U 5 B A R A A A AE el A SRR
S R T A Y O B R R I R Y P
el FF -

TEBEM AR & MBS ok i > EHR ARG B’
S R AR RSB B RE ) > G AR R UL T 4R
SRR AR EIH > DR R A
HERHER . BRIFERATN BEEER
B Ak AR O A R A BT R

ERONVAA T EE R M B R EOR
T2 o FAZZ B & o B S AT e 7 T A B AT

e B R R 7 Wt AR S BB R R OR B |
{t

FHENARE > REHBREGESMBEREESA
A7 A R JYCRE B S8 R T 2B A A e R
Bt B A5 S PEOR RS 0 R LR S R R
PR o A AR R B S 2 B MR
BN (FE 2 S ) FR > BR b 2 S A i
S A0 LAt RS o AR B LA R ) R R
AT Ao Hoft A& &b SR EAL AT AT -

AR A PR (AN RE IR @8 4
A A RIS AT 09 T A R — H R B Bt
e A IRy S AE B B o B AR BRI AT LAy SO B
w1 R BT A ) s AR A
] HE R B AR A T B AR T A PO R KR
PesE > A B A0 R RO AT AR O

CE U AORAER T BRSO A TR A R

83



84

Independent Auditor’s Report
B 7 A% B

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group’s internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.
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OTHER MATTER H Aty 35

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year BEAEE —F— /E+A=+—HIFE
ended 31 December 2018 were audited by another auditor who JEZ AR B Rt — 2 BT AR A > K
expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 20 e =l W SR = iy & 370 7 U B o

March 2019. RIBEUER -

BDO Limited B LA PR ST G ah B A R A
Certified Public Accountants S e

Au Yiu Kwan K W 35

Practising Certificate Number P05018 BB AP IEP05018

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020 T FFFE=A=1H
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

o oy E B B L Al 2 i WAL B

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % “F—JuE+ A =+ —H IL4E

2019 2018
— L4 TE— R
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B & E ANR¥F 55 PN BT
(re-presented)
(E 2 41)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FHERBEH
Revenue A 8 155,232 157,442
Cost of sales and services BB B MR LA (56,821) (55,937)
Gross profit EM 98,411 101,505
Other gains and income oAk 25 Ml A 9 1,377 2,200
Impairment loss on trade and & 5y Ko HAth E Wi IE
other receivables, net ﬁfﬁféﬂﬁ 48 (6,651) -
Distribution costs 88 AR (1,048) (1,228)
Administrative expenses TBUR X (52,478) (56,822)
Other expenses HoAh BH 2 (2,146) (5,180)
Profit from operations @%% il 37,465 40,475
Finance costs il & R AR 11 (8,962) (1,840)
Share of losses of associates AL B 4% 2 7] s 1R (15,118) (34,472)
Share of losses of joint ventures MEAE & A2k (895) (1,069)
Profit before tax 5 56 i ¥ A1 12,490 3,094
Income tax expense T 45 i B 52 12 (37,666) (16,829)
Loss for the year from continuing YN E|£J§ R H A AR
operations 1 s 48 13 (25,176) (13,735)
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS CRIEAEEER
Profit for the year from discontinued AAEERA ORIER S EE
operations H it Al 18 1,527,349 340,246
Profit for the year AR A JE i A 1,502,173 326,511
Other comprehensive income after tax: il B #t 12 2 W 45 ¢
Items that will not be reclassified to profit N Er A \;’@ﬂfﬁﬁzﬁ
or loss: ZIHEH (14,837) (98,755)
Fair value changes of financial assets at U\/&qzﬁﬁf\ﬁ%éﬁ
fair value through other comprehensive (4 ([ LA T{EFFA
income (“FVTOCI) HA 2 ificss ) 2
W 2 A E )
Share of other comprehensive income JRE AL g 5 > ) oA
of associates e (16,308) (17,419)
Share of other comprehensive income — FEAG &4 1> 3 HAth
of joint ventures e (182,067) (71,907)
Income tax on items that will not be EN G kR
reclassified to profit or loss ZHHZ B - 1,485
(213,212) (186,596)

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss: B I 70 £ 18 7.2 HH -
Exchange differences on translating B S E s & ME S0 2 B
foreign operations 10,580 15,168

Reclassification of foreign currency A BLAE S B 6 2 w45
translation reserve to profit or loss BEE 50 fot 8 207 70 49 8 M i
upon deemed disposal of subsidiaries (755) -

9,825 15,168

AU IR BB TR R A PR A



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
for 7 TR A B FUAth 4 i WYL i

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

88

2019 2018
SEOUE SEAR
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B PN B ANRET 5T

(re-presented)

(E 2 41)
Other comprehensive income % A JIE O At 4 T WK i o
for the year, net of tax By 53 (203,387) (171,428)
Total comprehensive income for the year A% 45 & 4 i W %5 48 4 1,298,786 155,083
Profit for the year attributable to: JEE A 7S 4F B ¥ A -
Owners of the Company ZN/NCIE DN
Loss for the year from continuing AR FEAR [ FR A
operations EB M A (39,849) (29,742)
Profit for the year from discontinued AEERE O ILRE
operations SEHS W s A 1,442,238 176,771
Profit for the year attributable to AN F BT N HEAG 2
owners of the Company 7N AF %S R 1,402,389 147,029
Non-controlling interests IEHE JBERE 25
Profit for the year from continuing AR EEAR B FR RS
operations SEHS W s A 14,673 16,007
Profit for the year from discontinued AAEREA A O #E
operations £ 2L T s R 85,111 163,475
Profit for the year attributable to IF 122 B HE 25 B4 2
non-controlling interests A B %5 A 99,784 179,482
Total comprehensive income JEE A A 4F L‘i 2T
for the year attributable to: W %5 A% -
Owners of the Company EN/NEIE7 RSN 1,197,255 (18,106)
Non-controlling interests Ik P22 L HE 25 101,531 173,189
1,298,786 155,083
RMB RMB
A R UNERY S
Loss per share from continuing RARFBEREEZEN
operations B % i 48
Basic and diluted (cents per share) FEAR R (19 )) 17 (2.9) (2.2)
Earnings per share from discontinued KHEHOKIEREER
operations i 5 i 2 A
Basic and diluted (cents per share) A T B (B AY) 17 104.6 12.8

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B S B SIR D 2

At 31 December 2019 A ~Z—JLE+"H=+—H

2019 2018
R0 —EZ— )\
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

Bt E N T ANR¥ET 5T

Non-current assets —J[ i mf] ﬁ' 23
Property, plant and equipment LE BN N & T ] 19 154,453 315,628
Goodwill T 20 204 19,847
Other intangible assets oAt 0 B 21 244 4,972
Biological assets W R E 22 726 1,058
Investments in associates S AT ZRE 23 2,731,853 667,627
Investments in joint ventures WESNEZRE 24 72,273 253,392
Investments in film productions RERREZRE 25 8,594 10,292
Financial assets at FVTOCI DA B A H At 2 T
Wt 2 W 26 108,943 135,244
Deposits for potential investments MEBEERE 2 e - 8,000
Deposit for purchase of property, plant il & #) 2% ~ W5 &%
and equipment YA 2 4 — 3,203
Deferred tax assets % A B TH A A 35 7,211 16,925
3,084,501 1,436,188
Current assets B &
Inventories e 27 6,845 238,107
Trade and other receivables & 5 B HoA e i #E 28 221,445 1,108,752
Time deposit with original maturity of FIH R @ =A
more than three months when acquired E A& 30 = 1,221
Pledged bank deposits C A A B AT A7 3K 30 1,200 5,000
Cash and cash equivalents Be RE S5 EY 30 156,511 684,448
386,001 2,032,528
Total assets MR 3,470,502 3,468,716
Current liabilities T I REKi
Trade and other payables B 5 T HoAth JE A5 i TE 31 59,402 563,165
Bank and other loans SRAT S HAth 4 % 33 80,708 225,683
Lease liabilities HE A fE 34 3,165 -
Current tax liabilities it 3 A JE A R 32,191 27,651
175,466 816,499
Net current assets i B & A A 210,535 1,216,029
Total assets less current liabilities 28 A WO B L1 3,295,036 2,652,217

CE U AORAER T BRSO A TR A R
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B S B SR DL

At 31 December 2019 j* ~E—JU4E+ - H=1+—H

2019 2018
R0 it S yiNCE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR Tt UNEY S R
Non-current liabilities I Ui B B
Bank and other loans SRAT S HAth 4 3% 33 151,050 -
Lease liabilities THE A fE 34 64,954 -
Deferred tax liabilities I GE B TH B fE 35 3,661 1,802
219,665 1,802
NET ASSETS & e A 3,075,371 2,650,415
Equity HE £
Share capital e A 36 137,872 137,872
Reserves oAt 38 2,740,349 1,612,363
Equity attributable to owners of EN/NEIE: F DN R Uy
the Company 2,878,221 1,750,235
Non-controlling interests I 42 B HE 4 197,150 900,180
TOTAL EQUITY HHRE R 3,075,371 2,650,415

Approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2020 and are M E COFEEZHA S HEESEEE L E

signed on its behalf by: VNN AW E &

NI JINLEI ZHANG WANZHONG
il 4 & RE T
Director Director
HF HF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Bk

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % “F—JuE+ A =+ —H IL4E

Attributable to owners of the Company

22 N S22 p2h
A B B g 5

RAARA N
Foreign ~ Financial
currency - assets at Non-
Share Capital  Reserve translation ~ FVTOCI Other  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve funds reserve reserve reserve profits Total  interests equity
WA
A
Rl
Ak
WA BARE  BEEE  EARBE  BERE O RORE  ERE ait kBREE AR
RMB'OOD ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'OO0 ~ RMB'OOO ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETE ARETE ARETE ARMTE ARMTT ARMTT ARWTT ARMTT ARWTT AR¥TR
At1 January 2018 BEE-AF=H—H 197872 562519 149610 (39.266) 132,392 16295 828719 1768341 719907 2488248
Total comprehensive income AEERTINELE
for the year - - - 15176 (180,811) - 470 (18106) 175189 155,083
Acquisition of subsidiary i YN
(note 39(a)) (f3£39(a)) - - - - - - - - 1221 1221
Capital contribution from FERERILE
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - 5,863 5,863
Transfer [ v - - 9967 - - - (2967) - - -
Share of transfer of loss on HREAE LRI
disposal of financial assets HELATFEA
at FVTOCI in investments in 2 milds 2 B
joint ventures (note 24(a)) Bz EREY
(Hzo4(a)) - - - - 3,199 - (3,199) - - -
Transfer of gain on disposal of i ELIATHFA
financial assets at FVTOCI (note M2l 2
26/ AR 2 By
(K76 i) - - - - (1,307) - 1,307 - - -
Appropriation of safety FREREEN
production fund - - - - - 89 (89) - - -
Changes in equity for the year  AEFIEREH) - - 2067 13176 (178419) 89 142081 (18106) 180273 162167
At 31 December 2018 RZF—
FOAZT=H 137872 862519 192577 (44090)  (45,827) 16384 970800 1750285 900,180 2650415

CE U AORAER T BRSO A TR A R
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

o 17 BE i 5 B 3K

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LYEE TN
Foreign ~ Financial
currency  assets at Non-
Share  Capital ~ Reserve translaton ~ FVTOCI Other ~ Retained controlling Total
capital  reserve funds  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total interests equity
WAF
it AS
ik
I
Bk BRRE Wi BERRE  RERE RRE  BRRM & RERER AR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARWFR ARWTE ARMTL ARETR AREFR ARMFR ARMFR ARWTR ARWFE ARNTE
At 1 January 2019 REE-NE-H-H 137872 562519 152577 (44,090)  (45,827) 16,384 970,800 1,750,235 900,180 2,650,415
Total comprehensive income for the year A4£ ¥ 4 i it 4% - - - S0 (210994) - 1402389 L1975 101331 1,298,786
Acquisition of subsidiaries Yo B s ]
(note 39(a)) (B39 (a)) - - - - - - - - B8 23880
Capital contribution from FhRiEaT G
non-controlling interests - - - - - - 751 751 846 1,597
Discontinued operations BRI EEER
(note 39(b)) (3E39()) - - (59,051) - - (10,969) - (T0,020) (829,287)  (899,307)
Transfer i = = 2,604 = - - (2604 = = =
Share of transfer of loss on disposal EH e ]
of financial assets at FVTOCI in HEDLFEFA
investments in joint ventures HhAmhdEz
fiREL
FRER - - - K] - (813 - - -
Transfer of gain on disposal o financial & VA T3 A
assets at FVTOCI Kbk sz
fiREL
Iy : - - - (1469 S - - -
Appropriation of safety production fund %% 7 £ 4 B3 = = - - - 182 (182) = = =
Changes in equity for the year AEERGRH - - (647 5860 (13L,I38)  (10,787) 1320498 117,986 (703,030 424,956
At 31 December 2019 REE-
toAZER 137872 562519 96,180  (38,280) (176,965 5,597 2291,208 2878221 197150 3,075,371
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

o Bl il | R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % “F—JuE+ A =+ —H IL4E

2019 2018
“E A ZF— )\
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
il AR ANR¥ET 7T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REWHZBERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax from continuing operations K EFELEERN
R B A v 12,490 3,094
Profit before tax from discontinued operation & H B £ 1L 488 £ 1
B A v A1 1,563,465 401,973
Adjustments for: EiRieE
Impairment loss on trade and H G B A 3k TE
other receivables, net A B 4R AR 37,655 30,591
Depreciation and amortisation 788 I 48 6 27,515 29,190
Loss on disposal and written off of property, W R EE T - B E
plant and equipment B st i i 4R 274 53
(Gain)/Loss from changes in fair value less G REATHES)
cost to sell of biological assets A 2
(e ts) /e (4) 3,143
Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries ARAE B A TR Ik 25 (1,348,433) -
Interest expense FE B % 13,213 11,205
Interest income ALE A (2,263) (8,645)
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss AN RE 32, (i 42)
Ji 16 A (23) 746
Loss arising from a step acquisition 71 WO B Ja 2 )
of a subsidiary A 2 5,594 -
Gain on bargain purchase ok 1 L 2 W i (352) -
Share of losses of associates JRE A 7 A R R 1R 17,133 38,770
Share of losses of joint ventures JEAG & 8 A S s 1 895 1,069
Operating profit before working capital changes K G 4 5 B A 327,159 516,189
Increase in inventories & B (74,139) (79,176)
Increase in trade and bills receivables B i B 0 MR ok e S (360,298) (314,329)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and FATFOH - e K
other receivables H At FRE Wi 2 SE B (68,332) (65,230)
(Decrease) /Increase in trade and H T B FA AT FROH
other payables (B>) /B4 (57,667) 127,650
Decrease in contract liabilities HHABEWD (38,927) -
Cash (used in) /generated from operations (AR /A St
e (272,204) 185,104
Income taxes paid e fF AT 3 Bl (61,171) (87,521)
Net cash (used in) /generated from (Y /A B85 5
operating activities Z B E&wH (333,375) 97,583
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEBEemEER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

2019 2018
“E N “E - N\E
Notes RMB 000 RMB’000
B &k AR T 0 ANR¥ET T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES # & iff 8 2 3l & i &
Acquisition of subsidiaries WA i 8 2 ) 39(a) (327) (2,103)
Deposits for potential investments Bl GRS - (8,000)
Refund of deposits for potential investments TR G R R - 9,400
Deposits for purchase of property, plant R ~ R R A
and equipment (6,375) (3,203)
Decrease/ (Increase) in pledged bank deposits ~ E fE# 4117 Wb/ (sEim) 3,800 (5,000)
Decrease/ (Increase) in time deposits with B H fiﬁgﬂﬂ H ZEM
original maturity of more than three months AWy /()
when acquired 1,221 (62)
Increase in balances with associates BRLIgh 2% N T 5 B s (15,266) (223)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWE - WE KA
and equipment RES @ = 114
Purchases of property, plant and equipment WEE A - WE B (54,236) (30,804)
Purchases of other intangible assets 1 A O i (656) (551)
Proceeds from disposals of financial assets 8 DAY P (E R A HC A 2 T
at FVTOCI Wit 2 S 5 B E B A5 aKOR 19,272 2,131
Net cash outflows from deemed disposal X (R VAP
of subsidiaries Bl i i T A 39(b) (438,034) -
Investments in associates REEAR G = (38,450)
Interest received 2 A 2,263 3,645
Net cash used in investing activities & 1 ) i ) B (488,338) (73,106)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEWB Bl eR
ACTIVITIES
Bank and other loans raised B SR AT S H A B 516,758 219,700
Repayments of bank loans TE AT B (210,588) (215,000)
Repayment from/ (Advance to) shareholders KRR
(i) e 545 421 (137)
Decrease in amounts due to related parties JRE A5 B A N TR D 1,637 55
Interest paid A AR (8,986) (11,205)
Repayment of principal amount of HEHEAEAE
lease liabilities (7,227) -
Capital contribution from non-controlling I PRI HE 45 % B
interests 846 5,863
Net cash generated from/(used in) from EAA B BE S
financing activities ZHEHHE 292,861 (724)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASHAND H & KB &% EM
CASH EQUIVALENTS (W) /38 i 38 (528,852) 23,753
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes AN [ R A Y 2 R 915 2,460
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ERZBERREEHEY
BEGINNING OF YEAR 684,448 658,235
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END BERZBERHEEHY
OF YEAR 30 156,511 684,448
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B BV 5 e o i

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE - F—LE+T - H=Z+—HILEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) as a sino-foreign joint stock limited
liability company. The Company’s H shares are listed on
the GEM (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of its
registered office is 3rd Floor, Beida Jade Bird Building,
Yanyuan District Area 3, No. 5 Haidian Road, Haidian
District, Beijing 100080, the PRC. The addresses of its
principal place of business in the PRC and Hong Kong are
3rd Floor, Beida Jade Bird Building, No. 207 Chengfu Road,
Haidian District, Beijing 100871, the PRC and 17th Floor, V
Heun Building, 138 Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong

Kong, respectively.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’ subsidiaries are set
out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements. The

Company and its subsidiaries are collectively referred as the “Group”.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In current year, the Group has applied for the first time
the following new/revised HKFRSs and amendments
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) which is relevant to
and effective for the Group’s financial statements for

annual period beginning on 1 January 2019:

— R

AN T N R IE B (T E )
sk BT 2 T AN G 0 A R B AR
] o AN RIHIBON B W Bt 52 5 T A R
oA (TBEs2 BT ) GEM (TGEM ) Bl -
AR ) 22 S g ik A b B L s T
T U [ Y 5 59 e I = R L K
= (H4R100080) > HAE o B K& & i
B S B 4y R A v B AL e T i
TE 8 % 20755 A6 K 5 5 M (I 4
100871) B 7 s b B2 £ f5 K3 1385%
JR R 7R o

A A B ERS Sy BUE R o AN
9 B B 2 ] 2 T B SE S R AR B T
K ME44 o A7) KLU 2 7 R 2
(AL ] -

R 447 8 U 5 i e ([ 7 v B
B At e J )

A s AEECERERT
5 h A s wt A g (17 et
il 2 € 1) WAl 2 06T AR &
S B A R R A RT A H S
HAREEMP T - NFE—-H—H
Bl i 2 4F 32 00 ] 22 o 5 i R A R
N7 38 % S5 A B R AR AR A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B BV 5 e o M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

96

9. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - first effective 1

January 2019 (Continued)

HKFRS 16

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23

Amendments to
HKFRS 9

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Leases

Uncertainty over Income

Tax Treatments

Prepayment Features and

Negative Compensation

Long-term Interests in

Associates and Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKFRS 3,
HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and
HKAS 23

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases have been

summarised in below. The other new or amended HKFRSs

that are effective from 1 January 2019 did not have any

significant impact on the Group’s accounting policies.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B BV 5 e o i

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE - F—LE+T - H=Z+—HILEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16

HKFRS 16 brings significant changes in
accounting treatment for lease accounting,
primarily for accounting for lessees. It replaces
HKAS 17 Leases (“HKAS 17”7), HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains
a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases-
Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease. From a lessee’s perspective,
almost all leases are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, with the
narrow exception to this principle for leases
which the underlying assets are of low-value
or are determined as short-term lease. From a
lessor’s perspective, the accounting treatment
is substantially unchanged from HKAS 17. For
details of HKFRS 16 regarding its new definition
of a lease, its impact on the Group’s accounting
policies and the transition method adopted by the
Group as allowed under HKFRS 16, please refer

to section (ii) to (v) of this note.

2. PRANE WA SR e ([ ok B
B e e Q0 1) (B

(i)

TR B s BT HR 5 I 5 16
FEN 5% 2

T s BHS S e H S 1655 B
L & sk 0 & st g BAE &
KE > FBREA AW €
R o HEE e
FHERIEE 17 E ([ Hib e
FHHERISE 1795 )) - F i (A
MM BERERRZAES) —
BRERANI TR RS
WAE - W CERREZR
BE) -2 RBERAEM
B-EEKES CEANRRE
ZEG) R RETHREA
WEMBEEEARS 2
K2 o JERT A ERE
48 R4 B AR A B IR
L2 e R £ (i RE & L
A o e B (R
0K B i 2 2 B LB A AR
8 45 D B e B 461 A D B
Gh o EHFNAERE - &
w1 A BB i o e )
ST 5 o A B A B
it I 2 1 655 B B AE
e 35 > B AR E &
FEIBUHE B A s P S A e )
55 1658 IIr 70 & 19 A% 4 [ 1R 40
Y U T i 2 R B R
TS BB EE AR (i) & (v) B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 using the
cumulative effect approach and recognised the
right-of-use assets at the amount equal to the
lease liabilities, adjusted by the amount of any
prepayments or accrued lease payments relating
to that lease recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018. The comparative information presented in
2018 is not restated and continues to be reported
under HKAS 17 and related interpretations as
allowed by the transition provision in HKFRS 16.

The following table summarised the impact of
transition to HKFRS 16 on consolidated statement
of financial position as of 31 December 2018

to that of 1 January 2019 as follows (increase/

2. PRANEWEIA T W e ([ 8
B e e Q0 1) (B

(i) RN E Hﬁﬁﬁ ERI 16
HEHG 7 ZE (4

AEEC N R F B
JE T 7 o BB o E AN 2R
1655 » 3 4% M1 %5 R B B A
1 b= BEUREE 0 fok T M 2 - 2
MR —F—NE+_H
=+ HIER S M BRI &R
il R B4 A B % AL R A AT AT 9
i sor B R A B A 0 &
BT LIRS - i % — 4
S L g R e B
N7 A AR 9 T v R 2R
17958 LA B A v b s i o Y L
S5 16555 19 A0 92 1 Mk SC AL Y
HH B R R o

R U = A RS
eI 16 B R e — %
—NFEF A= HED
T—JUE—A — HERE M

(decrease)): BRI W2 (3 i
/ ﬂ/]\
RMB’000
ANR¥F I
Increase in right-of-use assets 1 PR i 7 18 83,850
Decrease in leasehold land FH & 4 Hok > (13,818)
Increase in lease liabilities (non-current) TR A GERE) 3 67,725
Increase in lease liabilities (current) HEAME (FE) 8 m 2,307
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % “F—JuE+ A =+ —H IL4E

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RAHWEMEHRAE R ([ FEY
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) B e ) (%)
(CONTINUED)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - first effective 1 (a) BRANHET RS ET A Uk B R

January 2019 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

(i)  Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

The following reconciliation explains how the
operating lease commitments disclosed applying
HKAS 17 at the end of 31 December 2018 could
be reconciled to the lease liabilities at the date of
initial application recognised in the consolidated

statement of financial position as at 1 January

HREA-PR _F—-NFE—H—H
B R A2 (5)
7 15 B T TR A TE A G5 169 — B

( ;.'4'2 )

(i) %%?%ﬁiﬁfﬁ%ﬁﬁ”ﬁ]fi
HEHT 7S 2 (4

DLTR 3R Rl i — 2 — AR
TH =t —HRERAES
o e R 251755 B RE 1 28
LB AR I B — % — L4 —
H— RAEAR G BB IR DL K
RN HE B 2 AL

2019: BB R UL
RMB’000
UNEL S
Operating lease commitment as of 31 December 2018 BWE-Z-AFE+ZA=+—H
RS -Eiil R 29,276
Less: short term leases for which lease terms end within B HEBRR - JLE T2 A
31 December 2019 = — HETAS R R (10,871)
Less: leases of low-value assets W mEEEENRE (2,072)
Add: leases included in extension option which the M AR B A A E
Group considers reasonably certain to exercise AT B A9 IE R R RE A AL B 103,557
Less: future interest expenses W R A BB (49,858)
Total lease liabilities as of 1 January 2019 REF-E-A-HMERERE 70,032

The weighted average leasee’s incremental
borrowing rates applied to lease liabilities
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 1 January 2019 is 6% per

annum.

JE R E = —LE— A
— H B AR B IR UL 2 e
8 A AR BB Y B 2R
LA 48 8 0 ORI 2 /5 4 4
6% °

AU IR BB TR R A PR A
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(i)

New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a lease is defined as a contract,
or part of a contract, that conveys the right
to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.
A contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time when
the customer, throughout the period of use, has
both: (a) the right to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from use of the identified
asset and (b) the right to direct the use of the

identified asset.

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, a lessee shall allocate the
consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components, unless the lessee apply the practical
expedient which allows the lessee to elect, by class
of underlying asset, not to separate non-lease
components from lease components, and instead
account for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease

component.

2.

OF A0 A T S0 5 i e N ([ 7 98 S
B e e Q0 1) (B

(ii) THE 09 E 7

R 9 75 s A5 i o ME HI 16
% AR w5 2 DAAE A
1SR B ) i — By
T P 0 (P A 1 — T A K B
BRI —E A o WHEF R
5 34 R ) < () 0 E A
LA ) Ok ) ol 11 4B
KB S8 FEFN 25 5 e (b) A HE
678 Bk Al A R
B # B A RER AT — BEIREH]
A2 1 sk Pl E 1 R

& A L A DA K — TR B
Z JHHHME & SOk L
Ma RS - RN S
A0 o) e = A FH B R
e W AR B A 20 F) A 3B 08 ST
A% L2 IR AR B 23 (9 48 L
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE - F—LE+T - H=Z+—HILEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(i)

(iii)

New definition of a lease (Continued)

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components and account for all each lease
component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all

leases.

Accounting as a lessee

Under HKAS 17, a lessee has to classify a lease
as an operating lease or a finance lease based on
the extent to which risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of a lease asset lie with the lessor
or the lessee. If a lease is determined as an
operating lease, the lessee would recognise the
lease payments under the operating lease as an
expense over the lease term. The asset under the
lease would not be recognised in the consolidated

statement of financial position of the lessee.

Under HKFRS 16, all leases (irrespective of
they are operating leases or finance leases) are
required to be capitalised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, but HKFRS 16 provides
accounting policy choices for an entity to choose
not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-term
leases and/or (ii) leases for which the underlying
asset is of low-value. The Group has elected not
to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for low-value assets and leases for which at the
commencement date have a lease term less than
12 months. The lease payments associated with
those leases have been expensed on straight-line

basis over the lease term.

2. PRANE WA SR e ([ ok B
B i e Q0 1) (B

(i) FHE N9 E 7 (#)

(iii)

AEMOBEEAESIEHE
G S B A AR I BT A
LB B o B AT A7 A Bl 9 AL
BRI A RSB B — B K
43 o

1E 25 RN 19 8 7t 1 P2
AR A ik gt vE R 25179
AR R % A0 18 R
7 HHE B R L By % (] ¢ B o A
N R B AR BH AR S5 AR
BEAMAKEHESME
L o i FHL 1 18 G /5 KC AH
B R GH R B A
ReE AR B IE T 9 FLE A Bkonke
AR AP o AHETE T M & &
5 AN B R R AR N B A5 A S
NVESIE

AR5 s B S 5 E T BB 16
8o BT OR G H 25 58
AN B ) R
LA BAES IR IR N B AL £
o Y REE O S PR B R M
T s BB R E )5 1695 A
TR O BRI - D)
BEREARL G A EEME
Z T KBk i) M B A
BIKEEZHE - AE@C
BRI A E E LT
B B n O B D i 1218 H
2 R R M e AR
HEME - MEZEMEMEZ
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - first effective 1
January 2019 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

(iii) Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

The Group has recognised right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities at the commencement date of a

lease.

Right-of-use asset

This should be recognised at cost and would
comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liabilities (see below
for the accounting policy to account for lease
liabilities); (ii) any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received; (iii) any initial direct costs
incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate of
costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories. Under the cost model,
the Group measures the right-to-use assets at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses, and adjusted for any

remeasurement of lease liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE - F—LE+T - H=Z+—HILEE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(iii) Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Leasehold land and buildings which is held
for own use would continue to be accounted
for under HKAS 16 and would be carried at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment loss. The adoption of HKFRS 16
therefore does not have any significant impact
on these right-of-use assets. Other than the above
right-of-use assets, the Group also has leased a
number of properties under tenancy agreements
which the Group exercises it judgement and
determines that it is a separate class of asset
apart from the leasehold land and buildings
which is held for own use. As a result, right-of-use
assets arising from the properties under tenancy

agreements are carried at depreciated cost.

Lease liabilities

The lease liabilities should be recognised at the
present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the date of commencement of the lease.
The lease payments shall be discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate
can be readily determined. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group shall use the

Group’s incremental borrowing rate.
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2.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(iii) Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date of the lease
are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable: (ii)
variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or
rate as at commencement date; (iii) amounts
expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price
of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise that option and (v) payments
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the lessee exercising an option to

terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, a
lessee shall measure the lease liabilities by: (i)
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease liabilities; (ii) reducing the carrying
amount to reflect the lease payments made; and
(iii) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect
any reassessment or lease modifications, e.g., a
change in future lease payments arising from
change in an index or rate, a change in the lease
term, a change in the in substance fixed lease
payments or a change in assessment to purchase

the underlying asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B BV 5 e o i

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE - F—LE+T - H=Z+—HILEE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(iv) Transition

As mentioned above, the Group has applied
HKFRS 16 using cumulative effect approach and
recognised the right-of-use assets at the amount
equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted by the
amount of any prepayments or accrued lease
payments relating to that lease recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2018. The comparative information
presented in 2018 is not restated and continues
to be reported under HKAS 17 and related
interpretations as allowed by the transition
provision in HKFRS 16.

The Group has recognised the lease liabilities at
the date of 1 January 2019 for leases previously
classified as operating leases applying HKAS
17 and measured those lease liabilities at the
present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the lessee’s incremental

borrowing rate at 1 January 2019.

The Group has elected to recognise all the
right-of-use assets at 1 January 2019 for leases
previously classified operating leases under HKAS
17 as if HKFRS 16 had been applied since the
commencement date, but discounted using the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of
initial application. For all these right-of-use assets,
the Group has applied HKAS 36 Impairment of
Assets at 1 January 2019 to assess if there was any

impairment as on that date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

2.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2019

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(iv) Transition (Continued)

The Group has also applied the follow practical
expedients: (i) applied a single discount rate
to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics; (ii) applied the exemption of
not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for leases with term that will end within
12 months of the date of initial application (1
January 2019) and accounted for those leases as
short-term leases; (iii) exclude the initial direct
costs from the measurement of the right-of-use
assets at 1 January 2019 and (iv) used hindsight
in determining the lease terms if the contracts

contain options to extend or terminate the leases.

In addition, the Group has also applied the
practical expedients such that: (i) HKFRS 16
is applied to all of the Group’s lease contracts
that were previously identified as leases applying
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and
(ii) not to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were
not previously identified as containing a lease
under HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B BV 5 e o i

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE - F—LE+T - H=Z+—HILEE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

The Interpretation supports the requirements of
HKAS 12, Income Taxes, by providing guidance over
how to reflect the effects of uncertainty in accounting
for income taxes. Under the Interpretation, the
entity shall determine whether to consider each
uncertain tax treatment separately or together based
on which approach better predicts the resolution of
the uncertainty. The entity shall also assume the tax
authority will examine amounts that it has a right
to examine and have full knowledge of all related
information when making those examinations. If the
entity determines it is probable that the tax authority
will accept an uncertain tax treatment, then the entity
should measure current and deferred tax in line with
its tax filings. If the entity determines it is not probable,
then the uncertainty in the determination of tax is
reflected using either the “most likely amount” or the
“expected value” approach, whichever better predicts

the resolution of the uncertainty.

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial
assets with negative compensation can be measured
at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income if specified conditions are met —

instead of at fair value through profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

The amendments clarify that HKFRS 9 applies to
long-term interests (“LTI”) in associates or joint
ventures which form part of the net investment in the
associates or joint ventures and stipulates that HKFRS

9 is applied to these LTI before the impairment losses

guidance within HKAS 28.

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent changes
to standards where they are currently unclear. They
include amendments to HKFRS 3 which clarifies that
when a joint operator of a business obtains control
over a joint operation, this is a business combination
achieved in stages and the previously held equity

interest should therefore be remeasured to its

acquisition date fair value.

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent changes
to standards where they are currently unclear. They
include amendments to HKFRS 11 which clarify that
when a party that participates in, but does not have
joint control of, a joint operation which is a business
and subsequently obtains joint control of the joint

operation, the previously held equity interest should

not be remeasured to its acquisition date fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B BV 5 e o i

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % “F—JuE+ A =+ —H IL4E

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - first effective 1
January 2019 (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2018 Cycle —
Amendments to HKAS 12, Income Taxes

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent changes
to standards where they are currently unclear. They
include amendments to HKAS 12 which clarify that all
income tax consequences of dividends are recognised
consistently with the transactions that generated the
distributable profits, either in profit or loss, other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2018 Cycle —

Amendments to HKAS 23, Borrowing Costs
S

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent changes
to standards where they are currently unclear. They
include amendments to HKAS 23 which clarifies that a
borrowing made specifically to obtain a qualifying asset
which remains outstanding after the related qualifying
asset is ready for its intended use or sale would become
part of the funds an entity borrows generally and

therefore included in the general pool.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective
The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group. The Group’s current intention
is to apply these changes on the date they become

effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business!

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Benchmark Reform'

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2020.

2 The amendments were originally intended to be
effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018. The effective date has now been deferred/
removed. Early application of the amendments of the

amendments continue to be permitted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B BV 5 e o i

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % “F—JuE+ A =+ —H IL4E

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 — Definition of a business

The amendments clarify that a business must include,
as a minimum, an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs, together with providing extensive guidance on

what is meant by a “substantive process”.

Additionally, the amendments remove the assessment
of whether market participants are capable of replacing
any missing inputs or processes and continuing to
produce outputs, whilst narrowing the definition of
“outputs” and a “business” to focus on returns from
selling goods and services to customers, rather than on

cost reductions.

An optional concentration test has also been added
that permits a simplified assessment of whether an

acquired set of activities and assets is not a business.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 — Definition of

material

The amendments clarify the definition and explanation
of “material”, aligning the definition across all HKFRS
Standards and the Conceptual Framework, and
incorporating supporting requirements in HKAS 1 into

the definition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

9. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 — Interest

Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments modify some specific hedge
accounting requirements to provide relief from
potential effects of the uncertainties caused by interest
rate benchmark reform. In addition, the amendments
require companies to provide additional information to
investors about their hedging relationships which are

directly affected by these uncertainties.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 - Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate

or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to
be recognised when an entity sells or contributes assets
to its associate or joint venture. When the transaction
involves a business the gain or loss is recognised in full,
conversely when the transaction involves assets that do
not constitute a business the gain or loss is recognised
only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests

in the joint venture or associate.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of these
new/revised HKFRSs and is not yet in a position to
state whether these new pronouncements will result in
substantial changes to the Group’s accounting policies

and consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B BV 5 e o i

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE - F—LE+T - H=Z+—HILEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “HKFRS”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group

are disclosed in note 4.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments and biological assets,
which are measured at fair values as explained in the

accounting policies set out in note 4.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires the
management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgements or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements

are disclosed in note 5.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEGEBOR
The significant accounting policies applied in the A B ER S MBS R R E ) 2 R
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are FEECRESIT -

set out below.

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are
entities over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. The Group has power over an
entity when the Group has existing rights that give it
the current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e.

activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting
rights held by other parties. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability to

exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-

consolidated from the date the control ceases.

Gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of
the net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining
goodwill and any related accumulated foreign currency

translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B BV 5 e o i

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE - F—LE+T - H=Z+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests (“NCIs”) represent the equity
in subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. NCIs are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated
statement of changes in equity within equity. NCIs are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation
of profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between the non-controlling shareholders and

owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling shareholders

even if this results in the NCIs having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions
with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and NCIs are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by
which the NCIs are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in

equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses, unless classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held

for sale).
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

4.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination.
The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at the acquisition-date fair
value of the assets given, equity instruments issued,
liabilities incurred and any contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. Identifiable assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at

their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded
as goodwill. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the sum of the consideration transferred is recognised
in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain

purchase which is attributed to the Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is
remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss. The fair value is added to the sum of the

consideration transferred to calculate the goodwill.

The NClIs in the subsidiary are initially measured at the
non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate share of
the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets

and liabilities at the acquisition date.

4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B BV 5 e o i

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE - F—LE+T - H=Z+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs”) or groups of CGUs that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the Group at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill
is compared to its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as

an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policies of
an entity but is not control or joint control over those
policies. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible,
including potential voting rights held by other entities,
are considered when assessing whether the Group has
significant influence. In accessing whether a potential
voting right contributes to significant influence, the
holder’s intention and financial ability to exercise or

convert that right is not considered.

TR GEHBOR (8)

A T RRAR R M AR
RN R RIEN, ZF =i e A R R =R
AT o DR ZEHS A ORI A 2
Y 4y il 5 8 W0 A OF T ] 20
o R 2 4% B 4 R R0 (T8
A AR A ) S84 E A A
AR o £ oy i T L 2 B Bl B
7 40 R 36 sk 79 50 A B 5 A 4
A R I A o PR AR
HEAT W AR S o BRI B
ol 1 W ek 8 R AT L R U6 A B
TEF MBS - o m Bz 54
JEE AE B v R T BRLCEL W ofig [ A (i
PO > AT i [ 4 AR 2 f £ B
O TAE B RS T 3 R 2 B
B o AT AT I (B R B E R 2 B L
HHEBEARgEER -

g % 0 ) oy A A T LA R
BHM  EREBIINARE
i 2 5 I8 BUR B A 2 S
17 FF £ ) S 3 (] 22 o A o B4
At B B AT 2 VB AE B AR R
R A ATl B AT S R 2 VAR B
> HATAE L 5 I A AT A A 4R
WA GERLENETUEE -
R E B A T ERE R
hF o B A S BLIE AT AT 6 BA] 5
o BERMBRIAEEE -

CE U AORAER T BRSO A TR A R

117



118

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B BV 5 e o M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

4.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and are initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets
and liabilities of the associates in an acquisition are
measured at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The excess of the cost of investments over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the associates’ identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the
investments and is tested for impairment together
with the investments at the end of each reporting
period when there is objective evidence that the
investments are impaired. Any excess of the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in

consolidated profit or loss.

The Group’s share of associates’ post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognised in consolidated profit or loss,
and its share of the post-acquisition movements in
reserves is recognised in the consolidated reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investments.
When the Group’s share of losses in associates equals
or exceeds its interest in the associates, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associates. If the associate subsequently reports profits,
the Group resumes recognising its share of those
profits only after its share of the profits equals the

share of losses not recognised.

4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B BV 5 e o i

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE - F—LE+T - H=Z+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that
results in a loss of significant influence represents
the difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that associate and (ii) the
Group’s entire carrying amount of that associate
(including goodwill) and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve. If an investment
in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture, the Group continues to apply the equity

method and does not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are stated at cost less
impairment losses, unless classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held

for sale).

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two
or more parties have joint control. Joint control is
the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control. Relevant activities are
activities that significantly affect the returns of the
arrangement. When assessing joint control, the Group
considers its potential voting rights as well as potential
voting rights held by other parties. A potential voting
right is considered only if the holder has the practical
ability to exercise that right.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

4.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a
joint venture. A joint operation is a joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the assets, and obligations
for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A joint
venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the arrangement. The Group has
assessed the type of each of its joint arrangements and

determined them to all be joint ventures.

Investments in joint ventures are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and are initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets
and liabilities of the joint ventures in acquisitions are
measured at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The excess of the cost of investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the joint ventures’
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill.
The goodwill is included in the carrying amount of
the investments and is tested for impairment together
with the investments at the end of each reporting
period when there is objective evidence that the
investments are impaired. Any excess of the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in

consolidated profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B BV 5 e o i

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE - F—LE+T - H=Z+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The Group’s share of the joint ventures’
post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss, and its share of the
post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised
in the consolidated reserves. The cumulative
post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investments. When the Group’s
share of losses in the joint ventures equals or exceeds
its interests in the joint ventures, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the joint ventures. If the
joint ventures subsequently report profits, the Group
resumes recognising its share of those profits only after
its share of the profits equals the share of losses not

recognised.

Gain or loss on the disposal of a joint venture
that results in a loss of joint control represents
the difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that joint venture and (ii) the
Group’s entire carrying amount of that joint venture
(including goodwill) and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve. If an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate, the Group continues to apply the equity

method and does not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interests in the joint ventures. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of joint ventures have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency

with the policies adopted by the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency,
and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (RMB’000) except when otherwise

indicated.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period. Gains and losses resulting from this

translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates when the fair

values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in

profit or loss.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B BV 5 e o i

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE - F—LE+T - H=Z+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation

currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement

of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the exchange rates on the

transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the foreign currency

translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of monetary items that
form part of the net investment in foreign
entities and of borrowings are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the foreign currency translation reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified to consolidated profit

or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated

at the closing rate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, FHEEGFIBUR ()
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings
and leasehold land (classified as finance leases),
held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and

subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which

they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost
less their estimated residual values over the estimated
useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal useful

lives are as follows:

Freehold land Nil
Leasehold land 70 years
Buildings 20 years
Machinery and equipment 3 to 10 years
Leasehold improvements,

furniture and office equipment 2 to 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 to 10 years
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, FHEEGFIBUR ()
(CONTINUED)

The estimated residual values, useful lives and
depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if

appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction, and is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Depreciation begins when the relevant assets are

available for use.

Gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,

and is recognised in profit or loss.

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases
or finance leases) are required to be capitalised in
the consolidated statement of financial position as
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but accounting
policy choices exist for an entity to choose not to
capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases and/or
(ii) leases for which the underlying asset is of low-value.
The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases
for which at the commencement date have a lease term
less than 12 months. The lease payments associated
with those leases have been expensed on straight-line

basis over the lease term.
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4.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Right-of-use assets

This is recognised at cost and comprises: (i) the
amount of initial measurement of the lease liabilities
(see below for the accounting policy to account for
lease liabilities); (ii) any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received; (iii) any initial direct costs
incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate of costs to
be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are
incurred to produce inventories. The Group measures
the right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under
the cost model, the Group measures the right-to-use
assets at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any

remeasurement of lease liabilities.

The Group also has leased a number of properties
under tenancy agreements which the Group exercises it
judgement and determines that it is a separate class of
asset apart from the leasehold land and buildings which
is held for own use. As a result, the right-of-use asset
arising from the properties under tenancy agreements

are carried at depreciated cost.

Lease liabilities

The lease liabilities are is recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the date of commencement of the lease. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If
that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses

the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE - F—LE+T - H=Z+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease are considered
to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable: (ii) variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement date; (iii)
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of
a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise that option and (v) payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the

lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (ii) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change in
the lease term, a change in the in substance fixed lease
payments or a change in assessment to purchase the

underlying asset.

4.

TR GEHBOR (8)

T E A 15 (47)

T FNE I A B e H M S AT
L 109 A0 5 6 P A B O E R S
R R A AR B T B AT 3K (G [ e
AN AT o] R AP B A 5 (i) 4%
BH e B 2 48 BOEOR 2 1 KGR =
F) 72 B R B AT 3K (R 7 4 Bk
FIER) 5 (i) AR AR 55 ) 6% 18 (A
I LR TE K S AT 3KIE 5 (iv) 7R
LN B 3 o A7 1 I T B S
EBREEREMATERE KM E
) B2 g RN AT 288 5 AR A U R
5 #AE B M E A K o

PG B R > KA BE T 5
7 A EHE S B ) AR T
(B DA WA B B FLE 5 (i) W
/DM 1A A DA R B (i R A5
K (iit) BB w2 MR T (B DA S AT for
Al ok BB B - W BE R =R
BEESH B E A R EE - M
B A E) - H R A R
Bl W L AE B G A T AR ) o

CE U AORAER T BRSO A TR A R

27



128

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B BV 5 e o M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The Group as lessee

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over

the lease term.

Intangible assets which represent transport operation
license, rights and patents, copyrights, computer
softwares, customer list and investments in film
productions are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over

their estimated useful lives.

The Group is involved in the agricultural activities of
the transformation of biological assets (vines) into
agricultural produce (grapes). The biological assets
are measured at fair value less costs to sell at initial
recognition and at the end of each reporting period.
The fair value of biological assets is determined based
on the present value of expected net cash flows from
the biological assets with reference to their growing
conditions. Gain or loss on initial recognition and
from subsequent changes in fair value less costs to sell
is included in profit or loss for the period in which it

arises.

The agricultural produce is initially measured at its
fair value less costs to sell at the time of harvest. The
fair value of agricultural produce is determined based
on market prices in the local area. Gain on initial
recognition at fair value less costs to sell is included in

profit or loss for the period in which it arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE - F—LE+T - H=Z+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The fair value less costs to sell at the time of harvest
of the agricultural produce becomes its cost for
the measurement of inventories. Such inventories
are subsequently stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an

expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete and
its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability
of resources to complete the project and the ability
to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when

incurred.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average basis. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of all production overhead
expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting
charges. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.
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4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for expected
credit losses (“ECL”) in accordance with the policy
set out in note 4(x) and are reclassified to receivables
when the right to the consideration has become

unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right
to receive consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding

receivable would also be recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a

net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest

accrued under the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B BV 5 e o i

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE - F—LE+T - H=Z+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
when the Group entity becomes a party to the

contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVIPL”)) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a

collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is

recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace. All recognised financial
assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at
either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the

classification of the financial assets.

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVTPL unless the equity investment is not held for
trading purposes and on initial recognition of the
investment the Group makes an election to designate
the investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are made
on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only
be made if the investment meets the definition of
equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is disposed
of. At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred
to retained profits. It is not recycled through profit or
loss. Dividends from an investment in equity securities,
irrespective of whether classified as at FVTPL or

FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as interest.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE - F—LE+T - H=Z+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract

asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using effective

interest method less allowance for credit losses.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash

and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under
HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and

equity instruments are set out below.

TR GEHBOR (8)

B A AR [ A S AR A O
AR > € fife w0 M8 ORI o 1 TE T
(R (= i1 R i < s DRV
o WA AE f) HE R D7 B A
o il 7 5 R B8 A o A A e
A0 AP AR ) T fE A o B % ROIE
GIME & #VEE

R WS L D B M) 5 0 9 4
WA B2 AR B R A 51

Bl K B4 S H W) 645 SR AT &5 A7
Lo Bz~ SRAT S H A G Al B 2
I A K B Wi ey 2 E A
AR~ AT R R S OO
RRA B LR (6 5 8 g i A 9
M- mREERNRE e Rk
BG4 Y e AT HN A B R
MR

A B B B AR TR TS AR B B R
SOE RV E PR HE N R R R
A i SV 5 S o v ) U R T
ARTRZELIITB - ATRTY
b I A AR TR RS AT BR BT A B AR
ZEE AR GRS AT
#1 o AT 7 94 E B AR M
AT H R 2wt BOg -

CE U AORAER T BRSO A TR A R

133



134

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B BV 5 e o M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using

the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12

months after the reporting period.

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as
a financial liability at the time the guarantee is
issued. The liability is initially measured at fair

value and subsequently at the higher of:

- the amount determined in accordance with
the ECL model under HKFRS 9; and

- the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of
income recognised in accordance with the
principles of HKFRS 15.

The fair value of financial guarantees is
determined based on the present value of the
difference in cash flows between the contractual
payments required under the debt instrument
and the payments that would be required without
the guarantee, or the estimated amount that
would be payable to a third party for assuming the
obligations. Where guarantees in relation to loans
or other payables of associates are provided for no
compensation, the fair values are accounted for as
contributions and recognised as part of the cost of

the investment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE - F—LE+T - H=Z+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be

immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added
tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any

trade discounts.

Revenues from manufacture and sale of a range of
embedded system products and related products
is recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered
to the customers, the customers have full discretion
over the channel and price to sell the products, and
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customers’ acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs
when the products have been delivered to the specific

location.

Revenue from the sale of wine and related products
is recognised when the Group sells the product to the

customer.
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4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from the management service income is
recognised when the services are rendered to the

customer.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is

required before the payment is due.

Revenue from the travel and leisure service is
recognised when the services are rendered to the

customer.

The Group has determined that for contracts with
customers under construction contracts, there may be
one or more than one performance obligation, which
include the provision of service and the construction of
infrastructure. For the provision of service, the Group
has determined that the customers simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits of the Group’s
performance and thus the Group concludes that
the service should be recognised overtime. For the
performance obligation related to the construction
contract, the Group determines that the customers
controls all the work in progress as the infrastructure
is being constructed, in the course of the construction,
the work in progress is being enhanced during the
terms of the contracts. Therefore, revenue from
these contracts are recognised over time. Uninvoiced

amounts are presented as contract assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE - F—LE+T - H=Z+—HILEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income from investments in film productions is
recognised when the Group’s entitlement to such
payments has been established, subject to the terms of

the relevant agreements.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using

effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’

rights to receive payment are established.

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to

the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity

leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit
or loss represents contributions payable by the

Group to the funds.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of the dates when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits, and when the
Group recognises restructuring costs and involves

the payment of termination benefits.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from

the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the
amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is
the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable
to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying

asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or

loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B BV 5 e o i

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE - F—LE+T - H=Z+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be

received.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they

become receivable.

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised
in profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end

of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax
losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects

neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of

the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying

amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and

liabilities on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B BV 5 e o i

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE - F—LE+T - H=Z+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of other non-financial assets
are reviewed at each reporting date for indications
of impairment and where an asset is impaired, it is
written down as an expense through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income to its estimated recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable
amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset
belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs of disposal of the
individual asset or the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated
future cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are
computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset/

CGU whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against
the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the
other assets of the CGU. Subsequent increases in the
recoverable amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they reverse

the impairment.

TR GEHBOR (8)

Fo At I B 5 7 2 R THT B TA 45 Hi
R AR A R R
FECLIME > JIAE 2% B SOB MR AR
18 i S A 4 T A i 2 O
Al 5T Wi [e] 2 B o AT i Iel B B
1 ] E R RE o A 7 A
FE RV 20 8 S FoAth T R
MEZBERA > ERFILT -
T W [ < R A E T 2 B
PR BV R SE o WA TE] R A A
B Bl B < AR A 2 T AR
BELFC N P (B B AR W P 2
B

(0 A0 80 2 B A LA
fliFE AR A Bl G i 2 B - B
Fie 2 W B W R TR R B
EEARM (CRHEBE) 2R
JE B 2 B R B AR o

B A B B R 4R R
B TEEAT N SRR R
91 7 B 4 7 A A7 LAt ' E D o
A7 50 B o R Al st g T 8 BCHC AR
T i (] S IR R AR AR

CE U AORAER T BRSO A TR A R

141



142

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B BV 5 e o M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

4.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
trade receivables and contract assets. The amount
of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the

respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets. The ECL on these
financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date, including time value

of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance
for that financial instrument at an amount equal to
12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected
to result from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting

date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B BV 5 e o i

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE - F—LE+T - H=Z+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking
information considered includes the future prospects
of the industries in which the Group’s debtors operate,
obtained from economic expert reports, financial
analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and
other similar organisations, as well as consideration
of various external sources of actual and forecast
economic information that relate to the Group’s core

operations.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly since initial recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available)

or internal credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular financial

instrument;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in

the operating results of the debtor;

- significant increases in credit risk on other

financial instruments of the same debtor; and

- an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet

its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable

information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to

have low credit risk if:

(i) The financial instrument has a low risk of default;

(i) The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;

and

(iii) Adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to

fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B BV 5 e o i

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE - F—LE+T - H=Z+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The Group considers a financial asset to have low
credit risk when the asset has external credit rating
of “investment grade” in accordance with the globally
understood definition or if an external rating is
not available, the asset has an internal rating of
“performing”. Performing means that the counterparty
has a strong financial position and there is no past due

amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the

amount becomes past due.

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are

generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by

the counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a

more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired

includes observable data about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

counterparty; or

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event; or

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for
economic or contractual reasons relating to the
counterparty’s financial difficulty, having granted
to the counterparty a concession(s) that the

lender(s) would not otherwise consider; or

- it is becoming probable that the counterparty
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation; or

- The disappearance of an active market for that

financial asset because of financial difficulties.

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, including when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised

in profit or loss.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B BV 5 e o i

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE - F—LE+T - H=Z+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information as
described above. As for the exposure at default, for
financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross
carrying amount at the reporting date; for financial
guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount
drawn down as at the reporting date, together with any
additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the
future by default date determined based on historical
trend, the Group’s understanding of the specific future
financing needs of the debtors, and other relevant

forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the expected ECL as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at

the original effective interest rate.

For a financial guarantee contract, as the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms of
the instrument that is guaranteed, the expected loss
allowance is the expected payments to reimburse the
holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts
that the Group expects to receive from the holder, the

debtor or any other party.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL in the previous reporting period, but determines
at the current reporting date that the conditions for
lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group measures
the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets for

which simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a
loss allowance account, except for investments in
debt instruments that are measured at FVTOCI,
for which the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve, and does not reduce
the carrying amount of the financial asset in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected to settle the

obligation.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.
(CONTINUED)

TR GEHBOR (8)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is

remote.
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of the Group or the Company’s parent. Al EPEERANBZ M
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(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the (by fii— B E AT A LRI

following conditions apply:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is

related to the others);

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which

the other entity is a member);

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same

third party;
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) (Continued)
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the

third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees of the

Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled

by a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a) (i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or

of a parent of the entity); or

(viii) the entity of any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the

Group’s parent,

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic

partner;

(ii) children of that person’s spouse or domestic

partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse

or domestic partner.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group’s business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of
the Group and which represents a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations,
or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a

view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale, if early. It also occurs when

the operations is abandoned.

When an operation is classified as discontinued,
a single amount is presented on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss comprehensive

income, which comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued

operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on
the disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s)

constituting the discontinued operation.

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s position at
the end of the reporting period or those that indicate
the going concern assumption is not appropriate are
adjusting events and are reflected in the consolidated
financial statements. Events after the reporting period
that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes

to the consolidated financial statements when material.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 5. HOK B R = Al EE
ESTIMATES
In the process of applying the accounting policies, the TEREM gt BOR 2 e > HRCAFH
directors have made the following judgements that have the DATR A &35 BB R R AR 2 i A R
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the CEON 2 Pt EUNIE YT
consolidated financial statements (apart from those involving AR M) .

estimations, which are dealt with below).

The Group holds 50% of the voting rights of its joint
arrangements. The directors have determined that
the Group has joint control over the arrangements
as under the contractual agreements, it appears that
unanimous consent is required from all parties to the

agreements for all relevant activities.

As explained in note 4(x), ECL are measured as an
allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets,
or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset
moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does
not define what constitutes a significant increase in
credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an
asset has significantly increased the Group takes into
account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and

supportable forward looking information.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE - F—LE+T - H=Z+—HILEE

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year, are discussed below.

The Group determines the estimated useful lives,
estimated residual values and related depreciation
charges for the Group’s property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
The Group will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives and residual values are different to those
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have

been abandoned.

The carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment as at 31 December 2019 was
RMB154,453,000 (2018: RMB315,628,000).

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.
During the year, income tax of RMB73,782,000 (2018:
RMB78,556,000) was charged to profit or loss based on
the estimated profit.
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5.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2019

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS
9 across all categories of financial assets requires
judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount
and timing of future cash flows when determining
impairment losses and the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by
a number of factors, changes in which can result in

different levels of allowances.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk for
exposures since initial recognition by comparing the
risk of default occurring over the expected life between
the reporting date and the date of initial recognition.
The Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort for this purpose. This includes
quantitative and qualitative information and also,

forward-looking analysis.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of
financial assets measured at amortised cost other
than trade receivables is RMB325,201,000 (2018:
RMB823,869,000).

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based
on the ageing and estimated net realisable value of
inventories. The assessment of the allowance amount
involves judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome in future is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value
of inventories and allowance charge/write-back in the
period in which such estimate has been changed. In
2019, no allowance for slow-moving inventories was
recognised to profit or loss (2018: RMB2,869,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE - F—LE+T - H=Z+—HILEE

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

The Group appointed independent professional
valuers to assess the fair values of certain financial
assets at FVTOCI. In determining the fair values, the
valuers have utilised methods of valuations which
involve certain estimates. The directors have exercised
their judgements and are satisfied that the methods
of valuations are reflective of the current market

conditions.

The carrying amount of the financial assets at FVOCI
as at 31 December 2019 was RMB108,943,000 (2018:
RMB135,244,000).

The Group’s biological assets are valued at fair value
less costs to sell. In determining the fair value less costs
to sell of the biological assets, the directors and the
management has applied the income approach which
requires a number of key assumptions and estimates
to be made such as discount rate, harvest profile, costs
incurred, cultivation area, and expected yield of the
biological assets. Any change in the estimates may
affect the fair value of biological assets significantly.
The directors and the vineyard expert have exercised
their judgement and are satisfied that the valuation is

reflective of their fair value.

The carrying amount of biological assets as
at 31 December 2019 was RMB726,000 (2018:
RMB1,058,000).
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk
and interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on

the Group’s financial performance.

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency
risk as most of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), United States dollars (“USD”), RMB,
Canadian dollars (“CAD”) and Euro (“EUR”). The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors
its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should

the need arise.

At 31 December 2019, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened 4% (2018: 4%) against HK$ with all
other variables held constant, consolidated profit after
tax for the year would have been RMB442,000 (2018:
RMB478,000) higher/lower, arising mainly as a result
of the foreign exchange gain/loss on cash and cash

equivalents denominated in HK$.

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly
through its investment in equity securities. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risk and
return profiles. The Group’s equity price risk is mainly
concentrated on equity securities quoted on the Hong

Kong Stock Exchange.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE - F—LE+T - H=Z+—HILEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

Sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the

reporting period.

If equity prices had been 10% (2018: 10%) higher/

lower:

o other comprehensive income for the year ended
31 December 2019 would increase/decrease by
RMB2,359,000 (2018: RMB2,464,000) as a result
of the changes in fair value of financial assets at
FVTOCI.

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not
meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating
activities (primarily trade receivables and other
receivables) and from its financing activities, including
deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign
exchange transactions and other financial instruments.
The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
cash and cash equivalents is limited because the
counterparties are banks and financial institutions
with high credit-rating assigned by international
credit-rating agencies, for which the Group considers

to have low credit risk.

Except for the financial guarantee given by the Group
as set out in note 40, the Group does not provide any
other guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk in
respect of these financial guarantees at the end of the

reporting period is disclosed in note 40.
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6.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

Customer credit risk is managed by each business
unit subject to the Group’s established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit
risk management. Individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over
a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are due within 90-
180 days from the date of billing. Debtors with balances
that are more than 3-6 months past due are requested
to settle all outstanding balances before any further
credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain

collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets at an amount equal
to lifetime ECL, which is calculated using a provision
matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss patterns
for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished

between the Group’s different customer bases.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(©)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

The following table provided information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade

receivables and contract assets as at each reporting

6. IV LB A B (4)

()

i % L B ()
WENG B B IR R 5 #9 B (4
TR AL A H

JE W5 B 5 B AR B B K EE I T
W5 B R PR Z B0 (5 B &

date: H
Gross

As at 31 December /R a1 2 Expected carrying Loss
2019 +-A=+—H Loss rate amount allowance
TE 00 s 1 R e T 48 {8 s $L 95 i

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR Tt PN B
Over 3 years past due a1 A = AR 100% 33,442 (33,442)
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. IV LB A B (4)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Credit risk (Continued) (c) fe&mEE (%)
Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued) JE I B 5 B R 5 49§ (48)
Gross
As at 31 December /A SN2 Expected carrying Loss
2018 +ZH=+—H loss rate amount allowance
T 4 iR il 48 1 s 18 48 1
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWT 5t ANRWT 5T
Current (not past due) B4 (R adu i) 5% 332,228 (4,236)
Less than 3 months past due #i Hi > = fil H 5% 192,763 (8,873)
3 — 6 months past due wH = N H 5% 178,613 (9,842)
6 — 12 months past due i ANE M A 5% 152,844 (7,606)
1 - 2 years past due W — 2 AR 10% 95,429 (9,543)
2 — 3 years past due 6 BH W 2 = AR 20% 33,995 (6,807)
Over 3 years past due i6T Y AR A = AR 100% 64,487 (64,487)
1,050,359 (111,394)
Expected loss rates were based on actual loss IR R B8 L =FNE
experience over the past 3 years. These rates were Ml BB w5 - S F RO AE
adjusted to reflect differences between economic AR s DL R A A SRR i 4R A
conditions during the period over which the historic 14 K€ IR DL B HORTIR DL AY 22 5L
data has been collected, current conditions and the DA R A A2 (8] 5 i K TE T 1 4 3
Group’s view of economic conditions over the expected 1 KL IR DLAY B -

lives of the receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B BV 5 e o i

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE - F—LE+T - H=Z+—HILEE

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
include other receivables, pledged bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents. In respect of pledged
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents, since
there is no significant increase in credit risk, any loss
allowance recognised during the year is therefore
limited to 12-months ECL. The directors consider the
probability of default is low on these balances since
the counterparties are financial institutions with high

credit rating or with good reputation.

The balance of other receivables measured at
amortised cost are considered to have low credit risk
as the counterparties are in good credit quality. Since
there is no significant increase in credit risk, any loss
allowance recognised during the year is therefore
limited to 12-months ECL. The directors consider the

probability of default is low on these balances.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. B %5 B A PR (A
(CONTINUED)
The movement for allowance for doubtful debts of JEWE S R A HE R 2 RIR
trade receivables and contract assets is as follows: B BT -
2019 2018
IR | K 2 TE AR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt NER¥T o
At 1 January w—H—H 111,394 81,045
Impairment losses recognised AT LR R 2 (A e 1R
for the year 31,836 31,026
Amount written off during the year A A BB 2 4 B - (650)
Reversal for the year A4 ] = (27)
Disposal of a subsidiary H A — [ B A H) (109,788) -
33,442 111,394

At #2908 8 SR R R 2 S
B4 S b R WORIH 2 R SR AT
frak A B Bl BBl (8 - A
B IR SR AT A7 B A S B B
S Y > R fE 8 B R B
HGI > B AR A B A i R
9 AT e s 18 488 4 BR S 12408 A 1)
FHEER EFERLH > ZEHHB
5 ) BE 3 MK > ISRy 22 B 3
FOr BB AR AT A R R
U 1 & A o

2 S A R 2 A AR OE
Y 4% R O 2 8 B LB A > MR
WG T INERERRL -
B {5 B R gy SIf 48 B 0 > 4
I e R AT AT Jls R 45 4 TR LG PR
121 A MG E ks - EFB S
L 45 & iR 2 78 KR AR -

CE U AORAER T BRSO A TR A R
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

6.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2019

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its

liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

6. IS A B A B (4)

A B B 2 B TG R ) B B
T 2 W) B BT OR o MR AL
JR ) B Al A o LA A 0 B

The maturity analysis based on the contractual WEALEBEMGAEMBABEGH
undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s non-derivative B BB 4 Y E W 4 A o
financial liabilities is as follows: T
On demand Between Between
or within 1 and 2 and More than
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
HE RS
AR R ks [ESKE R T A At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT  ARW®Tr  AR¥TL AR¥TT  AR¥TE
At 31 December 2019 REZ-METZA 4+‘H
Trade and other payables B0 R ABRE 3 59,365 - = - 59,365
Bank and other loans (note)  #7 R HAtt 3% Wﬂ 96,570 200,883 - - 297,453
Lease liabilities fHEAH 7,2 6,667 16,571 83,319 113,784
Financial guarantee BEER 490,000 - - - 490,000
At 31 December 2018 REF—-NE+ZA=1—H
Trade and other payables B0 R AR 5 501,652 - - - 501,652
Bank loans (note) SATEF (M) 930,817 - - - 930,817
Financial guarantee B 503,000 - - - 503,000
Note: B 5T

Bank and other loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or within 1 year” time band in the
above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the
aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of these bank and
other loans amounted to RMB5,878,000 and RMB5,983,000
respectively. Taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the directors do not believe that it is probable that
the banks and other financial institution will exercise their
discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment.

i bl ) B A3 T A R R
Ao $RAT B HA B A T B SR Bl
— AR R B o R R U R
F—/NFT+_H=Z1+—H ZERIT
T At B BRI A B B A 4 AR 43l 1
A R ¥5,878,0007C & A R ¥55,983,000
JG o KEFE KA AL BABIR DL >
TR By SRAT B H A 4 A R I R K T g
AT {68 JEL 7 % R B IR K o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B BV 5 e o i

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % “F—JuE+ A =+ —H IL4E

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. BB b A P (A
(CONTINUED)
Note: (Continued) sk - (40)
The directors believe that such bank and other loans will be AR A B SRAT S A B O A4
repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates B i ok BT TR A S 2 K H R
set out in the loan agreements. At that time, the aggregate JiE g A G ABRR K RS BE U
principal and interest cash outflows are as below: T
Total
Repayable Between 1 Between 2  Undiscounted
within 1 year and 2 years and 5 years cash flow
AHBZ
RN R K WMERLE BlEwEAn
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
NS ANRHEF T NRBET 76 NG S T
2019 R 477 477 5,703 6,657
2018 ZF— )\ 469 469 6,066 7,004

The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises from
its bank deposits and bank and other loans. These
deposits and borrowings bear interest at variable rates

varied with the then prevailing market condition.

At 31 December 2019, if interest rates at that date
had been 10 basis points lower/higher with all other
variables held constant, consolidated profit after
tax for the year would have been RMBI1,000 (2018:
RMB539,000) lower/higher, arising mainly as a result

of lower/higher interest income from bank deposits.

A B2 B TR 32 2 A A LB IR R
AT A7 30 S SRAT B H Al B3R 3% %
A 3R B A AR AR R B AT T DL
T 5E 1937 B 2 5 .

WoFE—NEFFH=+—H>
s B 2 R B B TH10f H
ST A A R A RS A A
RN 2 S BB Uk A D
HOMARH1,00000 (= F— /N4
A B #589,00000) » 45 ZE i ik 4R
(iR:2 O I-N | ONCE D V)i
H oo

CE U AORAER T BRSO A TR A R
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

6. IV LB A B (4)

2019 2018
K2 it SN2
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt PN e
Financial assets: W R
Financial assets measured P2 B AR B 2 B
at amortised cost 325,201 1,760,359
Financial assets measured at FVTOCI: DA\ ~F- {8 51 A HoAth 2 1w i 25
Equity instruments 2B ERE AT A 108,943 135,244
Financial liabilities: W S
Financial liabilities at amortised cost DA #E &4 iU A 51HE 2 B 7 & & 359,242 727,335

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets

and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated

statement of financial position approximate their

respective fair values.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an

asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction

between market participants at the measurement date. The

following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair

value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs

to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs:

Level 2 inputs:

Level 3 inputs:

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Group can access at the
measurement date.

inputs other than quoted prices
included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and

transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date of the

event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

TR A BB AR L3R R e 2 A B
SV 5 e s A T (i B
FABR P {E A -

O F A

DNV T 055 B R AT 2
A7 52 5 1 4 7 PR s 0
BT 2 91 © LR A (3R
45 (07 21 W A OHE - $ 78 F- B R )
B = 45 R B A

S — I g A B
S T g A B
o = i A B

AL F AR EHE E
HY 45 A (]
ARG RIS
s CRACTHE) -

5 — g P e 45 2
B HEREA
(ERERAIALEE i )
AT 2 A B
5 o

HE WA Mk
BLEE 2 W A% -

A AR B 2 OS2 5 A EOE i g
BSOS H o Bl AR A R R
AR Hop — HAF AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o A

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % “F—JuE+ A =+ —H IL4E

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 7.

(a)

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at

31 December:

o AR R ()
(@ RT+ZH=+—HAPHEFHZ

B -

Fair value measurement using: Total
B PR BRI Z 8 4% At
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2019
Wik B B BEE A
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWFE ARWTFxE ARWFxE ARWTx
At 31 December 2019 REZ-REF A=+ —H
Recurring fair value BN A E
measurements:
Financial assets WG E
Financial assets at FVTOCI DA ERTA HA 2 1
(note 26) Wit 2 B S (HifE26)
- Listed equity securities - LA B S 23,592 - - 23,592
- Unlisted equity securities LA - - 85,351 85,351
23,592 - 85,351 108,943
Biological assets (note 22) W iE (M FE22)
Vines L - - 726 726
Total At 23,592 - 86,077 109,669
Fair value measurement using: Total
NTERERE B Hst
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2018
3 H— o B=F ZF-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TE  AR¥TL AR¥WTT AR¥TI
At 31 December 2018 B2 NEFZA=1—H
Recurring fair value measurements: B A PR
Financial assets WG
Financial assets at FVTOCI PLA PR A EA 2 T
(note 26) Wi 2 BB (B 3E26)
- Listed equity securities - FTi AR 94,641 - - 94,641
- Unlisted equity securities - F R - - 110,603 110,603
24,641 - 110,603 135,244
Biological assets (note 22) AP e (EE22)
Vines k=L - - 1,058 1,058
Total B 24,641 - 111,661 186,302
TR UEER AORIERE BB AR A R A
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 7. PR ()
(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based b) MTEPE=IXAFETEZEE
on level 3: HHIE

Financial assets

at FVTOCI

unlisted equity Biological
Description securities assets 2019 Total
At A
Al 2 1 W A
PA Y E R
Wt b AR % K& At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F AR T N ST
At 1 January 2019 REZ-LHE—~H—H 110,603 1,058 111,661
Total gains or losses recognised T 3 e B 2 W i
in profit or loss R NMES® N 4 4
In other comprehensive income T F A A T A (25,252) - (25,252)
Decrease due to harvest R - (353) (353)
Exchange differences i 5672 48 - 17 17
At 31 December 2019 REZZ-AEFZAZT—H 85,351 726 86,077
® Include gains or losses for assets O GIERE AR Z
held at end of reporting period B 2 W SR - 4 4
Financial assets
at FVTOCI
unlisted equity Biological
Description securities assets 2018 Total
LR A
FAh A T i A
ZMBEREFE i SN
At LR A R e E Hst
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRHETF T ANRHEF 75 NG ST
At 1 January 2018 wWoZF—/NE—H—H - 4,976 4,276
Total gains or losses recognised TR B R 2 W 4 3
in profit or loss R B ERLED - (3,143) (3,143)
In other comprehensive income T Al A T 25 (78,805) - (73,805)
Transfer from level 2 HERAE _E 184,408 - 184,408
Decrease due to harvest e B 3 - (168) (168)
Exchange differences EE 58, 7 4 - 93 93
At 31 December 2018 WoFE—-NE+ZH=1+—H 110,603 1,058 111,661
® Include gains or losses for assets @ AR AR 2
held at end of reporting period BE 2 i k1R - (8,143) (3,148)

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE - F—LE+T - H=Z+—HILEE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

The total gains or losses recognised in other
comprehensive income are presented in other
comprehensive income in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss
are presented in other expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, unlisted equity
securities included in financial assets at FVTOCI
RMB184,408,000 were transferred from measurement
on level 2 to level 3 as a result of lack of similar

transactions in the market.

The Group’s financial controller is responsible for
the fair value measurements of assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes, including
level 3 fair value measurements. The financial
controller reports directly to the Board of Directors for
these fair value measurements. Discussions of valuation
processes and results are held between the financial
controller and the Board of Directors at least once a

year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will
normally engage external valuation experts with the
recognised professional qualifications and recent

experience to perform the valuations.

o PR G R (A

i At 2 TR A i PR e R 2 R i B
s TR AR B R A S A &
T W 4 2% T 2 A 2 T Wi 4R A 2
5]

SRR S PR E Y TEEECE Y
R 1R A M At 4 T 4 3R R A
Iy FCAt B S

BE_ZX-NF+A=1+—H
L4 B GEA A T EFA H A
2 T B ) BB A Y 9F b TR
775 75 N H5184,408,0007T A T
By bk =2 JE AL A2 5 i b AR AR
RS B -

AR ) 2 o s BT BB
HOETTHE 2 AT HFHE > B
B ERE - M AEE
O RZ %6 P (E wl ) 3 R B
W MBRERERGRDEH
B ERR P B AREAT — Kt

M =R ER RS > A%
2 T LA R T AR
Lo A0 0 A6 B 1) A1 T A B AT
f1E -

CE U AORAER T BRSO A TR A R
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 7.

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group (c)

2 P w6
AEMR-F—-hE+ A

and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value

measurements at 31 December 2019: (Continued)

=t —HIrRAAMGERF AP
B wH 8 R B 0 2 A6 48 5 ¥ Ko A
iRz i dE - (A

Level 3 fair value measurements Fair value
BEWAF AP
Effect on fair
value for
Valuation Unobservable increase of
Description technique Inputs Range inputs 2019 2018
B A\ Bk
i fi 5 % AMBEBAGR  HE AFEZEE  ZFOAE ZF-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARHTE AR¥ETT
Biological assets Discounted Risk-adjusted 10% (2018: 15%) Decrease 726 1,058
cash flows discount rate
EWERE MBS &R o A B B o
Growth rate 3% (2018: 2%) Increase
HRx K
Gross margin 44% (2018: 43%) Increase
EHE K
Private equity Market comparable  Discount for lack of ~ 30%-40% Decrease 85,351 110,603
investment classified  approach marketability (2018: 30%-40%)
at financial assets as
FVTOCI
AEAUAFEAKL 5Bk RZ Wh
o2 2 M & MEE
EMRFRALE
Financial multiples of 1.22-24.95 Increase
public companies (2018: 1.91-22.16)
WRARM R R K
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REVENUE

Disaggregation of revenue

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B BV 5 e o i

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % “F—JuE+ A =+ —H IL4E

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by

major products or service line for the year is as follows:

Continuing operations

A
e A W A

AR B MR R 2R A

HIMCA B AT

Discontinued operation

HEREER O Ik R 2R
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZENE ZEFE-NE ZERE _F—NAHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR¥TT ARW TR AR¥Tx
Revenue from contracts with 7 ¥ [ % $it 3 42 i
customers within the scope  SB153EHE N Z
of HKFRS 15 P AHWA
Disaggregated by major e 0 2 i IR B AR
products or service lines 4 2 A
— Sales and contract works - HERALRSR
of embedded system FEE il B R TR S i K
products and related GH LR
products = - 1,111,446 1,748,285
- Rendering of travel and — $R b e 2 S PR TR IR S
leisure services 138,153 138,849 - -
— Sales of wine and — i 55 A R B
related products AH B 11,318 9,896 - -
- Management fee income - fF MU A 5,761 8,697 ~ -
155,232 157,442 1,111,446 1,748,285

The Group derives all revenue from the transfer of goods

and services at a point in time except for the revenue from

certain travel and leisure services which are recognised over

the time.

AR A7 T i A A R 22 WSO 2 ol B ]
ERRAN - ALEB P AU AR AR —

I3 ] 6 A L S R

AU IR BB TR R A PR A
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9. OTHER GAINS AND INCOME 9. H ks WA

Continuing operations  Discontinued operations
15 BURE B 2R ORIk A8 8 2R 0

2019 2018 2019 2018

—FAHE ZF-NEFE ZFAE ZFNF

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETIE ARWTT ARBETE AR¥TT

Bank interest income SRATALE L A 338 119 1,925 2,219
Government grants (note) R A B (B 5 87 238 125 4,060
Interest income from loans  [] — 44 M 57 5 = Jy $2 {3t
to an independent B FLE A
third party - 1,307 - -
Share of income from 5346 T AR TG
film productions A 114 499 - -
Refund of value-added tax 3% {E B8 [l 342 - 5,832 14,744
Gain on bargain purchase e M I 2 Wt
(note 39(a) (ii)) (B339 (a) (ii)) 352 - - -
Others HAt 144 37 1,383 2,643
1,377 2,200 9,265 23,666
Note: Government grants represented subsidy to the Group by the BESE - IR il G AR b BB T A S 2 Al
PRC government as incentives primarily to encourage the B - 5% 55 A8 ) 5 TE 1 o A B 1t e
development of the Group and the contribution to the local T B TRt K o

economic development.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE - F—LE+T - H=Z+—HILEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on its
strategic business units that are managed separately by the
chief operating decision-maker. Each strategic unit requires

different technology, development and marketing strategies.

During the year, the Group had four reportable segments,

which were managed separately based on their business

nature:

Tourism development - development of travel and leisure
business

Investment holding — holding of fund, debt and
equity investment, including
management fee income

All other segments — business activities and operating
segments not separately
reported, including production
and sales of wine and related
products

Manufacture and sale - research, development,

of electronic fire manufacture, marketing,

equipment contract work and sale of

electronic fire alarm systems

and related products. This

segment was discontinued

during the year

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as those described in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements. Segment profits or losses do not
include interest income, unallocated other gains and
income, finance costs and unallocated corporate expenses.
Segment assets do not include unallocated corporate assets.
Segment non- current assets do not include financial assets
at FVTOCI and deferred tax assets.

The Group accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as
if the sales or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at current

market prices.

10. 73 &8 & B

7B AR o R S\ ST B
R S 5 AL o7 T 7B T A A0 o % SRS
SERS BT AR B - B KT 0K
W o

TRARA - A AR EA IR AT 3R i 20 5 o Sl
R U S5 1Y SE 5 1R e S B

il % 3 % J& — B% I iR A2 M AR TR

K
BB — A M AR
P& G EH
A
P Hof oy i — SE5 S B S AR )
#8728 57 i
o WA E &
9 ) 70 B A
B E it

CoRR(El ] T A R
el GE RNV E
CRREIYECE N
558 e K B E iy o
By & 2R AR A

LR o

Ry W 2 G R EURBLA R IR KR A
SV 5 S 3 R k4 BT R T B — B o ) E iR
Al 2 s 18 B4 FLE A ~ SR 23 L H At
W dd B MCA ~ il B AR AR B R 43 i A 2 B
3o AR AR R B EE o
3 ¥ I L A AN LA DL S (E A
it 2 T Wi A 2 SRS R I B TH K
7o

A R 7 B TH] 0 5 % I 0 1)
5 =07 B B BIRBAT AT o

CE U AORAER T BRSO A TR A R
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about operating segment profit or loss:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B BV 5 e o M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

10. 43 #B & B (&)
RO U R A R R

Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
BRI
HEREEH B
Manufacture
and sale of
Tourism Investment All other electronic fire
development holding segments Total equipment Total
| | ik Rt |
T 3 88 e Eagidls o2 i BB &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR ARBFr  AR¥Fx  AREFx  ARBFr  AR%fx
Year ended 31 December 2019 HEZZ-E
P E LT
Revenue from external customers RESRERZWA 138,153 5,761 11,318 155,232 1,111,446 1,266,678
Segment profit/ (loss) HER/ (B 59,147 (18,010) (1,873) 39,264 217,33 256,599
Interest income ﬂ BiA 158 24 156 338 1,925 2,263
Finance costs B (8,962) (4,228) (13,190)
Gain on deemed disposal of B EREA A 2
subsidiaries - 1,348,433 1,348,433
Unallocated corporate expenses ANREERY (18,150) - (18,150)
Profit before tax WL A 12,490 1,563,465 1,375,955
Other segment information: Hnmgs:
Impairment loss on trade and other & &/ﬁ\ﬂﬂﬂs 138
receivables, net HEERTH 6,651 = = 6,651 81,004 87,655
Interest expense MERY 5,269 1,530 268 7,061 6,152 13,213
Depreciation and amortisation T R 8,059 2,208 1,203 11,490 15,980 21470
Share of profits/ (losses) of associates M IEBE A Al / (B18) 3,587 (18,705) - (15,118) (2,015) (17,139)
Share of losses of joint ventures EhaatLER - (895) - (895) - (895)
Income tax expense P BB 15,190 99,474 2 37,666 36,116 75,782
Year ended 31 December 2018 HEZZ-N\E
FoHSt-RLER
Revenue from external customers KEMRER ZIA 188,849 8,697 9,896 157,442 1,748,285 1,905,727
Segment profit/ (loss) AR/ (8 66,377 (41,138) (2407) 99,832 409,867 439,609
Interest income ﬂ BIA 1,274 2% 127 1,426 2,219 3,645
Finance costs RERE (1,840) (10,111) (11,951)
Unallocated corporate expenses FARAERT (19,524) (2) (19,526)
Profit before tax Skl 3,004 401,973 405,067
Other segment information: Honmes
Impairment loss on trade and other % & B ACFR L (8
receivables, net ERBE - - - - 30,091 30,091
Interest expense flBRX 1,984 - 305 1,389 9,666 11,205
Depreciation and amortisation LB 3,185 pL 4936 7445 91,066 98511
Share of losses of associates HE 16 2 7 (380) (34,092) - (34,472) (4,208) (38,770)
Share of losses of joint ventures ElEAELEER - (1,069) - (1,069) - (1,069)
Income tax expense bR 16,820 9 - 16,829 61,727 78,556
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10. A FE R (%)
Ry I 2 ek

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about operating segment assets:

Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
AL
HERRENR B
Manufacture
and sale of
Tourism Investment All other electronic fire
development holding segments Total equipment Total
K] BERHE
il S ¢ 8 gcl o2 i BB &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AE®FE  AREFL  AR®Frx  AR®Fx AREFx  ARWFX
At 31 December 2019 REB-REFZAZH
Segment assets R 474,769 2,769,775 75,622 3,320,166 - 3,320,166
Unallocated corporate assets ARRAEER
Property, plant and equipment VENVET 6,280
Cash and cash equivalents ReRHL%EY 102,946
Others b 41,110
150,336
Total assets aEE 3,470,502
Segment assets including: g
Investments in associates REE AR 184,394 2,547,259 = 2,731,853 = 2,731,853
Investments in joint ventures REBLEIRE - 72,273 - 72,273 - 72,273
Additions to non-current asses FEFNBEE 69,144 97 400 69,571 37,299 106,870
At 31 December 2018 RZF-NEFZH=1—H
Segment assels HEE 331,140 879,964 95,068 1,236,172 9,182,518 3,418,690
Unallocated corporate assets FORGEEE
Property, plant and equipment EN T 6,790
Cash and cash equivalents He LB E%5EY 14,387
Others i 98,849
50,026
Total assets ik 3,468,716
Segment assets including: AR A
Investments in associates REEATZ T 196,840 453,290 - 650,060 17567 667,627
Investments in joint ventures RAEErELRE - 253,392 - 253,392 - 253,392
Additions to non-current assets FEFRB AR 1,29 38,461 316 40,073 37,732 77,805

AU IR BB TR R A PR A
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 10. HEPE R (4)
Geographical information: Hu &R :
Revenue Non-current assets
B A I i By
2019 2018 2019 2018

“FUE —F-NAE ZFOE ZFNAE
RMB000  RMB’000  RMBE'000  RMB’000
ARWTIE AR®TT ARWTRE AR®TT

PRC except Hong Kong L OR B 45 A i) 1,248,857 1,894,772 2,956,855 1,210,395
The United States Bt 16,282 10,649 11,492 12,718
Canada N 1,539 177 = 60,858
Others HAth = 129 = 48

1,266,678 1,905,727 2,968,347 1,284,019

In presenting the geographical information, revenue is based S RN WA TS AR BE R BT AE
on the locations of the customers. H o
For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, revenue REE R — U = F— 4+
from any single external customer does not attribute to 10% A=+ —HIEEE - {E8—SMNE%E 7
or more of the Group’s revenue. 2 WA A A G F A 210 % B
oo
11. FINANCE COSTS 11, & A
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
T M REB R O A% 1k 282 28
2019 2018 2019 2018

SF S At SN SN A=t SUX
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTE ARMTE ARETE ARETT

Interest on bank and SR AT R HoAth £ 35 R S

other loans 2,834 1,539 6,152 9,666
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEZAE 4,227 - — -
Net foreign exchange loss/ S E S48 7

(gain) (W 25) 77 %8 1,901 301 (1,924) 445

8,962 1,840 4,228 10,111

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Continuing operations

A B BV 5 e o i

12. F s B b 32

Discontinued operations

FrHERBEY ORI EE
2019 2018 2019 2018
SE LR ZF-NE F L ZF-N\EF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRET LG AR¥TUT ARBTIL AR¥ T
Current tax R A B TE
Provision for the year A A JEE 45 A
- Hong Kong (note (i)) - & (M) 22,474 - - -
- PRC - 11,436 15,397 44,700 65,975
(Overprovision) / AT AR
Underprovision in (BB 135 ) /
prior year BHA L
- PRC — (51) 455 (3,689) (314)
33,859 15,852 41,011 65,661
Deferred tax (note 35) AR E B I ([ 5135) 3,807 977 (4,895) (3,934)
37,666 16,829 36,116 61,727

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required for the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 since the Group

had no assessable profit for both years.

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere has been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the country in
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,

interpretations, and practices in respect thereof.

Three subsidiaries of the Group had been certified by the
relevant PRC authorities as high technology enterprises.
Pursuant to the Income Tax Law in the PRC, these three
subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax

(“EIT”) at a rate of 15% effective for three years within 2019.

MR 2 R — R =F— )\
A = — H AR AR I A SR
Bl > DR A I 5 v AR 4 NI 4
SRR A o

A b 7 R U 1) 2 BT T AR AR
R S I FE B R 2 BAT LB - iR
LA 3% 2 0 2 BAT LA o

A 55 T = [H] B JE 2~ WA R B A R R
RO R BT BB AR 3 o AR P AL
o W% = T M A R EAR 15 % 2 Bl A
S AR SE T AR ([ SE At ) - R
TR JUAR I =R A AR o

CE U AORAER T BRSO A TR A R

175



176

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o B U 5 i A i R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

12.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2019

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)
Other subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC

are generally subject to income tax on their taxable income
at a tax rate of 25% (2018: 25%).

Note (i):

In 2011, a subsidiary of the Group received an assessment
demanding final tax for the year of assessment 2004/2005
from the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (the “IRD”).
The amount of this assessment was HK$47,852,000 (equivalent
to RMB41,928,000) in which HK$47,748,000 (equivalent to
RMB41,837,000) relating to a claim for gain on disposal of long
term investment recognised during the year ended 31 December
2004. On 25 February 2013, the IRD issued a notice to the subsidiary
informing that the case has been forwarded to the Appeals Section
of the IRD for further processing. No provision was made as at 31
December 2018 as the directors opined that the subsidiary had
strong grounds and sufficient evidence to defend the capital nature
of the gain. Moreover, the IRD regarded the assessment as protective
action and allowed those part of tax relating to the contended
capital gain to be held over unconditionally pending the outcome
of objection. The directors opined that the action of the IRD
highly correlated with timing factor because the year of assessment
2004/2005 became statutorily time-barred by the end of March 2011.
The assessment of HK$47,852,000 (equivalent to RMB41,928,000)
was considered as contingent liabilities of the Group as at 31
December 2018. During the year ended 31 December 2019 and
subsequent to year end date, after several communications with the
IRD, the said claim for gain on disposal of long term investment is
ultimately determined as a trading profit. The amount of assessment
was finalised and amounted to HK$25,565,000 (equivalent to
RMB22,474,000) and recognised in profit or loss.

12.

Pt 45 B¢ BA 3 (48)

AR w) A AR ST 2 E At B R 2 ) 2
ZEURR B U A B 25 % (—F — N\
AF 1 95% ) BIAN T A B o

BFREG)

R AR — R A A B A
WREE ((HER D) N ZZm,/ —EEH
AR R TR B B O N E o SRR S A
47,852,000 # ot (B 5 it A K 41,928,000
Jt) > Hop 47,748,000% o0 (H1 % AN R %
41,837,0000) BL# £ ~F R 4FE —H
Et—HIEFECHERVERNZEZ
Wiz HERAR - R _F - =F_H_THh
Ho» BiFS 5 ) s% e A | g tham > e f
BB AR AR R b AR 4L o — 2 e 2 o
H R T R A % B RS A R A R A B AR K
AP R 2 B A R SO S R
— /T H = — BB E# o sk Bl
B mARLRT B 2 (R AT E) > BRTEZSE A2 T
RE A R 2 W BUIE o FEAT RO R A
RATERIEE - EFRABRBE R Z2ATHF
AR E > BTy R &
FERFBAFER - F——F=HEC
ERE R 47,852,0009 76 (FH & i N R #
41,928,0007C) . ¥ F 4 B 0 A 7 A 4E [
TE - NEF AT A ZERAE - #
BB -NEF A=+ HAEEE RAFA
A% > fF BLRLTS R AT SOl il A 4% > Lot
A5 AR AR 1 F R Y i A E 1 38 o R
T o FEAL RO A E > 7 325,565,000
T (H i N R H22,474,00000) > 3F £ 7
8RR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % “F—JuE+ A =+ —H IL4E

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 12. FrfaBipA X (4)

Continuing operations  Discontinued operations
5 B 58 28 28 05 A% 1k £ S B
2019 2018 2019 2018
—hEFE ZF-NAF DFOLE ZF AR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIE ARWTT ARBETE AR¥TT

Profit before tax o i i ¥ | 12,490 3,094 = 1,563,465 401,973

Tax at domestic income tax %5 A r 155 225%
rate of 25% (2018: 25%) (T F—)\4 1 25%)
A 2 BLIA 3,123 774 390,866 100,493

Tax effect of share of results JE{LH & A\ 7 ELHE 2

of associates Tt 15 5 2 3,780 8,618 504 1,075
Tax effect of share of losses  JEfE & &M EH

of joint ventures o075 55 2B 224 267 - -
Tax effect of income thatis A MEFBLUILA Z BB

not taxable R (174) (764)  (337,763) 125
Tax effect of expenses that A A 113 3 1 2 B

are not deductible 2 1,765 1,379 3,005 2,438
Tax effect of utilisation of 6y 8 R A R BT

tax losses not previously e 18 2 T 5 5 B

recognised (26) (7) - -
Tax effect of tax losses not KHEFB BT s 18 2

recognised o 5 5 22 6,431 5,998 13,140 12,738
Tax effect on previously WA T& |-

disposed investments B 52 28 (B 5k (1))

(note (i)) 22,474 - = -
(Overprovision) / W AETE G THE) /

Underprovision in prior AL

year (51) 445 (3,689) (304)

Effect of different tax rate of it H:Ath 7] 15 [ 4% 4
subsidiaries operating in BF )& 2 B S [R] Bl 2R 2

other jurisdictions 2 201 199 8 -
Tax effect of tax concession P JE I8, % 2 B 15 5 28 (81) (80) (25,237) (45,596)
Super deduction of research B 8§ BH 3¢ 2 # #H 0 BL

and development costs - - (4,718) (9,242)
Income tax expense FIr 158 B 52 37,666 16,829 36,116 61,727

CE U AORAER T BRSO A TR A R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B BV 5 e o M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE
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13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 13. A4F &t Al
The Group’s profit for the year is stated after charging/ AR B ARAE B U M EHBR, (REA) BLR
(crediting) the following: KIH -
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
HEREER AR T
2019 2018 2019 2018

SO ZF-AE CEONE DEAR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWTE ARWTE ARETE ARWTE

Amortisation of other HoAh 4 T8 & E R

intangible assets and BREREZRE

investments in film 1 £

productions 2,406 2,382 1,337 1,088
Auditors’ remuneration % B i 7 4 1,100 1,310 ~ -
Cost of inventories sold C 8 A7 B A 34,403 26,013 649,977 986,414
Depreciation charge: Preg e
— Property, plant and — WA W R

equipment owned T % M 4,652 4,383 14,643 21,337

— Right-of-use assets — MG E 4,477 - - -

(Gain) /Loss from changes in 44 & & /A - (B 55 B

fair value less costs to sell T A 2

of biological assets (e as) /HE 48 (4) 3,143 - -
Loss on disposal and written 8 K i #4493 -

off of property, plant and I35 T % 4 T 12

equipment - 31 274 22
Operating leases charges M5 7 o & 5t e A
in respect of land and ST T T
buildings under HKAS 17 Z KA L - 11,667 — 9,331
Short-term leases charges A B S 1,199 - 6,978 -
Research and development  BF 5% J B 2% %
expenditure - - 56,430 92,771
Cost of inventories sold includes staff costs and depreciation EEFREMAGE B TlA XIT LA
of approximately RMB77,512,000 (2018: RMB62,605,000) R ¥77,512,0000C (—F— /\4F : A\R¥
which are included in the amounts disclosed separately 62,605,0007T) » #Z5F A AR b SR
above. 9 2 A e

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % “F—JuE+ A =+ —H IL4E

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 14. 1@ B & A B %
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
PR EEY ORI EE
2019 2018 2019 2018
SE O CEAE CE U FE A
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRET LG AR¥TUT ARBTIL AR¥ T
Salaries, bonuses B4 ACAL SOEERG
and allowances 46,319 42,901 128,499 178,553
Retirement benefit ERA NIRRT
scheme contributions 8,123 8,566 31,072 35,653
54,442 51,467 159,571 214,206

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the
year the ended 31 December 2019 included 1 director (2018:
Nil) whose emolument is reflected in the analysis presented
above. The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals

are set out below:

WIRE B JUF T A= H LA
HE S T RN A L9 4
HR (I )+ RN
B ESCR I Z AT o T4 R AT A
2 ESE

2019 2018
SEUE BN
RMB’000 RMB’000

ANRW Tt ANRETIT

Basic salaries and allowances FEARF 4 AR
Discretionary bonus 9 1 AL AL
Retirement benefit scheme contributions ARG F] F 3k ax

3,849 5,869
1,842 2,970

349 590
6,040 9,429

CE U AORAER T BRSO A TR A R
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 14. & B & A B X (4)
(CONTINUED)
The emoluments fell within the following band: L% R

Number of individuals

N
2019 2018
—R—hEE T\
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 5C %1,500,0003 70
(equivalent to RMB878,000 CFH it N R H5878,00070 &
to RMB1,317,000) (2018: ANE#1,517,0007C)
RMB876,000 to RMB1,314,000) (ZF—N\F NR%876,00070
= NR¥1,314,00000) 4 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 5 7T £ 2,000,000 70
(equivalent to RMB1,317,000 CRH i N %01,317,00000 2
to RMB1,757,000) (2018: N EH1,757,0007T)
RMBI1,314,000 to RMB1,752,000) (=& — 4F 0 AR H1,314,00000
= NR¥1,752,00000) 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 JC £2,500,0005 76
(equivalent to RMB1,757,000 CFH i N H01,757,0000T &
to RMB2,196,000) (2018: N E%2,196,0007T)
RMB1,752,000 to RMB2,191,000) (. F— /F 0 ANR¥E1,752,00000
% AR ¥2,191,0007T) = 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 JC %3,000,0009 JC
(equivalent to RMB2,196,000 CFH 8 i N R 02,196,000 7T £
to RMB2,635,000) (2018: A R #2,635,00070)
RMB2,191,000 to RMB2,629,000) (=& — 4F 0 AR H2,191,00000
% AR ¥#2,629,0007T) - 1

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % “F—JuE+ A =+ —H IL4E

15. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’

EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (a) EFREFME
The remuneration of every director and supervisor in HHEFREFHHIBLER (N
respect of a person’s services as a director, whether of A\ B H M g A R 2 B 4 an
the Company or its subsidiary undertaking is set out o
below:
Retirement
Salaries and  Discretionary  benefit scheme
Fees allowances bonus  contributions Total
BIRHA
e EEY S R AN i 31k CE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(1K IN RO AR¥TE  ARKTR INSLR T NN B
Name of directors HERL
Mr. Ni Jinlei Regkt 80 908 - - 988
Mr. Zhang Wanzhong TR f etk 278 579 - 46 903
Ms. Zheng Zhong WE Lt 220 440 - 127 787
Ms. Xue Li HELt 80 - - - 80
Mr. Xiang Lei HELE = = = = =
Mr. Ip Wing Wai ERHEE 80 - - - 80
Mr. Shao Jiulin YIRS 80 - - - 80
Mr. Li Juncai B A 80 - - - 80
Mr. Li Chonghua BEERE 80 - - - 80
Mr. Shen Wei WA 80 - - - 80
1,058 1,927 - 173 3,158
Name of supervisors A
Mr. Fan Yimin T—REE 50 - - - 50
Mr. Ouyang Zishi BRFS T 50 - - - 50
Mr. Pan Yudong ®TAREE 50 - - - 50
Ms. Dong Xiaoging EREG Lt 50 - - - 50
Ms. Zhou Min % £ 50 - - - 50
250 - - - 250
Total for 2019 “F-hAEA 1,308 1927 - 173 3,408

15. FFLEFHE

AU IR BB TR R A PR A
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

15. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ 15. # 3 J B & (8
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EHRLEHMWE (H)
Retirement

Salaries  Discretionary  benefit scheme

Fees  and allowances bonus  contributions Total
B
e AT MELA Eig e Ll
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

(i) AR#®TT  AR%®TT  AR®TT  ARBTIT  ARWTX

Name of directors HHEH

M. Ni Jinlei fReskE 80 873 - - 953
Mr. Zhang Wanzhong it # 1 ek 272 556 - 43 871
Ms. Zheng Zhong BEL L 220 440 - 125 785
Ms. Xue Li 3 RN 80 - - - 80
Mr. Xiang Lei HELE - - - - -
M. Ip Wing Wai R 133 - - - 183
M. Shao Jiulin b Sk A2 80 - - - 80
Mr. Li Juncai BRI KA 80 - - - 80
M. Li Chonghua BRI 80 - - - 80
Mr. Lin Yan JiSep s (i) 33 - - - 33
Mr. Shen Wei A S (i) 47 - - - 47

1,105 1,869 - 168 3,142

Name of supervisors EHy

Mr. Fan Yimin Rt 50 - - - 50
Mz, Ouyang Zishi BB T HEE 50 - - - 50
M. Pan Yudong BT REE (ii) 29 - - - 29
Ms. Dong Xiaoging ~ #EBEH L L (ii) 29 - - - 29
Ms. Zhou Min liliG R 50 - - - 50
Prof. Yang Jinguan s B (i) 91 - - - 91
Mr. Lu Qingfeng SR (i) 21 - - - 21
250 - - - 250
Total for 2018 “E - \EA 1,355 1,869 - 168 3,392
Note: (i)  Retired on 31 May 2018 MGt s () RoF—-NAFERLA=1—
H iR AE
(i) Appointed on 31 May 2018 (i) RoF—/EHH=+—
Hf#ZAT
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15. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

15. #3F J B H < (4])

Pursuant to the service contracts entered into
between the Company and its executive directors,
the Company’s executive directors are entitled to an
aggregate amount of discretionary bonuses of not more
than 5% of the consolidated profit after tax but before

the provision of such bonuses.

There was no arrangement under which a director or a
supervisor waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors or supervisors as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office during the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018.

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company was a party and in which a director of
the Company and the director’s connected party had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during

the year.

WREA L A AT E R RIS 2
e B 5 &) > A Ox F AT HE A R
PR A B BIA (ER R
AL 2 HiT) AR B M5 % 2 MG IEAL

WME_F - LFERF N
ToA=tT—H IR BE
= Bl B g i IR R S AT T
a3

WEF IR CFE AR
S EN N S
S 9 ) £ 5 5K B 50 A
LR LTIV PE R E T
B 2 S K R B -

A A A A 5 A 4 T SE S RT S AT
AT 7 AR AR B4R 1A A AT B [ A7 A T
VAT S ol F NS
CRE EPN AN sk
) WERLZ Y~ L REH -
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16.

17.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2019

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s contributions to the
MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% of the salaries and wages
subject to a monthly maximum amount of HK$1,500 per
employee and vest fully with employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The Group’s PRC employees are members of a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. The Group is required to contribute certain
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and wages to
the central pension scheme to fund the retirement benefits.
The local municipal government undertakes to assume the
retirement benefits obligations of all existing and future
retired employees of the Group. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the central pension scheme is to meet

the required contributions under the scheme.

The Group also operates other retirement benefits schemes
for all qualifying employees in elsewhere and required to
contribute certain percentage of the employee’s salaries

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

(LOSS) /EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share from
continuing operations and discontinued operations
attributable to owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2019 is based on the loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of RMB39,849,000
(2018: RMB29,742,000) and a profit of RMBI,442,238,000
(2018: RMB176,771,000) respectively and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 1,378,720,000 (2018:
1,378,720,000) in issue during the year. No adjustment has
been made to the basic (loss)/earnings per share amounts
presented for the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.
Therefore, the calculation of the diluted earnings per share

is the same as basic earnings per share.

16.

17.

B 1 A ST S

A £ [ AR5 7 s o ) 1 A i R e 451
T A G S R B — JE R
ARG EE (TR a st S ) o A4 mH
SR H R TIREH SR TE
5% wH - & B L8 H s AR
1,500% 7T > 11 B A 4 [ A7 A 98 B 4wt
# R B LR — MR BT A o

ARSI 2 v B AR E T 22 B v T BT
AT 2 SR AR B Rl o A SR B2 [
RBREFIHANREERA TSR TE
2T LB BB ARAR A o b T B
JRF B BRI A A B P A B S BRI AR AR
18 B 2 B IRAR R 2 PE o e b B R
FEEIT & - A B 2 BT A% 2 AU %t
# R PR K

AT F &M A G EKESR -
AL HA AR AR A Sl R A SR
R TER R EATREEHF NS TH
I3 HAE K o

BB OE#E) B

BEE - NLE+ A=+ HIE
B AR AR AL AR B Rr A
DN MENRR S & F AR TN
(&) /BRI AR IR AN "l HEA
N A A AF 3 s 18N R 16 39,849,0000T
(ZF—/\4E 0 AR ¥29,742,0007C) K
Tt Al A #51,442,288,00000 (% — )\
0 NRH176,771,0000T) K AE K E 8
A7 3 78 JI I HE - 3 $01,378,720,000 (—
E— )\ 1 1,378,720,000) L 515 - 4%
mHE —E - NFE K T NFT
A= —H IR E 2 A (1) /7
ZRE 03 o Sk Ut > w1 o3 A e 2
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE - F—LE+T - H=Z+—HILEE

18. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company
dated 1 February 2013 and the circular of the Company
dated 27 February 2013 on the proposed spin-off of Jade
Bird Fire Co., Ltd (formerly Beida Jade Bird Universal
Fire Alarm Device Company Limited) (“Jade Bird Fire”),
a subsidiary of the Group, and a separate listing of the
manufacture and sale of electronic fire equipment business
owned and operated by Jade Bird Fire on The Small and
Medium Enterprises Board (the “SME Board”) of the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (the “Proposed A Share Listing”).
On 19 July 2019, Jade Bird Fire received a written approval
issued by the China Securities Regulatory Commission in
respect of the initial public offering of Jade Bird Fire (the
“Approval”). Pursuant to the Approval, Jade Bird Fire was
approved to publicly issue no more than 60 million new
shares within 12 months from the date of the Approval. On
8 August 2019, Jade Bird Fire issued the Announcement
on the Listing of the Shares Offered under Initial Public
Offering, pursuant to which, 60,000,000 shares at a price of
RMB17.34. The shares of Jade Bird Fire were listed on the
SME Board of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange on 9 August
2019, with stock code 002960. Details were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 19 July 2019, 29 July
2019 and 8 August 2019.

Following the completion of the Proposed A Share Listing
on 9 August 2019, the equity interest of the Group in
Jade Bird Fire was diluted from 51.02% to 38.27%. Jade
Bird Fire ceased to be a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company and the Group discontinued its business of
manufacture and sale of electronic fire equipment. Jade
Bird Fire became associate of the Group with effect from
the same date and has since been accounted for using the
equity method of accounting. Accordingly, Jade Bird Fire was
presented as discontinued operations in the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2019. The comparative figures for the year
ended 31 December 2018 in these consolidated financial
statements have also been re-presented to present Jade
Bird Fire as discontinued operations. Financial information
relating to the discontinued operations for the period to the
date of disposal is set out below. The financial performance

presented are for the period from 1 January 2019 to 8
August 2019 and for the year ended 31 December 2018.

18.

CARILREER
RN R AW —F—=F " H—
HZ A ZARA R H W R =% — =4
TAZ T EHZER > NEABERS
PrRAD vl — B B T 2 7 75 055 7 B IR 0 A7
FRAR GERifg At KT BRFEH
R ERAR) (TFSHEP]) k%S
S KOS E N R R EET
TH B 5% 4 26 05 0 TR I 38 25 28 5 BT /s
A 2R ([ /A 2k ) S BT (T2
%Nﬁiﬁj WoFE—ELH TR

H S B B 5 e %
Eﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ\%%ﬁﬁmmi
e (TRZ3E]) » Rt - 55
T By 28 7 e At o TR 124 A A B
AT A Z 160,000,000 87 14y - T —
T—E/NHNH - BB M6 CE
WA BT IS i 3 » BRIt
60,000,0008 B f 1) 85 47 18 5 N B
17.347C - HE R BB E R —F—JL
A \H U H TEEN R 5558 5 i /A 3
Mo bl > B i RE 2 [ S ) ey
IR 25002960 o FF1E 45 # 7% A< 2> 7] A #)
BZF—JUELH TILHE » ZF—JU4E
tAZFHFRHEF—ENANHZ
A o

e AR EH R = F— L /AH JUH
SERUAR > AN R S T B R RERE T H
51.02%4k 1 288.27% - H & H B A
AN AN IERE MG A > 1A 4E
O 4% F H R I B 5 5B T T B sk i 2
o B R IHBE AR — H I A 5 AS 4
RN ) e B U DARE 25 & ik AR o
U > HREBRAAFARE ZF—L
E+H=Z+—HILEEZEL WY
WERIN K BEER - 550
MHEREFNRE T — N\FE+ A
=4 — H L4 2 e eE R B
%ﬂ:%%%ﬁ%%ﬂﬁahmﬁ“%
o AR A RAM & & H BT &

BB EV BB E RS T o M%ﬂ
MHHRHRE_F—F—H—H
FE R JUENAA N EERE %
—NE+ A=+ —HILERE -
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18. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED) 18. DARIEREEH (M)

2019 2018
BN Sy | I 2 TE— )\
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
R 5 AR T UNERY & R
Revenue g 8 1,111,446 1,748,285
Cost of sales and services B B I IR AR (656,458) (1,008,509)
Gross profit E=v 454,988 739,776
Other gains and income Hopth e 25 B e A 9 9,265 23,666
Impairment loss on trade and & 5y I At 1 ik Z R
other receivables (31,004) (30,591)
Distribution costs NORIEN 2R (98,436) (143,718)
Administrative expenses AN (50,469) (79,714)
Other expenses TR (63,069) (93,037)
Finance costs oA BH 52 11 (4,228) (10,111)
Share of losses of associates Tl & A (2,015) (4,298)
Profit before tax [%: B 7l s A 215,032 401,973
Income tax expense FIr 18- BH <2 12 (36,116) (61,727)
Profit after tax from KACKILEEEBTZ
discontinued operations B Bl AR Ui A 13 178,916 340,246
Gain on deemed disposal VLR 65 B i o /] 2
of subsidiaries I 2 39(b) 1,348,433 -
Profit from discontinued operations 5K H B # 1k 888 £ 2
i A1) 1,527,349 340,246
Cash flows generated from FEAE RO EER
discontinued operations Waehie
Net cash (used in)/generated from () /A B 815 B
operating activities Z B (277,056) 111,135
Net cash used in investing activities i % & 16 8 2 B 4 77 58 (24,456) (42,432)
Net cash generated from/ (used in) EAA R @g s o)
financing activities 2B 4 99,979 (2,912)
Effect of foreign exchange rate A1 HE [ 3 58 ) 2 5 %8¢
changes 4,515 712
Net cash (outflow)/inflows Bl (i) AR (197,018) 66,503

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2019




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B BV 5 e o i

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % “F—JuE+ A =+ —H IL4E

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. P3E ~ Wb K oak i

Leasehold
improvements,
furniture
Frechold Machinery ~ and office Motor Constructionin ~ Right-of-use
land  Leasehold land Buildings ~ and equipment ~ equipment vehicles progress assets Total
figh
kAR £ iR
o #ELE BY  HERRE  BARGE KE kBRI fERE fi
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000
MRBTL  AREFR  ARRTX  ARMFR  ARETRX  ARETX  AREFR  ARETR  AREFR
Cost Wk
At January 2018 RZF-NF-f-H 17,786 15,620 207,648 59975 2449 74229 B47 - “13
Acquisition of W FRELA (e

a subsidiary 39(a))

(note 39(a)) - - - 172 2N It} - - 0
Additions KE - - 105 5,464 4,854 700 19,681 - 30,804
Transfers L - - 21,862 234 39,092 - (65,278) - -
Disposals and written ot~ th% L5 - - - (800) (683) (419) - - (1.893)
Exchange differences Eizd (209) - (197) 17 622 14 (1,002) - (1,195)
A3l December 018 REF-AEFZA

as originally restated SR WEEEA 1751 15,620 208,818 67,812 7,054 T4609 3,448 . 475,338
Initial application to HIERFRA RS

HKFRS 16 (note 2(a)) ~ ERI16% (ko)) - (15,620) - = - = - 85,652 70,082
Cost, as restated & WE 17571 - 28,818 67,312 67,954 74,609 3,448 85,652 545,370
Acquisidion of subsidiaries (M B/

(note 39(2) (Bk391a) - - - 39 3% - 3314 - 3,681
Discontinued operations & A% £

(note 39(b)) (3Es9(b)) (13,611) - (229,017) (67,055) (65,575) (8,236) (751) (9,704) (393,947)
Additions HE - - 6,661 1,819 1,653 13,445 2,629 2,029 54,236
Transfers i - - 3,258 3,252 (2,101) - (4,400) - -
Disposals and written ot~ th% L5 = = = (409) (179) (4,060) - - (4,64)
Exchange differences Bz 586 - 1,097 7 19 13 (40) = 9,748
At 31 December 2019 REF-1E

FZREFH 4,552 - 17 5201 7941 T5,11L 33,191 97,97 266,446

AU IR BB TR R A PR A
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B BV 5 e o M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

19. W3 - W Kkt ()

(CONTINUED)
Leasehold
improvements,
furniture
Freehold Machinery and office Motor Constructionin  Right-of-use
land Leasehold land Buildings ~ and equipment  equipment vehicles progress assets Total
LR
KK £ Kk
o MELHE By BEARE  WARG RE - RRIB  WMERE il
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARMFL ARETx  ARETX ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETR ARETR
Accumulated depreciation itk
At January 2018 RZF-AF-A-H - 1510 31307 23,861 18,723 60,355 - - 185,376
Charge for the year Emsh - 2 8308 6,906 6,178 383 - - 9,190
Transfer i - - (4:412) (691) 5,103 - - - -
Disposals and written ot~ th& L5 - - - (784) (677) (267) - - (1,728)
Exchange differences Ernzi - - 7 124 (10) 21 - - 142
At31 December 2018 RoZ-NETZA
as originaly estated -0 MREER 5 1,802 35,430 29416 0,117 63,945 = = 150,710
Initial application to HRER AR RS
HKFRS 16 (note 2(a)) T 16% (H319(a)) - (1,802) - - - - - 1,802 -
Accumulated depreciation, ZHE 87
as restated - - 35,430 29416 0,117 65,945 - 1,802 159,710
Charge for the year Ept - - 6,086 44 45 3.0 - 44m 81
Transfer i - - - 30 (39) 3 - - -
Discontinued operations & A& £
(note 39(b)) (iks9)) - - (87,179) (20454) (2,783) (4,269) - (756) (97,441)
Disposals and writien off & sk - - - (384) (159) (3,825) - - (4,368)
Exchange differences Eizd - - 152 119 £ 7 - - 3
At31 December 2019 REF-0E
+2AZE-H - - 4489 4441 1,755 59,785 - 5,52 81,993
(Carrying amount K i
At31 December 2019 RZF-E
+ZREE-H 4,552 - 7228 856 186 15,986 35,191 92,454 154,453
At 31 December 9018 REE-NE
ToAZE-H 17571 13,818 195,388 37,806 38,837 10,664 5,448 - 315,628
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

The analysis of the net carrying amount of right-of-use assets

19. Y3~ BE &

SRR R 7 S 0 A 4 £ P T T R

A B BV 5 e o i

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % “F—JuE+ A =+ —H IL4E

W i (%)

by class of underlying assets is as follows: E{FEMT
Leasehold Lease
land contracts Total
ML 130 ME&#H A5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKT  ARWTIX ARW®TT
As at 1 January 2019 woFE A
“H—H 13,818 70,032 83,850
Discontinued operation B & R (8,948) - (8,948)
Additions & 20,942 1,087 22,029
Depreciation charged EC S (250) (4,227) (4,477)
Exchange realignment BEE 53, % B¢ = - -
As at 31 December 2019 A 2
F_H=+—H 25,562 66,892 92,454
2019 2018
“E TFE— A
HK$°000 HK$°000
T 7% T E
Interest on lease liabilities HEABEZFE 4,227 -
Expense relating to short-term leases A B A& 2 B 3 8,177 -
Total minimum lease payments for leases R T AR A s w R
previously classified as operating leases BT BB REHE L
under HKAS 17 T 2 S AR AH B A 3R A8 4 = 20,998

Details of total cash outflow for leases, the maturity analysis
of lease liabilities and the future cash outflows arising from
leases that are not yet commenced are set out in notes 34

and 6(d) respectively.

At 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment pledged as security for the
Group’s bank loans amounted to RMB10,444,000 (2018:
RMB107,541,000) (note 33).

L B 4 O o SRR I RE A ~ T BE
S 1 43 #1 DA K i oA BH B 2 FH B A A 1 R
AR 4 it A S A A B R34 56 (d) o

AZE—JETZA=+T—H o WE
W7 R R 2 MR TR (B OV AR A AR
BARIT R I FHEEA AR
#10,444,00070 (= F — V4 0 AR
107,541,00070) (Fff5E33) °

CE U AORAER T BRSO A TR A R

189



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B BV 5 e o M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

190

20. GOODWILL 20. TH
2019 2018
BN Sy | I 2 TE— )\
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥TF ot ANR¥T o0
Cost AR
At 1 January w—H—H 22,640 20,420
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary W J — [ R 2 ) R E A
(note 39(a)) (Fff 5E39(a)) 11,495 2,086
Discontinued operations (note 39(b)) EL A IR 588 25T ([ 5E39(b)) (33,931) -
Exchange differences HfE i, 75 L — 134
At 31 December W+ —H=+—H 204 22,640
Accumulated impairment losses i Uk E s 1R
At 1 January w—HA—H 2,793 2,659
Discontinued operations (note 39(b)) BRI 58 26 ([ 5E39(b)) (2,793) -
Exchange differences R 5, 22 8L - 134
At 31 December wrt—-HA=+—H — 2,793
Carrying amount W5 ThI A
At 31 December wt-H=+—H 204 19,847
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at TN SEBS A D JE A5 11 P 258 A g 8 B 4 T &2
acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from TR 6% 365 5 IF v 1 i 1) B < 7 2R B
that business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill A7 o PR AR T AR 95 R 2 7 XA

had been allocated as follows:

2019 2018
SFOE BN
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR ¥ Tu ANR®T 5T

Manufacture and sale of electronic fire Bk T B E R T B R

equipment segment: o - 19,643
Multiple units without significant goodwill 37 4 5 K 7% £ 2 £ [ % 204 204
204 19,847

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B BV 5 e o i

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE - F—LE+T - H=Z+—HILEE

GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined
from value-in-use calculations. The key assumptions for the
value-in-use calculations are those regarding the discount
rates, growth rates and budgeted gross margin and turnover
during the period. The Group estimates discount rates using
pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The
growth rates are referred to past experience and current
market expectation and/or demand or based on long-term
average economic growth rate of the geographical area
in which the businesses of the CGUs operate whichever is
applicable. Budgeted gross margin and turnover are based

on past practices and expectations on market development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the
most recent financial budgets approved by the directors for

the next five (2018: five) years.

The pre-tax rate used to discount the forecast cash flows
from the Group’s manufacture and sale of electronic fire
equipment segment and the production and sales of wine
and related business are nil (2018: 18%) and 9.7% (2018:
15%) respectively.

20. & (4)

B 4 A B0 22 AT i [ AR AR R
BRI ERE - RAEF A2 £
B BT B A B B 5 R R WA 2 ]
BB S S o A S IR T T S B
Ty 17 35 34 6 W R ] 46 (0 D B 4 7 2R WA
R AR 2 WA I BR B AT B A UG EE
IHBLAE o 38R 3 2 25 3 1 KL I H i
DUTE ] K o SR AR 8 1 < A B A6
RO B P TE I 2 P B R R Y R
RETE (BT EBEA) - HRETMNKE
SRR AR AP 08 1 2 B B i 35 9% o YL M0

P

E ©

A 4 AR 9% K8 A e 2 R AR AR (T
T— A TUAR) Sl ) B TR 5 A
BB i T o

R B AL B B B E T
BRA 43H8 B HE E R i R A S B 2
5 T A5 TR B 4 O 2 TR B I LG R &
(=R — )\ 0 18%) F9.7% (—F— )\
41 15%) o

CE U AORAER T BRSO A TR A R
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

21.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

21. H At K B

Transport Rights
operation and Computer  Customer
licence patents Copyrights  softwares list Total
MR Ly W GHEREG FFAH wat
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
AR®TL AR¥TE AR®TE AR¥ETL AR¥TIT AR®TL
Cost WA
At 1 January 2018 woFE—N\F—H—H 30,000 80 3,208 4,478 7,188 44,954
Acquisition of a subsidiary I — [#] Fff & 2~ ]

(note 39(a)) (Bt 5E39(a)) - - - 2 - 2
Additions NE - - - 551 - 551
Exchange differences E i 7 2 - - - 15 362 377
At 31 December 2018 and N N

1 January 2019 TZA=ZET—HE

“EZ-RE-A—H 30,000 80 3,208 5,046 7,550 45,884
Acquisition of a subsidiary I — [H] Ff} & 2 7]

(notes 39(a)) (P 3E39(a)) - 4,012 - 174 - 4,186
Additions NE - - - 656 - 656
Disposal or written-off H B BB = (80) = = - (80)
Discontinued operations CA R EY

(note 39(b)) (Bt 5E39(b)) = (4,012) (3,208) (4,791) = (12,011)
Exchange differences e 3. 22 - - - 5 124 129
At 31 December 2019 R-F— L

FZH=+—H 30,000 - - 1,090 7,674 38,764
Accumulated amortisation AT B
At 1 January 2018 o FE—NF—H—H 30,000 77 1,176 1,225 6,322 38,800
Amortisation for the year A B 5 - 3 321 1,008 439 1,771
Exchange differences [ i, 7 - - - 6 335 341
At 31 December 2018 and AR AR
1 January 2019 TZHA=+T—H kK

ZE - FE—-HA—H 30,000 80 1,497 2,239 7,096 40,912
Amortisation for the year AR 8 = 587 187 815 456 2,045
Disposal or written off 8 A8 - (80) - - - (80)
Discontinued operations RESIREY-E

(note 39(b)) (FE39(b)) - (587) (1,684) (2,210) - (4,481)
Exchange differences T 58, % 5 = = = 2 122 124
At 31 December 2019 [ Sy |23

TZH=+—H 30,000 = = 846 7,674 38,520
Carrying amount R T 4
At 31 December 2019 I Sy |23

+ZA=+—H - - = 244 = 244
At 31 December 2018 i —

+ZAZ+—H - - 1,711 2,807 454 4,972

Annual Report 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE - F—LE+T - H=Z+—HILEE

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 21. F i SR ¥ (4)
The Group’s transport operation license represents a public A 4R B 2 22 0 3 i A W IR A o B R
transport monopoly operation in a designated national 5A JE B 5 5 ABRUITR 0 B 8 2 B A S W R
level tourist attraction in the PRC. This asset is used in the HE o BRI ) R A T ik 5%
Group’s Tourism development segment. JE& Iy ER o
Customer list represents customer relationship acquired H®F AR & UF TR E F B
through business combination. The remaining amortisation B B AR O TSI A1
period of the customer list is one year.
BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 22. Y& E
The Group is engaged in the production and sales of wine A B 10 A7 = % 0 B A R i 2 AR
and related products. At 31 December 2019, the Group owns MEXYE R _F-NFE+_HA=1+—
7 acres (2018: 7 acres) of vines. During the year, the Group Ho> REBBEATAE (ZF— /\4FE 7
harvested approximately 11 tons (2018: 11 tons) of grapes, o BR) A o AR A AR AR T R A IR
which had a fair value less costs to sell of RMB353,000 BATIMA (2 — \4F  11M0) > HAF
(2018: RMB168,000) (determined at the time of harvest) {383 5 A 2 A R 353,0000C (%
with reference to their market prices. The fair value of the — /AR 0 AR H168,0007T) (A W B IRE [
Group’s biological assets as at 31 December 2019 has been fEE) - WS HHE T o AEH
determined based on income approach and taken into EYEER —EF-NFET+ A=+ —H
account the adjustments to harvest profile, cost incurred, ZONTERIBR AL E E > W EFHAR
cultivation area, and expected yield of the biological assets. AW EE I E -~ P A 2 A
R [0 % LU (] e 2 o
2019 2018
“F TE R
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt AR Tt
At 1 January w—H—H 1,058 4,276
Gain/ (Loss) from changes in fair value O - R 5 ) 9 8 B A
less costs to sell Z Wt/ (5 4R) 4 (3,143)
Decrease due to harvest PRI W B8 T Uk (353) (168)
Exchange differences [ifE 5%, 25 % 17 93
At 31 December wt+_—H=+—*H 726 1,058

JUEAE AR AR T RERTREBRA R A
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

22.

23.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2019

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The Group is exposed to climate and other risks related to

its vines:

Climate and other risks

The Group’s vines are exposed to the risk of damage from
climatic changes, diseases, fires and other natural forces.
The Group has extensive processes in place aimed at
monitoring and mitigating those risks, including regular
vines health inspections and industry pest and disease

surveys.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

22. WK B (#)

7S [ T S S Mo % SEL A A AT I Y HL At
JE B

SR A% B G A J, B

A G [ 2 A ) et T B DR SRR B AL - R
i~ RS HAL A SR ) R SR 2
B o ASSE BV EE A AR T o B AR B
B % S B B4 S U A T A A
il 17 DL B 3 AT H  ME T ek R
2 o

23. RPEEAFRZHRE

2019 2018
—EhE —E— 4
RMB’000 RMB’000

A R¥T oo ANRETIT

Unlisted investments: JEFTHE

Share of net assets JE A I

The amounts due from/(to) associates are unsecured,

interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms.

Details of the Group’s principal associates at 31 December

2019 are as follows:

2,731,853 667,627

FEL,” (HEAS) B8 2 Wl SR TR S SR A
S % e 5] 5 2 K

o

AREMPB _F - NET A=+t —HZ
EEBEE AT

Place of Percentage of
Name incorporation Registered capital equity interest Principal activities
# bR R A WA ARER v v bt R
Direct Indirect
H# Il 4%

Jade Bird Fire Hebei, the PRC ~ RMB240,000,000 38.27% - Sales and contract works of
embedded system products
and related products

H R L AR #240,000,0007 iR AR B fh BB 2

ZHHE R AT TR
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23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

e A

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % “F—JuE+ A =+ —H IL4E

23. RBEAFZHRE (M)

(CONTINUED)
Place of Percentage of
Name incorporation Registered capital equity interest Principal activities
A b A BEAfeACRE G i b HEEH
Direct  Indirect
H# fH] #%

Beijing Jade Bird Hengsheng ~ Beijing, the PRC  RMB1,000,000,000 40% 1%  Investment in unlisted PRC
Investment Fund (Limited enterprises or growing
Partnership) (“HS Fund”) entities

U5 Rt AL RO L AR1,000,000,0007E L B EGE E E
(HREH) (MEEEE]) TEERE

Changsha Songya Lake Changsha, the  RMB105,150,000 - 28%  Land development and urban
Construction Investment PRC infrastructure project
Co., Ltd. (“Songya Lake development
Construction”)

TR e B B O R A E105,150,0007C LI Rl AR 5 R
HIRAT (THAREM )

Chuangi (Hunan) Enterprise ~ Hunan, the PRC RMB220,000,000 - 29%  Project development
Development Co., Ltd.

(“Chuangi Enterprise”)

M (M) EEREARAT B A B 220,000,0007% TH# R
(AT

Beijing Xinzhongrui Venture Beijing, the PRC RMB250,000,000 - 25%  Investment in unlisted PRC
Capital Co., Ltd. enterprises or growing
(“Xinzhongrui VC”) entities

ERfErHmARREARAR  HELR A B #250,000,0007C BB LR R
([fi5 3 A ) PEE B

Shanghai Shengjin Venture Shanghai, the RMB200,000,000 25% 20%  Investment in unlisted PRC
Capital Investment Co., Ltd. PRC enterprises or growing
(“Shanghai Shengjin VC”) entities

FigRARRBEARA L A B H200,000,0007C BB E Bl R R
([ BB 5 A ]) PEEBE

CE U AORAER T BRSO A TR A R
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 23.

(CONTINUED)

The following tables show information on the associates that
are material to the Group. These associates are accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements using equity
method. The summarised financial information presented is

B v 2 B (R

TRV AR 5 i R 2 A
Rl ZEORE o WS A AR AR B ik
FUAME AR 5 AR o BT 290 BB ORI 2
TR ARG o W) 2 A s B o A ) B

based on the HKFRS financial statements of the associates.

Bk -
Jade Bird
Fire
Name H 5 B
2019
£ 1% ZE LR
% of ownership interests/voting rights held REBPFH Z WA M
by the Group ST L 38.27%
RMB’000
AN R¥T L
At 31 December wHt+H=+
Non-current assets FERBEE 373,297
Current assets B & E 3,239,154
Non-current liabilities L E) B (3,036)
Current liabilities i By A (836,808)
Net assets attributable to owners WA NENL & E 2,772,607
Add: Share capital injected by other shareholders s HAb R E A Z AR (902,450)
Less: Exchange reserve BB - B SO f A (3,529)
Less: NCIs W I P RRE 2 (10,613)
Net assets attributable to owners WHE NG EE 1,856,015
Group’s share of net assets AL AL T G 710,210
Fair value uplift NP BT 1,485,024
Other adjustments At 77 408
Group’s share of carrying amount of interests A £ B 73 A A i MR T 2,195,642
Year ended 31 December: BET-H=1+—HILHFE :
Revenue A 1,115,314
Profit for the year 7 4 JEE Ji 176,482
Other comprehensive income At 4 TET i A =
Total comprehensive income 2 TH] R B AR AR 176,482
Dividends received from associates £ A T 7 2 R L 48

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2019



23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

gy A B R I [

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % “F—JuE+ A =+ —H IL4E

23. RBEAFZHRE (M)

(CONTINUED)
Name HS Fund Songya Lake Construction
4w % I 4 2 o 00 e
2019 2018 2019 2018
% OME CF-AFE CFONE ZE-AR
% of ownership interests/ A SRR 2 A
voting rights held by the HESS PR REE 4 L
Group 41%/41% 41%/41% 47%/47%  47%/47%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRETIE AR¥TT AR¥ T AR¥Tr
At 31 December wHt+H=+—H
Non-current assets B & 145,161 104,769 1,353,400 1,258,482
Current assets B & 4,626,564 5,248,224 2,164,290 1,889,502
Non-current liabilities E T E=Er (216,348)  (1,038,738) (2,034,656) (1,830,000)
Current liabilities i B (3,831,346)  (3,325,087) (1,316,442) (1,166,451)
Net assets & 724,031 989,168 166,592 151,533
Less: NCIs B ROE £ (183,882)  (240,528) - -
Net assets attributable AR N4k E
to owners 540,149 748,640 166,592 151,533
Group’s share of net assets A4 [H] 43 i 7 & & 221,461 306,942 77,632 70,614
Goodwill (RS = - 9,310 9,310
Other adjustments HoAtb 8 (239) (62) 3 3
Group’s share of carrying A B T 43 16 R 2 W T (B
amount of interests 221,222 306,880 86,945 79,927
Year ended 31 December: ®#E21T-H=1+—H
Ak AR
Revenue A 164,811 665,346 19,540 10,379
(Loss) /profit for the year ARAEFE (hs18) % A (201,969) (80,374) 15,059 5,025
Other comprehensive income H il 2 T i 4 (6,522) (15,346) - -
Total comprehensive income 4 [f] i i 48 %A (208,491) (95,720) 15,059 5,025
Dividends received B U I N R B

from associates

AU IR BB TR R A PR A

7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B BV 5 e o M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

23. RBEAFZHRE (M)

from associates

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2019

(CONTINUED)
Name Xinzhongrui VG Chuangqi Enterprise
e f5 H 5 Al 4% {4 7 B 2%
2019 2018 2019 2018
—FAE —E-A\FE ZBOWE _F-NF

% of ownership interests/ REEFEA 2 HEA RE

voting rights held by the Mt/ B A 1L

Group 25%/25% 25% /25% 49% /49 % 49%/49%

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWTIE AR¥TT ARWBTILE AR¥TT
At 31 December R+-H=+—H
Non-current assets FBEE 277,734 983,722 3,182 91,700
Current assets i 15,103 32,011 493,777 419,687
Non-current liabilities I o B A i (24,955) (29,303) (168,830) (164,930)
Current liabilities T B £ AR = - (134,106) (114,170)
Net assets FEE 267,882 286,430 194,023 232,287
Add: share capital not injected Jill = HoAh B o R A
by other shareholders Z A - - 4,400 5,000

Net assets attributable B N5 i E

to owners 267,882 286,430 198,423 237,287
Group’s share of net assets A [ A5 R 66,971 71,607 97,227 116,271
Other adjustments oAt 8 - - 16 15
Group’s share of carrying A 4 [ 43 A HE 2

amount of interests 66,971 71,607 97,243 116,286
Year ended 31 December: #®Ez2+_-H=+—H

ILARJE ¢

Revenue A _ - _ _
Loss for the year AR T s 1H (3,198) (6,557) (6,050) (5,920)
Other comprehensive income — HAth 2 T i 5 (15,350) 39,299 . -
Total comprehensive income e (18,548) 39,742 (6,050) (5,920)
Dividends received £ e i 5 s
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23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

B3 oy BB e i e 1O

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % “F—JuE+ A =+ —H IL4E

23. RBEAFZHRE (M)

(CONTINUED)
Name Shanghai Shengjin VC
4 i i % A Al 9%
2019 2018
—Z—hEE TR R
% of ownership interests/voting rights AAEEFEE 2 B R
held by the Group W4 RS 45%/45% 45%/45%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ Tt UNEY & B
At 31 December w+-H=+—H
Non-current assets JE B & E 107,100 100,022
Current assets T A 12,618 43,748
Non-current liabilities EI N (7,313) (8,080)
Current liabilities T B £ i (6,600) (4,000)
Net assets attributable to owners BWH N FEE 105,805 131,690
Group’s share of carrying amount of interests 2 A 3] 43 A\ A i TR T (B 47,612 59,261
Year ended 31 December: B2+ -H=+—H
R4
Revenue A - -
Loss for the year A 1 (2,983) (3,133)
Other comprehensive income FCAth 4 T g 25 (22,902) (46,533)
Total comprehensive income A TR % AR (25,885) (49,666)
Dividends received from associates L A B 7 N A A S — -

AU IR BB TR R A PR A
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 23. RBEA A ZHBE ()

(CONTINUED)

The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s share
of the amounts of all other individually immaterial associates

that are accounted for using equity method.

RSN AL A T A AN
T A HEE i v N\ R 2 B R 2 B

2019 2018
B —E— )\
RMB’000 RMB’000

ANRW Tt ANRHETIT

At 31 December: W+ _H=+—H:

Carrying amounts of interests HE 2 i T {H

Year ended 31 December: ®E=2+-H=1+—H
IR

Loss for the year A A JEE I 15

Other comprehensive income HCAth 2 T i 4

Total comprehensive income A THT IR 2 A8 AR

At 31 December 2019, the bank and cash balances of
the Group’s associates in the PRC denominated in RMB
amounted to RMB1,726,434,000 (2018: RMB64,174,000).
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to
the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign

Exchange Regulations.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2019

16,218 33,666
(5,540) (15,373)
(5,540) (15,373)

W oFE—NAEF A=+ —H » REH
Wk o 28 A AN R WE ST 2 0 o B 2 4R
1T R & 48 2y NR¥E1,726,434,00070
(ZF— )\ 0 AR %64,174,0000T) °
UYL TR 19 W LR NS
B SIS FRAGR ()) B (A5 ~ B 2 A
BB E) B
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % “F—JuE+ A =+ —H IL4E

24. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

24. REBEXEZIRE

2019 2018
—EE e AN
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥Tou ANRMTIT
Unlisted investments: B RE :
Share of net assets JEAG T & = 72,273 253,392
Details of the Group’s joint ventures at 31 December 2019 AEAGELERN_F—NFET A

are as follows:

Capital contributions/

=t—HZaFEmT

Place of issued and paid up Percentage of
Name incorporation capital ownership interest  Principal activities
g/ CBTR G A i
% bR BRRA WaRASL  REER
SBI & BDJB China Fund, L.P. Cayman Islands ~ USD73,436,598 50%  Investment in unlisted
(“SBI China”) companies and real estate
assets and companies in
the PRC
SBI & BDJB China Fund, LP. B8R E 78,436,598 It g e AW AL DY
(TSBI China) W B E KA
SBI & BDJB Management Cayman Islands 100,000 ordinary 50%  Provision of investment
Limited shares of USDI each management and advisory
services
SBI & BDJB Management b & B R 100,000/ % i i 1R B P I BT A
Limited IESa §i1ie

AU IR BB TR R A PR A
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

24.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(CONTINUED)

The following table shows information on the joint venture

that is material to the Group. This joint venture is accounted

for in the consolidated financial statements using equity

]j/\/\

; AE %Z*&g (m

TRIVHE AL i RS8R

EZEH

e A R AR B R

DARE G i A MR o BT 251 B 05 R 22 9

method. The summarised financial information presented TR G 78 A 36 2 75 s B R M HI) A 5
is based on the HKFRS financial statements of the joint ek o
venture.
Name SBI China
7 1 SBI China
2019 2018
SEONE CEAE
% of ownership interests/voting rights AAEEFEE 2 B R
held by the Group Mg IERE T 50%/50% 50%/50%
RMB’000 RMB’000
N T ANR®ET 5T
At 31 December: Rt+_H=+—H:
Non-current assets JE B & E 222,618 633,720
Current assets i) B E 8,091 8,172
Non-current liabilities IF i B AR = (14,156)
Current liabilities Ui B £ 45 (935) (308)
Net assets & 229,774 627,428
Less: NCIs W IR A RE AR (85,029) (121,379)
Net assets attributable to owners WA N EE 144,745 506,049
Group’s share of carrying amount of interests 4% 4 [H 43 5 # £ i 1 {H 72,273 252,750
Cash and cash equivalents included FEA L) B B K
in current assets He%EY 8,091 8,060

Current financial liabilities (excluding trade

in current liabilities

wE AU B R 2 U B B
and other payables and provisions) included Hf& (NEEE 5 K H Al

JREASF I % fBE )

AP IR B B AR 2 IR R E

Non-current financial liabilities (excluding
trade and other payables and provisions)

included in non-current liabilities

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited

W AR OREEE 5 )
A R AT 5 e )

Annual Report 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B BV 5 e o i

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % “F—JuE+ A =+ —H IL4E
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24. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 24. REBREEZRE (H)
(CONTINUED)
Name SBI China
Ei SBI China
2019 2018
2 AE B NE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T oo ANR¥ET 5T

Year ended 31 December: ®EF+_-HA=1+—H
L4

Revenue (' N - -
Depreciation and amortisation P K B _ _
Interest income FLE A - -
Interest expense R BH 32 - -
Income tax expense B A5 Fd B 3¢ - -
Loss for the year A A JEE I 15 (833) (L111)
Other comprehensive income HAth 2 T 0 £5 (402,030) (191,870)
Total comprehensive income A T 4 A AR (402,863) (192,981)
Dividends received from joint venture Bl ESERE - -

AU IR BB TR R A PR A
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE
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24. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 24. REBREEZRE (H)
(CONTINUED)
The following table shows the Group’s share of the amounts I SR AR AR A Ak A1 AN o A
of the immaterial joint venture that is accounted for using MRESRIE AR A3 M5 -

equity method.

2019 2018
“E e BN
RMB’000 RMB’000

ANRW Tt ANRHETIT

At 31 December: w+H=+—H:
Carrying amounts of interests HE £ JF T (E - 642
Year ended 31 December: ®E=2+-H=1+—H
b 45
Loss for the year A A JEE I 15 (482) (530)
Other comprehensive income A A TR A A (167) (65)
Total comprehensive income 4 T A 4 AR (649) (595)
At 31 December 2019, the bank and cash balances of the W oE—NE+_HAH=+—H 2 &A&H
Group’s joint ventures in the PRC denominated in RMB P AN R SHESRAT X
amounted to RMB212,000 (2018: RMB67,000). Conversion W NRH212,00000 (—F— N\
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s 0 AR H67,00078) © i AR W 56
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration J AN W 32 Crpr 2 TR D (B A R 3 Ak
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange 1) Be &5 e ~ B e B A e 4 PR 5 ) B
Regulations. PR -
Note: B 5E -
(a) During the year ended 31 December 2018, SBI China sold its (a) MREE_Z—/4FE+ZH=+—HI
shares in one of the financial assets at FVTOCI as a result of AEJE > SBI ChinalF 2 05 8
a takeover offer for cash. The Group shared 50% of the sale —TE DL P (B A At 2 T U 65 2 B
proceeds net of tax amounting to RMB3,577,000 and realised W56 I 0y DA OB 48 o AR AR A3 A
a loss of RMB4,354,000 which had already been included in S8 T A5 A (FUBRBLIE) M950% > 42
OCI. The loss of RMB3,199,000 had been transferred from B N R WES,577,00000 K 5 B RN
financial assets at FVTOCI reserve to retained profits. R #54,354,0000C » #% & E FFA HAl
YL - K E A 3,199,000 2
A DA P {B A At 4 10 i g 2 B S
G AR B AR WA
(b) The amount of share of unrecognised loss in the immaterial by MHE_Z—NAF+T_H=+—HI
joint venture during the year ended 31 December 2019 and EEURRZF-NET =4 —
as at 31 December 2018 was RMB241,000 (2018: Nil) and HEEN A EE 58 REZ RHER
RMB241,000 (2018: nil) respectively. i 18 2 Ay A By N R H241,0007T

(T —)VEE - 4E) Je AR H241,0007T
(TF— \4E @ fE) o

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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A B BV 5 e o i

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % “F—JuE+ A =+ —H IL4E

25. INVESTMENTS IN FILM PRODUCTIONS

25. RERBREZRE

2019 2018
—F M —E— )4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ Tt UNERY & R
Cost AR
At 1 January and 31 December w—H—HK
+=-H=+—H 11,991 11,991
Accumulated amortisation R
At 1 January w—H—H 1,699 -
Amortisation for the year A A B 1,698 1,699
At 31 December mwt-H=+—H 3,397 1,699
Carrying amount e 1A
At 31 December wt+t—-_H=+—H 8,594 10,292

Investments in film productions are stated as cost less

accumulated amortisation. The amount represents

investments in co-production of films in China. The

investments are governed by the relevant agreements

whereby the Group is entitled to benefits generated from the

distribution of these films based on the percentage of capital

contributed in the film production projects.

TR 5 B 2 BB R AR I R I 5
e o WZARIEAR I S AR R 2
B o BB e o SR
AT HEFE I W AR TR H T 2 He il
% 55 6 R B AT I A 2 Al 4R

AU IR BB TR R A PR A
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI 26. PAA AR EF A H i 2 v Ui 25 2 B4
WEE
2019 2018
B —E 4
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T oo ANRHETIT

Equity securities, at fair value listed AR TE S > AN THAE
in Hong Kong (note (i)) s b (B EEG)) 23,592 24,641
Market value of listed securities EHR S 23,592 24,641
Equity securities, at fair value unlisted ARG S A TELE
outside Hong Kong (note (ii)) HWIEANIE BT
(BF&E i) 85,351 110,603
108,943 135,244
Financial assets at FVTOCI are denominated in the following DL PR E A HAD 4 Wi 45 2 85
currencies: LR %) et
2019 2018
“ER A T )\
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Fu UNY: & BT
RMB N 85,351 110,603
HK$ T 23,592 24,641

108,943 135,244

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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A B BV 5 e o i

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % “F—JuE+ A =+ —H IL4E

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI 26. VAo -PAEEH A I At 2 1 W 2

(CONTINUED) B&E ()

Notes: W &L -

(i)  The fair values of listed equity securities are based on closing () R BARE S 2 T (E AT A A
prices. e

(ii)  The fair value of the unlisted equity securities was reference to (i) B ETBAE S L AT E )Y 25 L
the valuation performed by Greater China Appraisal Limited LAk P T2 5 P (B AT PR 2 ) B A
and Brilliant Appraisal Limited, independent professional AT AT R FDEEAT Z A0 H > LS 2R A
qualified valuers, derived from estimations of the equity value O P 717 855 05 5% e B PR A (R LA T -
by using market approach which makes reference to market 2 A BT S S 5 T R LR
multiples of comparable companies in relevant industries and ] T35 A e
markets.

(iii) During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had sold (iii) MEE-F—NFETF-A=Z+—HIE
part of its listed shares in Hong Kong with net sale proceeds of AR SR IE R IR A 0 Ay
RMB19,272,000 (2018: RMB2,181,000) and the Group realised LB A - S I RV R L IR
a gain of RMB7,464,000 (2018:RMB2,829,000) which had #19,272,00070 (=% — N4+ AR
already been included in OCI. The gain of RMB11,808,000 #2,131,00070) KA % M 5 Bl 2 A
(2018: RMB1,307,000) had been transferred from financial R 17,464,00000 (Z % — A\ 4F - KR
assets at FVTOCI reserve to retained profits. 12,829,0007C) » B #F A KAt 4 1 1

4o e A R H11,808,0000C (=&
—/\EE 0 ARE1,307,0000T) 2 R
ST A A 2 T A 2 A B
RS 2 4R B i R
27. INVENTORIES 27. ##5
2019 2018
ZE N —ER— N\
RMB’000 RMB’000
N T NR®T 5T
Raw materials J 4 K - 98,605
Work in progress TE - 22,730
Finished goods B 6,845 116,772
6,845 238,107

CE U RAER T RO PR A R
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28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28. | 5 J H il JjE W sk IE
2019 2018
—E A —F— 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt ANR¥T o0
Trade and bills receivables JRE B2 5 e S S % 33,442 1,047,884
Less: allowance for doubtful debts o SR IR (33,442) (111,394)
— 936,490
Advances to staff THAT B T #TE 1,477 2,392
Deposits e 1,165 2,381
Due from associates (note 23 and 43 (b)) TR A B % N T RE
(Bt 5£23 5243 (b)) 67,160 51,498
Due from shareholders (note 32 and 43(b))  JEE U % 5 3K I8
(B 5E32 543 (b)) 187 161
Loans and interest receivables JRE i B 3k B A 2 1,000 1,000
Other receivables Efﬂﬁ?%%ﬁlﬁ 132,422 104,877
Less: allowance for doubtful debts o SR MRS (35,921) (29,109)
167,490 133,200
Advances to suppliers AT A3 R K IE 31,398 11,400
Contract assets (note 29) GHERE (M5E29) - 2,475
Prepayments TEAT 3 22,557 20,187
221,445 1,108,752
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE - F—LE+T - H=Z+—HILEE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

The Group’s trading terms with its customers were mainly on
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance
was sometimes required. The credit period generally ranged
from 3 to 6 months, starting from the date on which the
goods were delivered or services were rendered as this was
the point in time that the consideration was unconditional.
Each customer had a maximum credit limit. The Group
seeked to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and had a credit control department to minimise
the credit risk. Overdue balances were reviewed regularly
by senior management. In view of the aforesaid and the
fact that the Group’s trade receivables related to a large
number of diversified customers, there was no significant
concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables were

non-interest-bearing.

The ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables,
based on the date on which the goods were delivered or
services were rendered as this was the point in time that the

consideration was unconditional, was as follows:

28.

B 5 B FC A JE Wk JE (48

WRIEA L 2 E 5k B & 5 Ak
TSNS AEMEF KL EAHIR
MR o BRI — M =2 A A A5 -
32 A &l BRI s 2 FE RFSE
Ty e TG AR 5 I SRR A R RS (R B - 4
YA R R SR o A B O BAs
A2 ) LR AR UGR>3 A 1R B
il H o 5 RO A5 B LB 0 B A o AR
RN B o Mk K R B
AT > T b A 2 R W B RO
MERFEF > BfE 8 B il A i oy 5
oo MENCE B IR A A EER

B Wt B 5 MR e T S R R e 2 A (AR % ol
AT B BRIk B 2 B R BT AR
RG2S AR A ) R [H] 2B A

2019 2018

BN Sy | I 2 TE— R

RMB’000 RMB’000

ANR¥ T oo ANR¥T o0

Less than 3 months Dkl A - 492,891
3 to 6 months 3Z6fH H - 185,287
6 to 12 months 6121 H - 145,238
Over 1 year 14ELL | - 113,074
= 936,490

CE U AORAER T BRSO A TR A R
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28. © 5 F - fily JiE Wk SR (4
(CONTINUED)
As of 31 December 2018, trade and bills receivables of PoE—NFE+H=1+—H > AR¥
RMB610,973,000 were past due but not impaired. These 610,973,0007C 2 MEUE 7 MR B AR E
related to a number of independent customers for whom B S M NI R 9 > FL B 2 4 NI AT S 7
there was no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of KRB B EF AR - %5 EIE 5
these trade receivables was as follows: R Z BRI A B T -
2019 2018
BN Sy | I 2 TE— R
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥TF ot ANR¥T o0
Less than 3 months ks A — 183,890
3 to 6 months 3£ 6fH H - 168,771
6 to 12 months 6z 1218 A = 145,238
Over 1 year 14ELL | = 118,074
= 610,973
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and bills W oEZ— ) EFE+A=+—H  &A&EH
receivables were all denominated in RMB as at 31 December JENCE 7 Bk S SRR IR T (2 AR
2018. W wt(E -
29. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES 29. FRIEE,/GHAM
2019 2018
ZE—NE ZE—)\F
Contract assets RMB’000 RMB’000
RV E ANR¥ Tt UNEL: S abTH
Arising from performance under RIELHEAS L EL
installation contracts (note 28) 7R (Fff 5E28) - 2,475
Receivables from contracts with customers 6 7 s B 4 1 I
within the scope of HKFRS 15, which are S5 155% 45 [ 2 i E F
included in “Trade and other receivables” GRIFIE S FIATE S
T G A 8 Wi I — 2,713

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE - F—LE+T - H=Z+—HILEE

CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2018, amounts relating to contract assets
were balances due from customers under construction
contracts that arose when the Group received payments
from customers in line with a series of performance related
milestones. Payment for installation of embedded system
was not due from the customer until the installation services
were complete and therefore a contract asset was recognised
over the period in which the installation services were
performed to represent the entity’s right to consideration for

the services transferred to date.

There were no significant changes in the contract assets

balances during the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2018, the amount of contract assets that
was expected to be recovered after more than one year was
RMB1,071,000.

aREE & i (4)

REF - /FEFZH=+—H > BG4
%Fﬁ%z KT 5 1A — 2R 5 ) R
FAFEAE B B R OO R BT AR
YRR IR 2R G A BN P A5 Bk o IR 22
s 52 R % 5 B2 SRS 22 e ik R AT
AT > DRILE > & R0 R Y HEAT 22
P85 i S0 ] e > DU B 2 4 B
S A 5 A £ P HE A

T ] - B A A IO R O A
@) o

REF /A= —R B
JA AR W IB] 2 5 A R N R
1,071,000 ¢

2019 2018

—E A T )\

Contract liabilities RMB’000 RMB’000

HRIAaE AR T UNEY & B
Billings in advance of performance J& 4 AT 2 FEAT IR 3K

obligation

— Installation contracts —THEH = 504

— Sales of goods contracts —HEEMNG 37 61,009

37 61,513

Contract liabilities relating to installation services are
balances due to customers under installation services. These
arise if a particular milestone payment exceeds the revenue

recognised to date under the cost-to-cost method.

There were no significant changes in the contract liabilities

balances during the reporting period.

SLLR B A B 2 & A AR AR IR
B HEAT %0 A R > TS A — AR AR AT
HOHE 2 A By 1E 1 B 3 A T T RR
Wt i By 7 7 o

TR S T
&) -

RN N3 R PN

CE U AORAER T BRSO A TR A R
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

29. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES  29.
(CONTINUED)

Movements in contract liabilities:

30.

o5 B B -

BHREEGHAEE)

2019 2018
“E A ZF— )\
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T e PN e
Balance at 1 January —H—H 2 &8 61,153 52,762
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of H % 65 5 R s B 2
billing in advance of installation contract A IRFCES A
and sales of goods B 37 61,513
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of 4 N #EFRIK A E S 4
recognising revenue during the year =K g%y (61,153) (52,762)
Balance at 31 December Wt A =+—H2Z%% 37 61,513

The amount of billings in advance of performance received

that is expected to be recognised as income after more than

one year is Nil (2018: Nil).

DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

%) -

TR JUD 0 A — 4 4% 1 SR A Wi AR 1 OB
IR AT IR AR S A & (% — V4

30. TR ABERBEEHED

2019 2018
SEONE CFARE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥Tou ANRBET I
Cash and bank balances Bl SR AT A7 157,711 689,448
Time deposit E WA K - 1,221
157,711 690,669
Less: Pledged bank deposits B E R RAT A K (1,200) (5,000)
Less: Time deposits with original maturity W R B ER =SWmAZ
of more than three months when & W7 3K
acquired — non-pledged — R T LA = (1,221)
Cash and cash equivalents Bl B BB S Y 156,511 684,448
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % “F—JuE+ A =+ —H IL4E

DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s deposits and cash

30.

ek KBl BBl % W (4)

ASEE 2 AF AR KBl KBS EY 2

and cash equivalents are denominated in the following MR (E ) PAF 1 B W St
currencies:

2019 2018
ZEF M SN S
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt PN a7
RMB NG 140,965 447,584
HK$ FESTH 9,639 13,503
USD Ev 7,107 48,458
CAD oo - 144,175
EUR ik 7T - 36,949
157,711 690,669

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. As at 31 December 2018, time deposits
were made for a term of six months and at fixed interest
rates of 0.5% per annum and were therefore subject to fair

value interest rate risk.

The pledged bank deposit of RMB1,200,000 (2018:
RMB5,000,000) to secure a bank loan granted to the Group

as set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

WATB S ARIEE HRATARRLEFR
SRR, o i =T — S+ =+ —
H o B AP AR BN A - 3
P4 R 40,5 ] E B FHE, - UK
2N FAE A AR B o

B HE AP 4R 47 77 N B 1,200,0000T (—
F— /4 0 AR ¥5,000,00000) 4 F i
o UIAFIR T AR E 2 RITRK - 7
i A S5 A BA TS TR R M 583 o
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31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 31. H© 5 e H i FE £ 5k 36
2019 2018
—® N e \E
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR ¥ T U ANR¥ET 5T

Trade payables TEAT & 5 IR 3K 226 357,116
Contract liabilities (note 29) A A (KaEe9) 37 61,513
Accruals and other payables JRE w2 e H A B At SOE 35,394 89,318
Salaries and staff welfare payables AT H 4 KB TEF 11,390 45,343
Due to associates (note 23 and 43(b)) T AT g 5 N T K
(B 5E23 5243 (b)) 4,000 3,604
Due to a shareholder (note 32 and 43 (b)) JEAE — 45 B AR 3K IE
(B 5E32 1243 (b)) 2,576 2,129
Due to related parties (note 32 and 43(b))  FEAT B A £ 3 H
(B 5E32 %43 (b)) 5,779 4,142
59,402 563,165
The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the date of AR B0 e 2 AT R 5 IR IR i
receipt of goods, is as follows: VA
2019 2018
“F A SN
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR ¥ Tt AR T

0 to 90 days 0%290H 222 308,081
91 to 180 days 91%180H - 33,786
181 to 365 days 1812365 H - 10,972
Over 365 days 365 H 4 4,277

226 357,116

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % “F—JuE+ A =+ —H IL4E

32. DUE FROM/(TO) SHAREHOLDERS/RELATED 32. WEWL, (FF) B3R B A 4 3%
PARTIES H
The amounts due from/(to) shareholders/related parties JEW, (1) IR B N 3K T8 T S 41
are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed repayment G R I E 2 O .
terms.
33. BANK AND OTHER LOANS 33. SRAT K3l 5K
2019 2018
K2 it SN2
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR ¥ T 7o NRHT T
Current liabilities U B £ 15
— Secured bank loans — H IR RITE R 35,876 225,683
— Unsecured other loans — 4 4R L Ath B 3K 44,832 -
80,708 225,683
Non-current liabilities IF i B AR
— Secured bank and other loans — B KA RAT S H A B K 151,050 -
The bank and other loans are repayable as follows (note): SRAT R AR BRI T (B -
2019 2018
% OME ZF-AE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR ¥ T oo AR ¥ T T
Within one year or repayable on demand e — 4 N B SR 74,832 219,700
Portion of bank loans that are due for 75 K A — A 4R H M A
repayment after one year but contain R R R 2 AT
a repayment on demand clause (shown B GR A O i B A&
under current liabilities) THH) 5,876 5,983
Portion of bank and other loans that are i ITE — AR B A IR
due for repayment more than one year, W AF 2 $R47 B HoAth
but not exceeding two years SR ES A 151,050 -
231,758 225,683
Note: The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates Wb S o A SRR S AR R B I R T 5 2 TR
set out in the respective loan agreements. FI R H W

CE U AORAER T BRSO A TR A R
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33. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank and other
loans are denominated in RMB except for an amount of
RMB5,876,000 (2018: RMB5,983,000) which is denominated

in USD.

The Group’s secured bank and other loans of
RMB186,926,000 (2018: RMB220,983,000) are arranged at
fixed interest rates ranging from nil to 7.2% (2018: 4.35%
to 6.00%) per annum and expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk. At 31 December 2018, the Group’s bank
and other loans of RMB4,700,000 were arranged at floating

interest rates at 5.98% per annum, thus exposing the Group

to cash flow interest rate risk.

At 31 December 2019, secured banks and other loans were
secured by (i) the pledge of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment; (ii) the corporate guarantee given by the
Company and a non-controlling interests of a subsidiary;

(iii) pledged bank deposits; and (iv) the equity interest of an

associate.

At 31 December 2019, unsecured other loans were

interest-free and repayable on demand.

At 31 December 2018, secured bank loans were secured by
(i) the pledge of the Group’s property, plant and equipment;
(ii) the corporate guarantees given by the Company and a

non-controlling interest of a subsidiary; and (iii) pledged

bank deposits.
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33. SRAT B A Bk (A

B DA ZEeRHE 2 #OE AN R 5,876,00000
(ZF— /N AR ¥5,983,00000) 4 >
AR 2 GRAT B HoAh B K 2 WRTH (B DA A
R Mt -

AR AR [ R 2 A AR AR AT S At B A
K #186,926,00070 (& — N4+ AR
#5220,983,0007C) &/ T F £ 7,208 (—
F— N4 4 T4.35H £6.00H) 2 [
FEAE R RG> Bl AR 4L R 32 T (E
A o r ZF— /NFETZH=1—
H o> AL E S5 2 AT R H AR
#54,700,000 7045 98 I 2 V7 B 4F F) 51
B AL > A WK 32 Bl 4 I R o5

g o

MoENEF A= H - IR
SRAT B H A B DA R & EAER - (DA
LB W2 - WE SR EREAT 5 (i) A
) e (B B A W 22 FF B £ 9%
B A ZEIEAL i) CARMERITAE AR s &
(iv) — /8 2 A 2 TR HE -

REF-UFEFZA=+—H > BIRH
O B 3K 4 B B B 4 R A o

WZE— ) FE+ZH=1+—H KM
SATER R AT S HER )AL
P2k~ BB JGRAMR R 5 G AL A
B — [ B g /A ) 22 JF P2 IR i 432 1 ) A
R M (Gil) IR MR AT K o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % “F—JuE+ A =+ —H IL4E

LEASE LIABILITIES 34. HEAR

The Group leases various offices and plant. Rental contracts
are typically made for fixed periods. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do
not impose any covenants, but leased assets may not be used

as security for borrowing purposes.

The present value of future lease payments of the Group’s

leases are analysed as:

AEEMEZ WA= KR - HES
38 A 8] 2 SR < AL M R il 2
WERER - L A MR [ ek B AT o A
5 T SIS AT A B2 > MEAH B
AN AR 3R 2 AT o

% S L 2 o AL 66 3 2 BL (8
B

2019
—F—h#
RMB’000
AR¥ T
Current i 3,165
Non-current I E) 64,954
68,119

Movement of the Group’s leases liabilities is analysed as AEHBEEAFZEHITWT

follows:

2019
—E g
RMB’000
N BT
As at 1 January 2019 hoFE—UFE—HA—H 70,032
Additions N E 1,087
Interest expenses FILEBH 52 4,227
Lease payments LENEDEN (7,227)
As at 31 December 2019 woEz—-hWE+_H=+—H 68,119

CE U AORAER T BRSO A TR A R
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34. LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 34. M A fE (80
The future lease payments of the Group’s leases (excluding AL E MR E) 2 ARHE
short-term leases) were scheduled to repay as follows: BN R EREH RN T
Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
K
L8 £F 3k iD=\ Bl

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARMFI ARWTT ARWTIT

As at 31 December 2019 R _E—NET_HA=+—H
Not later than one year B — 4 7,227 (4,062) 3,165
Later than one year but — R RNBN LA
not later than five years 23,238 (14,750) 8,488
Later than five years HAEAR 83,319 (26,853) 56,466
113,784 (45,665) 68,119
As at 1 January 2019 woE-E—-H—H
Not later than one year I — 6,667 (4,201) 2,466
Later than one year but — AR R B AR
not later than five years 24,384 (15,296) 9,088
Later than five years TR 88,839 (30,361) 58,478
119,890 (49,858) 70,032

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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35. DEFERRED TAX 35. EIEBLIA
The followings are the deferred tax (assets) and liabilities DU 2 A SR [ 2 W s i IR IE Bl I ()
recognised by the Group. KEfE -
Allowance
for doubtful Available-
tradeand  Allowance  Accelerated for-sale Financial
other for tax financial assets at
receivables  inventories depreciation assets FVTOCI Total
B ki P F A A
R 2 miE o WEmE AR
FERE  FRER  KEWE  WHEE  ZUERE A5t

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'0OO  RMB'0O0  RMB00O
ARHTE  AR¥FE  AR®Tr ARWTE  AREFT  AR¥TX

At 1 January 2018 RZF—NE—H—H (12,599) (392) - 2,310 - (10,681)
Transfer B - - - (2,310) 2,310 -
Credit to profit or loss for the year Al A i o
(note 12) (HE12) (3,934) - 977 - - (2,957)
Charge to other comprehensive R 2 g A B
income - - - - (1,485) (1,483)
At 31 December 2018 and RZFE—-NE+ZA=1—H
1 January 2019 EkZZ—-NE—A—H (16,533) (392) 977 = 825 (15,123)
Credit to profit or loss for the year Al AR i ol s
(note 12) (fizE12) (4,895) - 3,807 - = (1,088)
Discontinued operations (note 39(b)) B4 1L 44 27 (3830 (b)) 14,609 - (1,948) - = 12,661
At 31 December 2019 REZZ-NEFZHZF—H (6,819) (392) 2,836 = 825 (3,550)
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances AR B 05 IR DL 3% 2 0% S A TE 45 Bk (K
(after offset) for consolidated statement of financial position AR s bTanE
purpose:
2019 2018
“E—JusE AN
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR ¥ TIu ANR®ET 5T

Deferred tax liabilities % SiE Bl TH A 3,661 1,802
Deferred tax assets % 9T Bl Ve E (7,211) (16,925)
(3,550) (15,123)

AU IR BB TR R A PR A
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35. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 35.

At the end of the reporting period the Group has unused tax
losses of RMB81,922,000 (2018: RMB193,897,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
total RMB80,873,000 (2018: RMB182,092,000) that will
expire within 2024 (2018: 2023). Other tax losses may be

carried forward indefinitely.

8 Sk B E (4)

A R - A £R B i R B ) 2 B
Ji5 48 2 AN R H581,922,0000C (=& — A
0 N ¥5193,897,0005C) > ] FAEIE
i N | I £ A N iz B N v
R A > ST A AT ] A0 A o T o
FEARER BB R A BB AR
#80,873,0007C (& — N4+ AR
182,092,00070) » ol i — ZF |0 4
(TH— )\AE « TR T =) 2 NEE -
HCAth ol TE e 45 AT R 4 PR 4 o

36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. WA
Number of shares Amount
g 2H
Promoters Promoters
shares H shares Total shares H shares Total
LN HI aEt R ARG HI} gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FE AREFE ARBFL ARWFE AR®Fr ARBFX
Registered, issued and fully paid: Skt CETRAR
Shares of RMB0.10 B AR K0.107C
(2018: RMB0.10) each (ZF—
ARH0.1078) Z B 6y
At 31 December 2018 and moEF—=NE+ A
31 December 2019 ZT-HRZE-NF
+ZA=+—H 700,000 678,720 1,378,720 70,000 67,872 137,872

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through the

optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to
risk. The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the payment of dividends, issue new
shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts, redeem existing

debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
debt-to-equity ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total debts
less cash and cash equivalents. Total equity comprises all
components of equity (i.e. share capital, share premium,
non-controlling interests, retained profits and other

reserves).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s
strategy, which was unchanged from the year ended 31
December 2018, was to maintain the debt-to-equity ratio
at the lower end of the range 0.1 to 0.4, in order to secure

access to finance at a reasonable cost.

A (%)

A DL B AR £ L R R R LA o
A7 IR L 3 4 T RS T AR BR AR R E O -
R 5 T U DL M B e R B
SEAEYI R o BURE AR B P A RE R AR A
(BRBEA ~ e fydie 8 - JR A ME 45 - R
B i A1) B Ak AR o

P EZE—-NFE A =T—HI
R AREEBEEMEE —F— /)\F
T A EA— B E R SO
Fr B B 25 L 2R 0. 120,450 B A 2 82
AR > TR DA A 3R A A B Al o -

The debt-to-equity ratio is calculated as below: AR SR LT

2019 2018

—EZ—NE T )\

RMB’000 RMB’000

YN o BT ANRMTIT

Bank and other loans SRAT T HoAh B R 231,758 295,683

Lease liabilities 1 68,119 -

Total debts B A 299,877 295,683
Equity attributable to the Company’s A A A N AL R A5

owners 2,878,221 1,750,235

Total debt to equity ratio A A LR 10% 13%

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for
the Company to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it
has to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares. The
Company receives a report from the share registrars monthly
on substantial share interests showing the non-public float
and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25%
limit throughout the year. As at 31 December 2019, 49%
(2018: 49%) of the total promoters and H shares were in
public hands.

ENYNEID T S S
SR ME— S5 AN A AR L e - A
FrN RFE R AR DA A 2.25% © A2
GESRENEN S0 R IR YA S Y R
ON AR R 2 R A R
REBRARNFAIRFEN—EMFEG25%2
NIRHVE - A —F—FE+ A=+ —
H o> & # et N0 KHM 249% (—
T\ 1 49%) BN RFFA ©

CE U AORAER T BRSO A TR A R
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND . RO E] 2 W B IR D0 2R B Gl A )
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) ARAEZ WK E
2019 2018
S AN S
RMB’000 RMB’000

ANR¥Tou ARBET T

Non-current assets Ik B & A
Property, plant and equipment E SN N & ] 6,280 6,790
Investments in subsidiaries, net of AT 2R E
accumulated impairment losses 1B B 5T Uk A R 1E 202,912 202,928
Investments in film productions REERIEZILE 8,594 10,292
Financial assets at FVTOCI U\/\yﬁ Fh A oAt 4 1
Wi i 2 S 53,653 60,505
Investments in associates RS AT ZHRE 453,488 453,886
724,927 734,401
Current assets & E
Inventories neE - 185
Due from shareholders JHE AT B TR IE 187 161
Due from subsidiaries JRE VA B T 2 ) sk IE 248,602 192,897
Due from associates AR AT i 55 2 ) IR 98 98
Due from a related company R Wi — o il e —J%’( 27 27
Prepayments, deposits and other TAATFRIA ~ % K
receivables T Ath B i I 40,705 28,470
Time deposit with original maturity of @Jﬂ;ﬂ Hism=Hz
more than three months when acquired & {7 = 1,221
Cash and cash equivalents 4 M B a2 EY) 95,321 11,073
384,940 234,132
Current liabilities T B £
Trade and other payables ﬁ%&ﬁ'ﬂﬁﬁ’ﬁ- WIH 7,790 22,110
Bank and other loans AT R HoAh B 26,382 -
Due to a shareholder JEAT — 24 W SR 3K IE 815 578
Due to related parties JEE A BE 2+ 3K 3,606 3,511
Due to subsidiaries JREAST o a8 2 =) E 134,983 134,230
173,576 160,429
Net current assets B G E FE 211,364 73,703
Non-current liabilities Ik i B a1
Bank and other loans SRAT S HoAth 23K 150,000 -
NET ASSETS e A 786,291 808,104
Share capital Jili@aS 137,872 137,872
Reserves (note b) M (FsEb) 648,419 670,232
EQUITY HE £ 786,291 808,104
Approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2020 RO TFEZH = HEE R e
and is signed on its behalf by: ARV NS R AW S
NI JINLEI ZHANG WANZHONG
5 & % ik
Director Director
HF I

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

37. A5 w2 WB IR D e K ik i 52 )

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (%)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Reserve movements of the Company (b) A2 H] Z fifi 5 B
Financial
assets at
Capital Reserve FVTOCI Retained
reserve funds reserve profits Total
DATHHA
Hofl 2T e 45
BB
B ik it 4 42 i B 17 i frit
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#TE  AR¥TT  ARWTT ARWTT ARWTx
At 1 January 2018 RoF—=N\F—~H—H 562,519 76,766 - 49,848 689,133
Total comprehensive income 74 i 4 [ it it 48 4
for the year - - (5,995) (12,906) (18,901)
At 81 December 2018 and e SIS |
1 January 2019 =t—=HR
“Z-h%¥—-H—H 562,519 76,766 (5,995) 36,942 670,232
Total comprehensive income 44 [ 2 [ it 4 4
for the year - - (6,852) (14,961) (21,813)
At 31 December 2019 REF-IE+HZA
=1—H 562,519 76,766 (12,847) 21,981 648,419

AU IR BB TR R A PR A
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38. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income

and consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The capital reserve of the Company and the

Group represents the aggregate of:

- share premium totalled RMB559,438,000

arising from issue of new shares;

- the waiver of an amount of RMB1,654,000
recorded as part of issuance expenses for
the listing of the Company’s H shares on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange in July 2000
(the “Listing”) payable to an unrelated party
who had provided services to the Company
during the Listing pursuant to prevailing
accounting principles and regulations in the
PRC; and

- the net gain of RMB1,427,000 resulting
from debt restructuring of Jade Bird Fire,
a subsidiary of the Company, transferred
in accordance with prevailing accounting

principles and regulations in the PRC.
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- WEHEBITZ g5
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38. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

Reserve funds comprise statutory surplus reserve
and discretionary surplus reserve. In accordance
with the laws and regulations in the PRC and
articles of association of the Company and its
subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC (collectively
referred to the “PRC entities”), the PRC entities
are required to appropriate 10% of their profit
after tax, after offsetting any prior years’ losses, to
the statutory surplus reserve. When the balance of
the statutory surplus reserve reaches 50% of the
PRC entities’ registered share capital, any further
appropriation is optional. The statutory surplus
reserve can be used to offset prior years’ losses, if
any, and may be converted into share capital by
issuing new shares to shareholders in proportion
to their existing shareholding or by increasing
the par value of the shares currently held by
them, provided that the remaining balance of the
statutory surplus reserve after such issue is not
less than 25% of share capital. The PRC entities
may transfer an amount from their profit after
tax to the discretionary surplus reserve approved
by the shareholders. The discretionary surplus
reserve can be utilised to offset prior years’
losses of the PRC entities and to distribute to

shareholders in the form of bonus issue.

The foreign currency translation reserve
comprises all foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 4(e) to the consolidated financial

statements.

38. i ffs (%)

it 446 k4 L 9 V5 E TR S
BREERBARE S o R
A R A RE B DL AR S ]
e Hp B AT 2 B
3] (RATT A [ R B A )
AR P
8 2R+ JU B A5 0 A (HE B9 4T
o] DAFE 4F B2 s 1R 4%) > BRI
10% 1 % B R fiti Al o "%k
SE J B fifh Af 2 ) o B
1t 1B 450 % IRF > AT o] 3 — 25
PEBUR B o 00 B AR
0] P B DL AR A B R 4R
(A ) > 75 BT 48 308 4 F R
IRF AR5 e L A90) 1) B SR 9 47 i
S A 8 0 e SR TR
0y 2 T AR B A >
BB AT 45 1 0 B R A B A
KRG DA Z25% o H Bl
B B SH A BLE R
il A R R HE AT
B o T B ARG
FHAEHG 65 v 0 BT B 2 o 1 47
FE s R - 3 DAL I T =X
WIREE o

Ve 52, fth i 6L 35 BE 50 1 41 36055
B TS 4 A 1 i A B 2
BLoo B il M AR AR A B Sk
eI k4 (e) BT #k & FHBUR
o
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38. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

The financial assets at FVTOCI comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of
financial assets at FVTOCI held at the end of the
reporting period and is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy in note 4(n) to the

consolidated financial statements.

The other reserve of the Group represents the

aggregate of:

- The equity-settled share-based payments of
RMB10,969,000 recognised upon transfer
of equity interests in a subsidiary of the
Company from certain of its original
shareholders to a director and certain
employees of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2012.

- The difference of RMB1,583,000 arose
from the decrease in non-controlling
interests of RMB4,617,000 (being the
proportionate share of the carrying
amount of the net assets of PWC Winery,
LLC) and RMB3,034,000 (equivalent to
approximately USD475,000), which arose
on the acquisition of additional 25% equity
interests in PWC Winery, LLC during the
year ended 31 December 2013.

- The reserve includes RMB4,014,000 (2018:
RMB3,832,000) is the safety production
fund, which is for future enhancement of
safety environment and improvement of

facilities.
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38. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

Under the PRC Company Law and the PRC entities’

articles of association, the net profit after tax as

reported in the PRC statutory financial statements,

prepared in accordance with PRC accounting

principles and regulations, can only be distributed

as dividends after allowance has been made for the

following:

(i)

Make-up of prior years’ cumulative losses, if any.

(ii) Allocations to the reserve funds as stated in (b)

(i1) above.

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

()

In January 2019, the Group acquired a 21% equity
interest in Beijing Zhongke Zhichuang Electric
Appliance Company Limited (“Beijing Zhongke”)
at a cash consideration of RMB12,326,000, from
one independent third party of the Group.
Beijing Zhongke was engaged in production
of fire emergency sign lights, lighting lights,
emergency power supply for fire emergency
lighting and related products. Upon the
completion of acquisition, the Company owned
56% indirect interest in Beijing Zhongke, and
Beijing Zhongke became an indirect subsidiary of

the Company.

38. i ffs (%)

AR A B A R b R 2 A
AR REAN ) > % B b et
Lo 3491 i 3 2 o R 3 T B R
Jir 2 Rk BR DR AR A > A AT AR
B 2% TELATE th MR AR A 2 B 20U

(1)

(ii)

5 A 8 T AR 2 2 R A 1R
(mfF) -

BEE b 3 (b) (i) P 6 fa A5 2
4o

39. %G Bla XN

R_E—IAE—H o AEE
| AL H — 2B L =T
Wi S5 b 5 R R A E A
PR (Tdbst b B D #921%
M > B A ACE B N IR
12,326,0007C ° b 5t 1 B} ¢
HEFE B SRR - R
RS~ T B R S R A R 2
VR SOHE B EE o 58 U
%> AN ERAE FRHEA
56% M H 4% HE i > 1L at
b 25 A A R 4 B
7 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

(i)

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 39. &6 Bla B RN EE ()
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(Continued) iy (&)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and AW B s b e R
liabilities of Beijing Zhongke acquired as at the Z A K B A
date of acquisition are as follows: =R/
RMB’000
PN
Net assets acquired: I Wi
Property, plant and equipment (note 19) W~ B Bk i (FiE19) 367
Other intangible assets (note 21) HoAth T2 & 7E (B 5E21) 4,186
Inventories Vass 18,164
Trade and other receivables B Gy B HoAth IR Wik IE 22,367
Cash and cash equivalents W R B EY 11,999
Trade and other payables 5 5y B FABE A 3RIH (39,465)
17,618
NClIs T4 B HE 4 (7,752)
Fair value of interests in Zhongke bt A RHBHE A 23 25 O
at completion date of the step acquisition 58 % B B3I 1A (9,035)
Goodwill (note 20) 7 (B 5E20) 11,495
Total consideration — satisfied by cash AARME — U 3 A 12,326
Net cash outflows arising on acquisition: AU AT 7 A 2 B A AL e TR
Cash consideration received BB 4R E 11,999
Cash consideration paid e B e E (12,326)
(327)

The Group previously had interests in Beijing
Zhongke as an associate of RMB14,629,000. Fair
value of such interest amounted to RMB9,035,000
at the completion date of the acquisition. The
difference of RMB5,594,000 represented a loss
arising from step acquisition recognised in profit

or loss in accordance to HKFRS 3.
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(i)

(Continued)

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of Beijing
Zhongke is attributable to the anticipated
profitability of the distribution of the Group’s
products in the new markets and the anticipated

future operating synergies from the combination.

During the period from the acquisition date to
31 December 2019, Beijing Zhongke contributed
RMB26,073,000 to the Group’s revenue and net
profit of RMB2,447,000 to the Group’s profit or

loss.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January
2019, the consolidated revenue and net profit
of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 would have been RMBI1,269,778,000 and
RMB1,499,244,000 respectively. The proforma
financial information is for illustrative purpose
only and does not necessarily reflect the Group’s
revenue and operating results if the acquisition
had been completed 1 January 2019 and could
not serve as a basis for the forecast of future

operation result.

39.

kB B4 T R B R (A)

(%)

W S b s e R T A R
A A T 5 73 S A 4 1
il B T 4 R K B A
1 I 2 B R A KL T [R] 2K

N
o

EX

Ml i A E =& — JL4E
+oA=t+—HBE > dox
R B AL A B REA
K #5926,073,00000 K £ A< 4
48 25 B Rk O RN R
2,447,000

g i — % — JLAFE— H —
HgsE > HIAS S [ A i &
Z—NE+_A=+—01
TR 2 5 A RN B SR 51 4y
Al 25 N B ¥1,269,778,000 7T
KN R #51,499,244,0007C o
7% W %5 R 2 % H
W AN AR I i
F—JLFE—H — H 1S
ULTF 7 58 [ 1 i 2 % 56 2
S5 B A5 R T R AR R
ES P S

CE U AORAER T BRSO A TR A R
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(ii) In October 2019, the Group entered into a sales
and purchase agreement with a shareholder of
Chuanqi (Hunan) Culture Performance Company
Limited (“Chuanqi Performance”), a company
that was incorporated in the PRC and 49% of its
equity interest was held by a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group as an associate, to
acquire 2% equity interest at a consideration of
RMB600,001 comprising a cash consideration of
RMB1 and capital contribution of RMB600,000.
Having satisfies all the terms and conditions of
the sales and purchase agreement, the acquisition
of Chuanqi Performance was completed and

thereafter became a non-wholly owned subsidiary

of the Group.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and

liabilities of Chuanqi Performance acquired as at

39. %A Bl R MR (B

(i) MZFE—JFETH - &REH
B AT (W) oAb B A
B2 A) (Mo Ar 2R ) (—
i TP ST A ]
49 % B HE | A 45 18 — ] JF &
gl R/NE SR R (R /N
Al) B — % AT L E 1
o A e A VR R 1 29 IR RE
U 25 N R #600,0017C (£
B &E AR 1T Rk iE
% N R #600,0007T) - 7EH
TR 0 I A K I A
LR > W AT B O AT
LTI R 47 6 28 0 L A8 A A
A 4K [ 04 JF 2 B A T o

P WS o ol o 2
] R AR

the date of acquisition are as follow: Hr -
RMB’000
ANRHT T
Net assets acquired: JIr Wi
Property, plant and equipment W~ R E B A 32,314
Other payables Al 8 A5 E 600
32,914
NCIs I 422 I (16,128)
Fair value of equity in A VR SRR A S
Chuangqi Performance before G OFHiT I AP E
the business combination (15,834)
Gain on bargain purchase(note 9) ft fF 0 2 i as (MFRE9) (352)
Satisfied by consideration* FRAE AT+ 600
Net cash outflows from the acquisition TR A A 2 B O AL VAR
Cash consideration B -

* Unsettled as at 31 December 2019

# B F - JuE T A
=t — Bk
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(a)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)

(ii)

(Continued)

During the period from the acquisition date
to 31 December 2019, Chuanqi Performance
contributed net loss of RMB94,000 to the Group’s

profit or loss.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January
2019, the consolidated revenue and net loss
of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 would have been RMBI1,266,678,000 and
RMB1,502,173,000 respectively. The proforma
financial information is for illustrative purpose
only and does not necessarily reflect the Group’s
revenue and operating results if the acquisition
had been completed 1 January 2019 and could
not serve as a basis for the forecast of future

operation result.

39.

o B4 U B B R (4

(a)

Wt N ) 2 ) ()

(ii)

(%)

Hd i A E =& — JL4E
FoA=t AW HE
By A A R A R
B K 94,0000 -

s A = F— LAE— H —
HEEE > AIASEEREE
T—E+-H=F+—H1E
T 2 AR B A JOF s 1R A%
a3 Al B N I 1,266,678,000
g6 K& N R #1,502,173,000
JC o M5 % B S RHE L 2 2
T A — 8 R A R R
SR —HERY
15 DU 7 4 J 0 i e % 8
AR TSGR TR R AR A
B L .

AU IR BB TR R A PR A
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(iii) In March 2018, the Group acquired a 40% equity

interest in Shanxi Zhengtianqi Fire Equipment
Company Limited (“Shanxi Zhengtianqi”)
at a consideration of RMB1,134,000 from an
independent third party of the Group together
with capital contribution commitment of
RMB4,955,000. Shanxi Zhengtianqi was engaged
in research, development and sales of fire

equipment and related products.

Shanxi Zhengtianqi is considered as a subsidiary
of the Group as the Group has the control of the
Board of Directors with the right to nominate 3

out of 5 directors to the Board.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and

. AR Bl iR R R M RE ()

(i) W T—

JAEZH o AR
b AL — 2 WL =)
Wi I B PG OE K 3 B ek
AR A (PG E R A )
1409 B HE > 1 25 N IR
1,134,0007C » # 7] A R ¥
4,955,000 7T [ 1 & ARG o BR
VG IE KR AE 45 B 8 1 B 4 T
B 5% 46 S B i o

e P 1E R A LA A 4 1 2 Y
J& 2~ w) > DR A AR B A R AR
PERGOLAERETN =4
111 36} 5 = A A A o

ISVETER LIS A E: i<y

liabilities acquired as at the date of acquisition are R AN A FENT
as follows:
RMB’000
NRWT T
Net assets acquired: T WS i
Property, plant and equipment (note 19) W2 ~ B T sk (B sE19) 270
Other intangible assets (note 21) HoAth T8 & 2= (B 5E21) 2
Inventories i 80
Trade and other receivables B2 5y B FL A JRE R IH 892
Cash and cash equivalents W4 MR aZEY 3,986

Trade and other payables

Non-controlling interests
Goodwill (note 20)

Satisfied by cash

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
Cash consideration paid

Cash and cash equivalents acquired

4 5 T FoAt B A 3R

FE HE L HE 25
P2 ([t 5E20)

PABL 4 AT

W I A 2 B A VAR

O A 8 4 AU
o Wi 3R 4 R SR (R )
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE - F—LE+T - H=Z+—HILEE

39.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(iii) (Continued)

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of Shanxi
Zhengtianqi is attributable to the anticipated
profitability of the distribution of the Group’s
products in the new markets and the anticipated

future operating synergies from the combination.

During the period from the acquisition date to 31
December 2018, Shanxi Zhengtianqi contributed
RMB1,407,000 to the Group’s revenue and net
loss of RMB1,980,000 to the Group’s profit or

loss.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January
2018, the consolidated revenue and net profit
of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018 would have been RMBI1,905,727,000 and
RMB326,500,000 respectively. The proforma
financial information is for illustrative purpose
only and does not necessarily reflect the Group’s
revenue and operating results if the acquisition
had been completed 1 January 2018 and could
not serve as a basis for the forecast of future

operation result.

kB B4 T R B R (A)

(iii)

(%)

Wi J B Y L KRR O AR 2
B B T S 00 B A SR 1
FEE ity ) TELSU 1 M) e SR 1
1 I 2 B R A KL T [R] 2K

N
o

EX

Ml i A | & — V4E
+A=+—H WM By
IE R 2y A 4R [ e A E R
A B #1,407,0007T K 2y A
4 MR 45 EROF R R K
1,980,0007C ©

s W A — % — NAFE— H —
HgsE > HIAS S [ A i &
F—NE+_A=+—HIE
AFBE 2 45 AW B AR o
Al A N R #1,905,727,000 70
KN R #326,500,0007C © i
Z UG ERHMEME 2 %
N —E R U &
— \4E—H — H 5 MG I
A A B i g B KR SR Ak
PENCEE (B E -
M B -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

As disclosed in note 18 above, Jade Bird Fire ceased
to be subsidiaries of the Company upon listing in the

Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Net assets of Jade Bird Fire

39. %A Bl R MR (B

Fl o b SC B RE 18T B #E

R R

By 7E VR I 8 2 BT b 1T 4R S 7 4 AR
ARSI FARCIE = R DN

on the date of disposal are disclosed below: HlZ G FEMKENT
RMB’000
ANR¥T 5T

Property plant and equipment UE BN N & i 296,506
Goodwill ik 31,138
Intangible assets WY & 7,530
Investment in associates A AT 2 E 924
Deposits for purchase of property plant WEE W - MRS Rk 2

and equipment 9,578
Deposits for potential investments VR E 2 i 8,000
Deferred tax assets 0 S I 14,609
Inventories 15 323,802
Trade and other receivables B Gy R HoAth R i 3k A 1,312,421
Cash and cash equivalents 4 MR aZEY 438,034
Trade and other payables B 5 K H At AT 3K IA (449,114)
Bank loans HRAT R (300,000)
Current tax liabilities B 3 o T 1 (11,995)
Deferred tax liabilities 0 S JE A £ (1,948)
Other reserve H A (70,020)
Exchange reserve FEE 53, fott 45 (755)
Net assets attributable to the Company A H O 22 AR T A

as at the date of disposal B HE 1,608,710
NCIs I 2 JBeHE i (829,287)

779,423

Gain on deemed disposal of the subsidiaries HLATE H A5 W6 ) 28 ] 2 Wi 4

(note 18) (Bt 5E18) 1,348,433
Fair value of the equity interest in Jade Bird TS T b R T — LA

Fire as at 9 August 2019 ANALH Z 28 T-E 2,127,856

Net cash outflow arising from the deemed disposal

R EEA RS RE FHE 438,034
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # % “F—JuE+ A =+ —H IL4E

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 39. %6 Bl &R R MW ()
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c) RLEWEB)EA 2 A KEIR
activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s DE i1 B SUREE: S ety
liabilities arising from financing activities, including EEZAMZEY  OFBE X
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising HBREEH - MEFHEAZA
from financing activities are those for which cash flows 4 ORI &R E D R Rk
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the HanednrEBgESHe R
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash R R A B 2 B
flows from financing activities. & e
Due to
Bank and Due to a related Lease
other loans  shareholder parties liabilities
AT R Wt —4 A 5 W
oAb B i 5 A R £ £
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TE  AR¥TET ARWTT ARWTL
At 1 January 2018 WoFE—NFE—H—H 220,850 2,256 4,087 -
Interest expense FEB X 11,205 - - -
Non-cash movements FHEE 133 - - -
Cash flows BaiiE (6,505) (127) 55 -
At 31 December 2018 as WZE— )\
originally presented +ZA=+—H"
s LR 5 225,683 2,129 4,142 -
Initial application of UM FF 75 i o A YE S
HKFRS 16 (note 2(a)) F165% (HiE2(a)) - - - 70,032
At 1 January 2019, as restated AZF-NE-A—H
EEE Rl 225,683 2,129 4,142 70,032
Interest expense Fl B BA 8,986 - - 4,227
Non-cash movements e/ 95 - - 1,087
Cash flows REnE (3,006) 447 1,637 (7,227)
At 31 December 2019 RZF—hAE
+ZA=Z+—H 231,758 2,576 5,779 68,119

AU IR BB TR R A PR A
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

40. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE

As at 31 December 2019, the Group issued guarantees to

several banks in respect of banking facilities granted to three

(2018: two) associates.

At the end of the reporting period, the directors do not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against the
Group under the guarantee. The maximum liability of
the Group at the end of the reporting period under the
guarantee issued is the facility granted by bank amounted
RMB490,000,000 (2018: RMB503,000,000). At the end of
reporting period, facility drawn down by the associates
amounted RMB490,000,000 (2018: RMB452,000,000). The
Group has not recognised any deferred income in respect

of the financial guarantee as its fair value was considered

insignificant.

41. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the

40. W B R
R oE—IAETF A=+ —H > AREH
Gy 1 e AN SR o D - /NI
B SRAT B A T ERATEE AR -

R MR > S SRR S AR SR AT R
AEAREIE (R PO SR o AR
AREFMOBATER T ZAE ERAH
4% 2 Al N R 490,000,000 7C (—
E— \HE 0 AR #503,000,00078) ©
WA WA > BN R B R g AR
#490,000,0007C ( % — /\4E : NR#E
452,000,00070) © A< 4 5] 37 2 ) o S 4%
PRHEFRAT A B AE YL A > R 2 LA P {E
L AN L3 o

41. BA KW
A R B T 45 B 2 A R I

reporting period are as follows: I
2019 2018
SEOE SB—AA
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ Tt ANRHT T
Contracted but not provided for: LRI AT ME AR

Property, plant and equipment W RE R 48,424 3,955

Committed capital contribution to 6] Mg >\ e
associates and joint ventures R RETFE 97,579 92,596
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LEASE COMMITMENTS 42. HERH
At 31 December 2018, commitments on the total future o EzE—-NETFA=F—H BiER
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating A A AR AR R R A AT 2 B AR
leases were payable as follows: R R 2 ARSI T
2018
e SNS
RMB’000
ANRMTIT
Within one year — R 10,871
In the second to fifth years inclusive B/ _EEHAE (Ui EME) 18,405
29,276
At 31 December 2018, operating lease payments represented WoE—NF+H=1—H  8&H
rentals payable by the Group for certain of its offices and A S AR R T R R A
operating premises. Leases were negotiated for terms S EREAT 2 G - ET A —F A
ranging from one to five years and rentals were fixed over £ MHEBRZHETIEE - BAE
the lease terms and did not include contingent rentals. A 4 o

CE U AORAER T BRSO A TR A R
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

43. [

(a) In addition to those related party transactions and (a)

balances disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated

financial statements, the Group had the following

transactions with its related parties during the year:

ALY

B % 7 8 5 i e Al 38 o R 2
GBS RS AR
A [ 7 A A BE o 8RO N L
TUTRS ¢

2019 2018
SEE CE AR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARW T o ANR¥T 5T
Sales of electronic fire alarm systems fi] b 5 R B i) 2 — [H]
and related products to a related B 72 W) B R T H B
company controlled by Peking R R H A B A
University 516 211
Management fee income LN ER k- /NN
from associates A 5,761 8,737
Lease expenses for office buildings PATR 25 O 2 A =
charged by HMEHEEH
— a shareholder of the Company — AR IR 2,116 2,456
- a non-controlling interest of a — — [ B 2 F 22
subsidiary ¥ R HE 4 34 941
2,150 3,397
Car rental expense charged by an — [E B 2 N w2
associate TRHLAH 42 B S 117 115
Loan interest expense paid to a non- ST S A F 2
controlling interest of a subsidiary T IR 4 2 K
LB 3¢ - 314
The directors are of the opinion that the above HER M LA EBEN L2y

transactions with related parties were conducted in the

usual course of business.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2019
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 43. BN LZ 5 (4])
(CONTINUED)
(b) Included in the consolidated statement of financial (b) &FA MR DL e AL 46 B DL T BE B
position are the following balances with related parties: AL Z &% -
2019 2018
—F e e S VAN
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T oo ANRHETIT

Due from associates JRE WS A R RO 67,160 51,498
Due from shareholders T WA 3% TR S TE 187 161
Due from a related company JE Wi — 5% B bt R B

controlled by Peking University Z BB F KA

included in other receivables A HAth 1 R 27 27
Due to associates TS} B 4% N B KOE 4,000 3,604
Due to a shareholder JEAsF — 45 B AR 3K IE 2,576 2,129
Due to non-controlling interests of JRE AT A Ja 2 W) 2 3 i

subsidiaries included in other WE 5 3K TEH > 5 A H A

payables JE AT 3 IH 2,149 2,235

Due to related companies controlled JEAT B b st R B ) 2

by Peking University B8 78 /N 7] 2 TE 5,779 4,142
(c) Compensation of key management personnel of the (c) AEMEEZFHABEMNE :
Group:
2019 2018
— L4 —E—)\E
RMB’000 RMB’000

N T ANR®T 5T

Short term employee benefits Ji 101 0 B A A 7,368 11,493
Post-employment benefits Bl T 45 A 522 758
7,890 12,251
Further details of directors’ and supervisors’ R 2 — P R
emoluments are included in note 15 to the &R A IR R M 5E15 -

consolidated financial statements.

AU IR BB TR R A PR A
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at

31 December 2019 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation,
registration and
operation and kind of

Name legal entity Paid up capital

44, FEHIE A A
RoEF—NEF+A=+—H > A
FEME AR EHENT

Percentage of

ownership interest Principal activities

hi BREREY BE Rk BHEERA I FEEH
Direct Indirect
Ef (k3
Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech ~ Cayman Islands/the PRC 100,000 ordinary shares of 100% - - Investment holding
(Cayman) Development Company  Limited liability USDI each
Limited Company
TRERRTHE (RE) RERE/WE 100,000 it f - REER
FEARLA AlRAA ESva- 1
Chuanqi Tourism Investment Co., Hunan, the PRC, RMB100,000,000 60% - - Exploration and development of travel
Ltd. (*Chuangi Tourism”) limited liability company and leisure business
BARBREARLA (BARE]) =RMAE - ARAA 100,000,007 L ZUGES AL 98 4
Beijing Hengsheng Investment Beijing, the PRC, RMB2,000,000 55% - - Provision of investment management
Management Company Limited limited liability company and advisory services
TRl RREERARAA TR ARAA R H2,000,0007C ~ RS R MR
Ningbo Jade Bird Ningbo, the PRC, RMB60,000,000 - 0% - Investment holding
Venture Capital limited liability company

Investment Co., Ltd.

S BAERERRAR HREY - HFRAA B 8460,000,0007

PWC Winery, LLC The State of Virginia, the ~ Members’ contributed capital
United States, of USD4,200,000
limited liability company

PWC Winery, LLC ERBEREN TR T 54,200,000 7T
HRAA

The above list contains the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the

Group.
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- 70% - Production and sales of wine and

related products
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE - F—LE+T - H=Z+—HILEE

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

The following tables show information on the subsidiaries
that have NCIs material to the Group. The summarised
financial information represents amounts before

inter-company eliminations.

44, FEMIB A E ()
R I A AL B A T K IR R A
Z WS A T o BANE G R B 45 4 ] K
TE S AT I AR o

Jade Bird Sichuan
Name Fire* Jiuyuan*
Ay BB+ PYJIT R 3 *
2018 2018
i ANGE e S VAN S
% of ownership interests/voting rights JE P O RE 23 T 5 2 HE G RE
held by NCIs W4 RS 49%/49% 62%/62%
RMB’000 RMB’000
At 31 December: wH+H=+—H:
Non-current assets IE B & 592,407 8,477
Current assets i 8 & 1,372,300 210,688
Current liabilities T B £ i (542,044) (181,906)
Non-current liabilities e N=E (977) -
Net assets i 1,421,686 37,259
Accumulated NCIs S I R AR 696,341 23,002
Year ended 31 December: 2+ _-H=+—H
1A -
Revenue A 1,299,043 205,620
Profit Rl 363,513 6,681
Total comprehensive income AT W A AR 363,513 6,681
Profit allocated to NClIs A3 e T 9F 152 B R £ 2 T 178,049 4,124
Dividends paid to NCIs O A JF FE e i 2 e - -
Net cash generated from/ (used in) () A A RS B
operating activities 2 G 90,268 (17,196)
Net cash used in investing activities FRS B &G B 2 B4 T AR (198,180) (346)
Net cash (used in)/generated from () A A BE s )
financing activities 2 G (7,606) 16,385
Net (decrease) /increase in cash and cash W4 KB &5EY
equivalents (Bl 2) 7 388 I i % (115,518) (1,157)

CE U AORAER T BRSO A TR A R
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 44, FEME A 6 (4)
Fire
Name Software®* Chuangqi Tourism
4 i 1H Bl WK {85 77 Jiie 2%
2018 2019 2018
TE A —F A —E
% of ownership interests/voting R T2
rights held by NCIs AR B
REE A H 49%/49% 40%/40% 40%/40%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRMF T AR TE ANR¥EF I
At 31 December: w+_H=+—H":
Non-current assets R B & 1,217 293,946 212,062
Current assets i B A 106,461 261,530 212,629
Current liabilities i B A E (10,223) (54,112) (87,979)
Non-current liabilities i E) A& - (70,955) -
Net assets EEFE 97,455 430,409 386,712
Accumulated NCI BE] I P O £ 47,733 172,163 154,685
Year ended 31 December: B2+ -H=1+—H
| 9
Revenue e A 106,473 136,960 138,330
Profit T ] 85,756 43,697 49,449
Total comprehensive income AR %5 AR A 85,756 43,697 49,449
Profit allocated to NClIs 3T IF B R AE £5
Z i F) 42,004 17,478 19,780
Dividends paid to NCIs A I et i
il 958 - _ _
Net cash generated from/ (used in) EA4 A / (Y 8845
operating activities EE) 2 B e 22,026 13,443 (11,069)
Net cash used in investing activities Jf i & 16 8 2
B4 8 (312) (30,498) (1,312)
Net cash generated from/ (used in) FE4EH (AR @&
financing activities W E) 2 B - 14,119 (1,086)
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash 4 M B 4 S B ) 1
and cash equivalents i CGEib) 21,714 (2,936) (18,467)
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44. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 44, FEME A 6 (4)
Maple
Name Armor Fire*
# i Maple
Armor Fire*
2018
SRR
% of ownership interests/voting rights held by NCIs IE P B HE 4 BT 4 2 B A RE
fE BT oy L 53%/53%
RMB’000
ANR¥T T
At 31 December: BRtH_H=1+—H:
Non-current assets TE B E A 7,193
Current assets B G 231,941
Current liabilities L UB =R (439)
Non-current liabilities I i B A iR (77,230)
Net assets EE T 161,465
Accumulated NCI Bk IR P R A 85,442
Year ended 31 December: BKETHAH=Z=1T—HILHEE :
Revenue A -
Profit i ] (11,962)
Total comprehensive income 2 TH W i AR AR (11,962)
Loss allocated to NCIs o3 e 2 JF 5 TR 45 2 s 1R (6,330)
Dividends paid to NCIs B A I P R i 2 i R -
Net cash used in operating activities TR &G B 2 Bl (19,098)
Net cash used in investing activities FH A A0 1 B 2 B4 T (203)
Net cash generated from financing activities 7 A BT B 2 B i 21,024
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Bl 4 B B 4 S A8 W 1 i AR 1,723
* Being disposed of during the year ended 31 December 2019 * Cih#E_F—LFET+H=1+—H
and hence, no respective financial information of these JIS SN B S | L g e /N
companies were disclosed. ] 22 HH B T 5 R o

CE U AORAER T BRSO A TR A R
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE ~F—LE+T A=+ —HILFE

45. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Subsequent to year end date, in January 2020, the outbreak
of novel coronavirus pneumonia (“COVID-19”) has impact
on the business environment in the PRC. Hengshan
Mountain scenic area was temporarily closed from 25
January 2020 to 26 February 2020 (the “Closure”) due to the
policies and measures implemented by the government of
the PRC to deter the spread of COVID-19 epidemic in the
PRC (the “Epidemic”). Chuanqi Tourism, a subsidiary of the
Company, is engaged in provision of environmental shuttle
bus service, property management services and operation of
tourist service center and tourist souvenir shops in Hengshan
Mountain scenic area. The place of operation of Chuangqi
Tourism reopened on 27 February 2020. It is expected
that due to the Closure and the Epidemic, fare revenue
generated from the environmental shuttle bus service of

Chuangqi Tourism would decrease and the operating results

of the Group would be affected.

Up to the date of these financial statements, the Group will
keep continuous attention on the development and situation

of the COVID-19 and react actively to its impact on the

financial position and operating results of the Group.

46. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and

authorised for issue by the directors on 30 March 2020.
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PAEREHE » R FE—F o HR
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1 ) 7 A [0 1 AT R A it
Bl RS e —F FE - TR
HE - ZF -F4E A -+ ANHERHH
P (TRBAD) o AN vl 1 B g 2 =) 135 5
Jite 7% 7 A6 L R i AR g R (R BR AR R A
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